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Corporate Profile
1 & i I

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (“Hopson Development”)
was founded in 1992, and its shares have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 1998 (Stock code:
00754). Hopson Development is a major property group that specializes
in the development of medium to high-end large-scale residential
properties. In terms of land bank, it is one of the largest property
developers in The People’s Republic of China.

Since 1995, Hopson Development has started to establish its brand on a
nationwide scale through deploying appropriate corporate strategy and
business model. The principal focus is on three Core Economic Zones,
namely Pearl River Delta, Huanbohai area and Yangtze River Delta, with
Guangzhou, Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai as the core cities. In
Guangzhou and Beijing, the brands such as “Regal Riviera”, “Gallopade”
and “Fairview” have been established to cover a range of businesses
including product designs, customer services and facilities; and to
accommodate different community cultures and different operating
models. Each property project is featured with a unique theme to
demonstrate the strength of our corporate branding. Strong brand
recognition at project level enhances the positioning and marketability of
the corporate branding.

Major investments were made in the first-tier cities such as Guangzhou,
Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai over the past few years.
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Corporate and Listing Information
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

CHU Mang Yee (Chairman)

ZHANG Yi (Deputy Chairman and Chief Financial Officer)
(Appointed on 7th November 2011)

XIANG Bin (Deputy Chairman)

XUE Hu (Chief Executive Officer)

(Resigned on 1st March 2012)
AU Wai Kin
ZHAO Ming Feng (Chief Financial Officer)
(Resigned on 7th November 2011)
LIAO Ruo Qing
CHU Kut Yung (Appointed on 7th November 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors

LEE Tsung Hei, David
WONG Shing Kay, Oliver
TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron

Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee

LEE Tsung Hei, David (Chairman)
WONG Shing Kay, Oliver
TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron

Company Secretary

MOK Wai Kun, Barbara, solicitor

Authorized Representatives

AU Wai Kin
ZHAO Ming Feng (Resigned on 7th November 2011)
ZHANG Yi (Appointed on 7th November 2011)

Independent Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor

Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong
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Corporate and Listing Information (continued)
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Legal Advisor

As to Hong Kong Law
Minter Ellison

15th Floor, Hutchison House
10 Harcourt Road

Central, Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

Bank of Communications

Bank of East Asia

China CITIC Bank

China Construction Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)
Standard Chartered Bank

Branch Share Registrars In Hong Kong

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong

Registered Office

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

Principal Office

Suites 3305-09, 33rd Floor, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

Representative Offices

Guangzhou — 16th Floor, South Tower
Zhujiang Investment Building
421 Zhujiang East Road
Zhujiang New City, Guangzhou

Beijing —  Zhujiang Development Centre
23 Dawang Road West
Chaoyang District, Beijing

Shanghai — 19th Floor, No. 695, Lingshi Road,
Zhabei District, Shanghai

Tianjin —  No. 14 Dongchengnan Road
Baodi District, Tianjin
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Corporate and Listing Information (continued)
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Shareholders’ Calendar

Register of Shareholders

Close of Register
12th June 2012 to 15th June 2012 (both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting

15th June 2012

Listing Information

Shares Listing

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code

00754

Guaranteed Senior Notes Listing

The Company’s 8.125% Guaranteed Senior Notes are listed on
The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
Guaranteed Senior Notes Listing

The Company’s 11.75% Guaranteed Senior Notes are listed on
The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
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Corporate Structure
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Property Management

Beijing Plaza
Royale Hotel
ERFRRERE

Beijing Regal Court
ERFIFR

Citta Eterna
EEEE

Hopson International
Garden
BEEREE

No. 8 Royal Park
AETERSH
Beijing
Dongfangwenhua

Project
EREFGNEEE

Beijing Desheng
Building
REBAE

Kylin Zone
2

Dreams World

R

Yuhe Project
FMEE

Hopson World Garden
BEHREE

Regal Park
BEBEIFR

Regal Court
BRER
Beijing Miyun
TREE

Beijing Zhujiang
Century Property
Management
Limited
tRFTHEYEEE
ARAR

Huanbohai Economic Zone I 335 & 7 B

Hyatt Regency
Jingjin City
TR S B R

Jingjin New Town
TORHA

Hopson Belvedere Bay
BEERME

Tianjin Hopson
International Tower

REGEEBAE

Tianjin Hopson
International Mansion
RREEEEBLE

Dongli Lake Project
REMEE

Dalian Hopson Regal
Seashore
REAETILFS

Hopson Ziyue Mansion

| SERBA

Qinhuangdao
ES

Seasky Villa
REA



Corporate Structure (continued)
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Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone & = A&7 B

Shanghai
£

Hopson Town

BERR

Hopson Golf
Mansion

REBMARE

Sheshan Dongziyuan

RUREE

Hopson Lantern Villa
AEBER

International Garden
AEEBEE

Hopson Dongjiao Villa
RERNEIE

Hopson Yuting
Garden

REMER

Hopson International
Plaza
REBERES

Hopson Fortune Plaza
REMERS

Hopson World
- Trade Centre -
MMNEEEE R

Shanghai Songjiang
Guangfulin Project
LEIIEENER

Shanghai Pudong
Sanlin Project
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Asset Seascape
Residence
REMEERAR

Hangzhou| Kunshan] Ningbo

Hopson
Yiting
SEEE
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Hopson The Town of
_ International _ HangzhouBay _
City BERME
AEERSE BB

Taicang jGuangzhou

Hopson
Sea Block
BEMNE
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Pearl River Delta Economic Zone % = £ &7 B
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Guangzhou Regal
— Riviera Hotel

MBI RBIE

Gallopade Park

BRREE
Pleasant View
Garden
RERE
Huanan New City
R
Gallopade Park —
South Court
BREER
Regal Riviera
HIFR
Regal Palace
FRER
Yijing Huayuan .
EEER Huizhou Golf
Manor
Guangzhou SEEHAEE
Zhujiang
International Huizhou
Tower Regal Bay
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Yunshan Xijing Hopson
BLRR _International
Regal Villa New City
LI BEERI
Junjing Bay Wangxiangying
Z84 Project
Hopson Plaza REERR
SERE Shidai City
Hopson Xijing e
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Guangzhou Jiufo
Machao Project
EMNEEHER

Hopson Regal
International
SEFRER

Hushan Guoji Villa
WL ERRR
Qianjin Road
Project
AR IEE

TIT Project
(Industrial Park)

TITIEE (EXEH)

Guangdong
Esteem Property
~ Services Limited
RRERYERY
BRAR

Huizhou
=M

- —FEFER

Regal Court
BRI

Zhongshan
Dongkeng
Project
FILRGER

Zhongshan
Rainbow
Project
HILFAER
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Financial Highlights
S 75 ik 2

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
TELF TENF TTNEF TZF —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FHT FET FET FiEx
Revenues 28 11,130,643 10,774,624 11,225,246 14,379,253 8,007,537
Profit before taxation [ B2 A 4 71 5,177,451 3,861,762 8,791,918 8,843,109 2,197,184
Taxation BIE (1,629,245) (1,912,812) (2,699,383) (2,550,097) (788,773)
Profit for the year FEEHF 3,548,206 1,948,950 6,092,535 6,293,012 1,408,411
Non-controlling interests JEPE IR (30,894) 14,774 (292,962) (403,600) 21,620
Profit attributable to shareholders BREE(EE A 3,517,312 1,963,724 5,799,573 5,889,412 1,430,031
Profit attributable to shareholders % 3R A 0 R (R 5T & &
(excluding the effect of revaluation HEREATETE
and excess of acquirer’s interest at ZWEAERER
fair value over cost of acquisition) W BB AR AR 2 B8 ) 1,993,451 1,742,495 2,274,409 3,042,695 1,349,484
Earnings per share BREF
— Basic — &K HK254 cents &1l HK133 cents &1Ll HK377 cents &1Ll HK343 cents &1l HK82 cents &1l
— Diluted — HK249 cents 7l HK133 cents %l HK369 cents Ll HK342 cents HK82 cents &l
Dividends per share TR S HK41.9 cents 7#&{ll  HK20.0 cents 71l HK9.2 cents 7l HK17.15 cents 1l =
Net assets value per share BRAEFE HK$13.64 BT HK$15.33 BT HK$19.15 7T HK$23.39 BT HK$25.38 83T

Profit attributable to shareholders
(excluding the effect of revaluation
and excess of acquirer’s interest at
fair value over cost of acquisition)

% 3R BB 45 738

Revenues Profit attributable to shareholders (R ERTYERRATETEZ
g P& SR PE (L 3 R WESEESRWBRAZIHHG)
(HK$'000) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)
FET FAT FHET
16,000,000 6,000,000 3,500,000
14,000,000 5,000,000 3,000,000
12,000,000 2,500,000
10,000,000 4,000,000 200,
beed 2,000,000
8,000,000 3,000,000 200,000
6,000,000 0%
2,000,000 1,000,000
4,000,000 ,000,
2,000,000 1,000,000 500,000

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Dividends per share Net assets value per share

BERBRE BREETFE
(cents) (HKS$)
AL BT
50 30
40 25
30 20
15
20 10
10 5

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011



stplREEERAT - —2——=x% 09

Chairman’s Statement
By &

Chu Mang Yee
&K
Chairman

E:

In 2011, under the guidance of the prudent approach,
the Group rode through this critical year during which
the austerity measures were implemented over the real
estate market. Looking ahead to 2012, with the domestic
macro-economy continuing to grow steadily, the Group
remains prudently optimistic about the future development
of the industry.

—E— 5 £EE [BREZ] NFHEET  TEEBE
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
F 05 A ()

Given that the international and internal economic environments were
complicated and the property market was relatively volatile in 2011, the
Group, under the principle of its prudent general approach, leveraged on
its enormous comprehensive strengths, wide operational experience,
mature management principle, well-established governance structure as
well as its scientific operation system to ride through this critical year of
implementing property control measures on a solid note. For the year
ended 31st December 2011, turnover of the Group for the year
amounted to HK$8,008 million, net asset per share grew 8.6% to
HK$25.4.

1. Market Overview and Operating
Environment In 2011

(i) National market

1. Overview of Economic Environment

2011 was the commencement year of the “Twelfth
Five-Year Plan” of China, and achieved a steady and
continuous macro-economic growth. The national GDP
of 2011 was RMB47,156.4 billion, which grew 9.2% as
compared to that of the last year. Of which, the
increase in value of the tertiary industry was RMB20,326
billion, up 8.9% year-on-year. Disposable income per
capita of urban households was RMB21,810,
representing a growth of 8.4% from last year, while the
proportion of urban population reached 51.27%.

Hopson Yuting Garden
AL EER

—E -5 HEBRERANLERBEEMRR
BHETEEIRANBLT AKEE
[RRELEINBEFIHIEET KFERAK
WEGEEEN YEMELKR KANER
B TEMRIEER REMgEKs -
BRTEEFEBERAFHERTNEARE
FoHzZFTE——F+A=1+—80 58
2EBERLEFIVBEE L FREEE
254770 - HK8.6% °

1. ZE——FHmHEPBERR
IR IR

(i) ZBI™IZ
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ZE——F 2EHEBERAE
EREEANRBAL564
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#6203,2601E 7T [A 18 &
89% - W EFE R RE A
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21,8107 * [RE L3 118.4%
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
F 8 HoE ()

Under the complicated international economic situation
in 2011, the growth had slowed down and the foreign
demand was sluggish. Due to the support of favorable
domestic impetuses such as urbanization,
industrialization and consumption expansion, the
domestic economy maintained a steady and rapid
development, while the stimulation of the economic
growth transformed orderly from policy-oriented to
domestic demand-oriented. In 2012, the major
objectives of the economic works are “to sustain a
stable economic growth, to adjust the structure of
economic growth, and to control the inflation risk
sternly”. Generally speaking, the macro-economic
situation is positive and promising for the development
of real estate industry. During the process of adjustment
in economic structures and transformation in growth
pattern, the real estate industry, being one of the pillar
industries of the national economy, will adjust itself
through such developments and in turn realized

growth.

ZE - —FEBLKERD
B EREE IFE
55 o BB REE W HE
T - HBRERALZRY
WAL KARE TR
RRER LEERARK
BRBRABEEREERFS
B REBELEFRER -
ARCEIERER  BRIE
SlBERARIRE T —Z=F
KETHENER BEBX
B ORBEERREEHE
ENBEERER AR
ERBEEBEABRRIBRA
ANEENBET  BHEZE
ERBREEIREXZ
— RAZELEEERPET
AR EHEFPERER-

Hopson Golf Manor project in Huizhou
BMEERTRBXHEE
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
F 05 A ()

!

Hyatt Regency Jingjin City

TR BT

Overview of the Real Estate Market

In 2011, China entered into a deeper stage of the
austerity policies on the real estate industry. The
government continued to uphold its principle of
austerity, which was “suppressing the overheating of
housing price and ensuring a healthy development of
the real estate industry”. Administrative measures and
monetary credit policies, which covered three areas,
namely residential housing, land and finance, were
introduced simultaneously. Specifically, these measures
included regional purchase restriction, price restriction,
the promotion of reformation of the property tax in
pilot areas, the adoption of differential credit plan,
increasing the effective supply of land and housing, and
strengthening the supervision in the market. Such
measures had effectively curbed the speculative
demand, dampened the growth of the housing price,
and preliminarily alleviated the imbalance between
demand and supply in the market. Although the
measures of austerity brought a significant effect on the
market and enterprises, in the long run, such policies
will create favorable conditions for the healthy, orderly
and standardized development of the real estate
industry.

FiET S E
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

A

(%)

Real estate industry benefited from the accelerated
urbanization, the rise in living standard and the
consumption power of residents. In 2011, it maintained
an upward trend in a general PRC property market. The
total gross floor area of commodity housing sold and
the sales of commodity housing were 1.099 billion
sg.m. and RMB5,911.9 billion, representing an increase
of 49% and 12.1% from last year, respectively.
Investment in real estate development for the year was
RMB6,174 billion, which grew 20% from last year.
However, for the first-tier cities, which were the key
targets of austerity measures, the sales volume of the
real estate market showed a declining trend.

The Group believes that the real estate industry is
experiencing a substantial change and adjustment. We
have to know the pattern of the industry development
rationally and grasp the trend of the market changes in
order to gain strategic opportunities for the enterprise.
We consider that industrialization, urbanization and
consumption expansion are the key focuses of the
economic development during the period of “Twelfth
Five-Year Plan”, as well as the growing points for the
real estate industry in the future. Driven by
industrialization process, such real estate segments as
commercial property, industrial property and the
industrial park property will play an important role. The
hastening of urbanization, the promotion of purchasing
power of residents and the expansion of consumption
demand will serve to boost the development of
residential, pension, and tourism property segments.
And there is a huge room to develop the market of
second- and third-tier cities. Meanwhile, we have to be
cautious that the current round of the austerity
measures on the real estate market speeded up the
integration of the industry, and further increased the
level of market concentration. Therefore, while we are
confident of the future development of the real estate
industry, we still have to get ready for another round of
growth during the period of the adjustments and
changes in the industry.

BAERIR

SBEERRAR - —F——FFH

EBHETESZNM M
EREMR FEREFEKER
BEREINEF —T——
F - 2EREMETHBNRE
BBERLEHED 267
o 5 8 & T 1 E#10.9918 F
AR BREEBEARE
59,1198 7T » H Bl K F [
BRI T 4.9% N 12.1% ° &
FREMERZEREARK
61,7408 7L - A F A AR 18
K20% - AMtEREZH
BEHRN—BET BHE
MBHELIRT T/EBE

SERE BHESTEILEAE
KE—I5E RS HER
B ZEREURBITEER
RE - ZEEMESELEE -
RTERGEEEE - KM
RELENL  WEAUARE
AEEBRREITZ-2A]HHE
REZRNER XEFH
ETERRNER -ET
ELERNEST  mHE
E ILEWE EXEEH
EXTFRMEXRMAE N
B9 IR (LR
RAEBERBE IUREX
HEBF XK H%?%E%iﬂz? )
BEME  REMEZTA
FMEES N WA =8
HmasEERNTSH
REM B ZMABEB
R RBHE  ANnFEHER
EIRTITHEEES MHEE
PEE—FREA B
MEFHETERKER
FomiE ORI RIR -t E T
THEEF DETEEHE
A SR g T — IR o

13



14 Hopson Development Holdings Limited

- Annual Report 2011

Chairman’s Statement (continued)

F R ()

(ii) Regional Markets

1.

Southern China

With Guangzhou as its core in southern China, the
Group expands the business to neighboring cities with
vast potential such as Zhongshan, Huizhou and Foshan,
and carries out land bank investments, the development
and construction of projects and the operation of
commercial properties in the prime locations of the
cities above. In 2011, approximately 34% of the
Group's revenue was generated from the business of
southern China.

As a well-developed administrative center of southern
China, Guangzhou enjoys enormous opportunities and
capabilities of developments. It achieved a GDP of over
RMB1,000 billion in 2010, and it ranked third among
the major cities in the nation in terms of the aggregate
economic output. In 2011, the regional GDP of
Guangzhou was RMB1,230.312 billion, which rose
11% from last year. Disposable income per capita of
urban households was RMB34,438, up 12.3% year-on-
year. The steady economic growth has provided the
development of the real estate industry with favorable
conditions.

One of the basic requirements for the “Twelfth Five-
Year” Plan in Guangzhou is to focus on the co-
ordination of urban and rural areas as well as regional
linkage. These include accelerating the pace of
urbanization, improving the living conditions of
residents in urban and rural areas, promoting the
coordination and interactive development of urban and
rural areas. The new pattern of integration of urban and
rural economic and social development will offer a new
opportunity to the development of real estate industry.
Meanwhile, the integration of Guangzhou and Foshan,
the construction in Guangzhou-Foshan-Zhaoqing
economic zone and the integrated development in Pearl
River Delta Region have strengthened the position of
Guangzhou as a greater role in stimulating the
development of surrounding areas.

(i) B ™5F

1.

) |5 12
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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(%)

Meanwhile, an integration of Shenzhen, Dongguan and
Huizhou has accelerated. Huizhou, an important coastal
city, has a relatively strong transfer capability. In view of
the relatively high demand in the Huizhou real estate
market, there is an important strategic significance for
the Group to have well-planned development of real
estate projects in Huizhou.

In 2011, the Group continued to strengthen its strategic
planning in southern China, and gradually developed its
commercial property sector to enrich the product lines.
In Guangzhou, the Group put a strenuous effort on the
development of the commercial projects such as
Zhujiang International Tower and Hopson Plaza. These
projects achieved sizable operations and received
relatively high market recognitions. Moreover, Huizhou
Binhai City and Regal Bay received favorable comments
for their high performance-price ratio, and the market
position of the Group in the region was further
consolidated.

Northern China

The current strategy of the Group in northern China is
to consider Beijing as its core, with Beijing and Tianjin
as the central development zones extending to the
Huanbohai Economic Zone and to the major second-
and third-tier cities. As an important strategic hub of
the Group, northern China region contributed 41% to
the Group’s results in 2011.

Beijing, as the national center of economy, culture and
politics, demonstrates its development potential and
influential power obviously. It sustained a rapid
development in 2011, the GDP for the year was
RMB1,600.04 billion, up 8.1% from last year, and the
disposable income per capita of urban households

amounted to RMB32,903, up 13.2% from last year.
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As Beijing is one of the key cities where austerity
policies have been implemented to the real estate
industry, its sales were significantly affected. In 2011,
the area of residential properties sold was 10.35 million
sg.m., which dropped 13.9% from the last year.
Although the market was gloomy, the Group, with its
leading product quality and outstanding services,
achieved satisfactory results in Beijing. No. 8 Royal Park
is @ benchmarking and high-end masterpiece in Beijing
district, which earned loads of praises from the clients.
Medium to high-end projects such as Hopson World
Garden and Hopson Kylin Zone, with excellent facilities
and services, were widely recognized by the market. We
believe that the economic development in Beijing will
provide more room for the growth of the real estate
industry. The Group will endeavor to further explore the
market of Beijing, implement its development strategy
of regional focus and enhance our market position
continuously.

Tianjin is an important port city in northern China and is
among the fastest growing cities in the nation. The joint
development of the Tianjin district and county, the
accelerated progress of the integration of urban and
rural areas and the rapid development in different kinds
of the industrial park will have a positive effect to the
local real estate industry. The Group has a foresighted
plan in the center and the outer suburbs of Tianjin. And
the product value will further be upgraded through the
regional development.

In 2011, the Group continued to consolidate its market
position in the core cities of northern China, namely
Beijing and Tianjin. And through these cities, the Group
will extend its business to major second-tier cities such
as Dalian, Taiyuan and Qinhuangdao. It is estimated
that as new projects in those regions are launched
progressively, their contributions to the Group’s results
will increase further.
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Eastern China

Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone is regarded as an
important hub for our future business growth in eastern
China while Shanghai is the Group’s core city which
extends to the major neighboring cities such as
Hangzhou and Ningbo, and to the second- and third-
tier cities with vast development potential, namely
Kunshan and Cixi. The contribution to the Group's
results from eastern China was approximately 25%.

In 2011, Shanghai demonstrated a steady development
in the society and the economy, and its regional GDP
for the year was RMB1,919.57 billion, which grew 8.2%
from last year, disposable income per capita of urban
households was RMB36,230, up 13.8% from last year.
While pursuing the goal of becoming a world-class city,
the economic strength and the international influence
of Shanghai will further be reinforced. Shanghai’s post-
expo development will drive the growth of its local real
estate industry.

In 2011, the sales volume of Shanghai real estate
market showed a declining trend, and the area of
commodity housing sold dropped 13.8%, comparing
with last year. Although the overall sales performance
in the market was not encouraging, the Group still
achieved a better-off sales performance. Our
representative projects such as Hopson Town and
Sheshan Dongziyuan continued to consolidate the
leading position of the Group in that region.

In 2011, the Group consolidated and continued to
expand the strategic development in eastern China. We
further developed the market in the third-tier cities such
as Taicang, Kunshan and Cixi, in order to diversify the
risk of the Group and to enhance its operational
security. It is expected that as new projects in those
potential regions are launched progressively, eastern
China will make more contributions to the Group's
results.
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Prospects of the PRC Property Sector

Looking ahead to 2012, opportunities coexist with challenges. Due
to the slow-paced recovery of the global economy, it will further
increase the uncertainty and the instability of the global economic
situation. As the domestic macro-economy will tend to maintain a
steady growth, the central government will continue to introduce
proactive fiscal policy and prudent monetary policy. In 2012, the
austerity measures will further be implemented on the real estate
industry. The government will continue to curb the speculative
demand in the industry, to promote the reformation of the property
tax in selected pilot areas, and to reinforce the market monitoring
in order to adjust the housing prices to a reasonable level. In
general, for the real estate industry, there is a stable economic
upturn environment where the implementation of austerity policy is
still a normal practice. These are solid foundations for the real estate
industry to develop in a sustainable, healthy, and orderly way. In
short term, these austerity measures will have adverse effects to the
market sales volume; however, it will not change the general drift
of the real estate industry development. Urbanization construction,
industrial development and the upgrading of consumption level will
continue to drive the real estate industry to advance.

Prospects of the Group

Since 2011, the global economic growth has slowed down and
various types of risks have increased significantly. In 2012, it is
expected that pursuing the structural adjustments and assuring the
quality of the growth will be the primary objectives of the domestic
macro-economy growth, with the direction of “strengthening the
specificity, flexibility and perspicacity of austerity measures” being
adhered. In the near term. The real estate industry will continue to
be the target of austerity measures which will go on unabated.
However, in the long run, by means of its strong linkage with
different industries, the positive effect on the long term macro-
economic development of China will not be altered. Therefore, the
Group remains prudently optimistic about the future development
of the China real estate industry.
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Given the macro-economic environment and the background of the
industry, maximizing the value of the shareholders will be the
ultimate objective of the Group. We will continue to commit
ourselves to improve the standard of management, to optimize the
investment structure, and to ensure a steady and healthy
development. We strike for a higher accuracy of our estimation and
more speedy response towards the macro-economic and the
industrial adjustments, such that we can explore opportunities in
the challenging environment, as well as seek for developments in
the adversity.

Improving the Standard of Management and
the Mode of Scientific Development

The Group fully understands that the current situation of the
international economy is complicated and the prospect of recovery
is still uncertain. It is obvious that China’s macro-economic austerity
measures on the real estate industry has become a normal practice
and the strength of the austerities will not be loosened within a
short period of time. Accordingly, to seek for opportunities and
chances for developments under the current and future complicated
economic situation and industrial conditions, the Group can only
contribute itself into perfecting the structure of management,
improving the standard of management and optimizing the
operating model continuously.

Integrating the Product Structure to Ensure
the Returns on Investment

The competition of real estate industry in the nation has aggravated
and the level of resource concentration has been increased.
Accordingly, the Group intends to seek for innovative developments,
in order to ensure the investment returns for the shareholders. We
must endeavor to integrate and upgrade the structure of our
products, to cohere and improve the value of the brand, to
continuously strengthen the profitability of the Group’s operating
sales by all means, and thus, to maximize the value of the
shareholders’ investment.
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Optimizing Investment Structure and
Diversifying Business Development

Since the residential market is the target of macro-economic
austerity policy, and the value chain of the real estate industry has
been upgraded, the Group believes that the only way to achieve the
ultimate goals of diversifying the risks and maximizing shareholders’
value is to optimize our investment structures continuously with an
aim of balancing the developments and optimizing the revenue
from the diversified business segments of the real estate
development, property operation and equity investment.

Prudent Land Investment and Strengthening
of Strategic Cooperation

Since the Group is prudently optimistic towards the outlook of the
development of China real estate industry, we will continue to
sustain a prudent strategy in land investment and adopt a diversified
mode of land development. Through strengthening both inter- and
intra-industrial strategic cooperation, we aim to achieve economies
of scale and a win-win situation. Furthermore, the Group will
continue to optimize the regional development structure in order to
consolidate the brand value among high-end properties in first-tier
cities, and to optimize the investment returns through entering the
markets of second-and third-tier cities.
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Coordinate Resources Management to Ensure
Stable Development

We will continue to strive for improving the standard of assets
management of the Group and the efficiency of resources
consumption in the upcoming future. We will reinforce the concept
of an intensive management of resources to achieve an integrated
management and an optimal allocation of resources. Moreover, we
will strengthen the risk control and maintain a higher turnover rate
of the inventories. To ensure a healthy and stable development, we
insist to make both ends meet.

The Group will stick to the cooperate cultural vision of “pursuing
mutual benefit with integrity and innovation”. We will all be hand
in hand together and stepping into a huge success. We strive to
provide the market and consumers with fine products and services
and deliver stable returns to our investors continuously.

CHU Mang Yee
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30th March 2012
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Zhang Yi

REE
Deputy Chairman
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In 2011, the real estate industry experienced the most
stringent controls in history. However, the Group continued
to maintain its stable and healthy operation during the
period of adjustment. In line with the changes of the policy,
the Group will strive to sustain our prudence to confront
the challenges proactively in the future.
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In 2011, the real estate industry experienced the most stringent controls
in history. As it is a typical cyclical industry, the market entered a period
of deeper adjustment. During the period of adjustment, the Group
focused more on maintaining a stable and healthy operation and
enhancing the contributions from the business segments in the second-
and third-tier cities and investment properties. It can diversify the risks of
market centralization and residential business as well as encourage the
restructuring of corporate strategies steadily.

Over the past year, certain adverse effects were brought to the Group by
the tightening market conditions. During the reporting period, the
turnover of the Group was HK$8,008 million, the overall profit was
HK$1,430 million. However, the Group’s business plans for the second-
and third-tier cities and newly developed region proceeded as scheduled
during the period. Moreover, the product mix was optimized to increase
the proportion of the small to medium sized properties to satisfy the
regular demand in the market progressively and to enlarge the business
of investment properties in a moderate manner. It is expected that such
arrangements in the operation will enable the Group to properly confront
the threats and challenges arising from the market with austerity
measures and it will be able to lay a solid foundation for the future
development of the Group.

1. 2011 Results Overview

2011 major results figures:

Unit
Results Figures KREYE B
Turnover ZEA HK$ million
BEET
GFA completed FRNBRIERE sg.m.
during the year SE K

BHEREEERAR - —T——FFR

—E—F EMETEEES L ARR
BES

A

ZOBEHMETEREBRE  THEA
REREYR AEEEFRBHEMIER
s ZFRE - ZBRATEFELY
XXBEER BHIORETWENEEE
BREER BRrEECXEREN -

BEN—F BERMESREHEEFEE
BREE-EFE MEHN KEZEXER
8,008,000,000% 7T - % £ )4 41 1,430,000,000
BT -BFANEE- ZBBTRFEER
HREBZBEEIBLEL BLLESR
R BZTREImEREF KPP
EPIFMEENMABEEDERENE B
MELEERRARASEZZRE I
RMGAEBROBEMKE - XN
AEBERERBERMTEHE -

1. —ZE2E——FXEHE

ZE - —FEFBLEEEZHT
2011 2010 Year-on-Year
—E-F G4
14,379 (44)%
611,569 1,366,079 (55)%
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2. Business Review

2. ¥KEE

Turnover

Being restricted by the tightening austerity measures in the first-
and the second-tier cities, the market reversed quickly. During the
reporting period, the results of the Group declined, the GFA
delivered during the year was 391,277 sq.m., while the Group
recorded a turnover of HK$8,008 million.

Enhancing the performance-price ratio and the added value of
products were the keys to capture the market and customers, and
these were our perseverant operational strategies which helped to
record a satisfactory recognized selling price for the Group. During
the reporting period, the average selling price of recognized sales of
the Group was RMB15,175 per sg.m..

During the reporting period, in order to tackle the market with
tightening austerity measures, the Group strictly controlled its
production according to the sales capacity. We endeavored to
reduce the market fluctuation and risk concentration, so that the
Group enlarged its business scale progressively in the second- and
third-tier cities which were affected to a relatively less extent by the
austerity measures. And as we had to respond to the changes in
market demand, we optimized our product mix of sales in the
regions with the austerity measures. The proportion of small to
medium sized properties was increased to satisfy the regular
demand in the market. For the development of investment
properties, we based on the cash flow arrangement of the market
and of the Group to make the investment and the development in
a moderate manner. We also adopted flexible operational strategies
in order to reduce an excessive pressure on cash flow. It is expected
that investment properties will contribute a large amount of cash
flow to the Group, so that there will be a coordinated development
among the properties for sale and investment properties.
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2. Business Review (continued) 2. ¥XEE®

Turnover (Continued) 1 ONC )

Thanks to the strategic transformation and the timely adjustment TR ER ISR AL RN E

on operational corporate strategies, during the reporting period, BAE REHRN NEEZ it

the Group achieved a more balanced business plan with BomMMEKHBEEALE  ERG

geographically diversified distribution and a more reasonable % BERAE BETHRENAOHEE

product portfolio. A satisfactory average contracted selling price HEMEZENCEARAELEELR - M

and a substantial amount of unrecognized contracted sales were B EENANHEEER MELERA

recorded. We expect that the rising contracted selling price and the NBEFTERAR BAERKEBEKE

gradual recognition of deferred revenue will bring the Group FHEERE U BERKEOE KR

outstanding results, which will be reflected in the upcoming L h 8 RIEEIE o

financial reports.

Turnover by geographical locations: REHE D ZEEWA

2011 2010
—E——F —_E—F
HK$ million  Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)

Region ith @ BEBTT e (%) BEBTT EE 51 (%)
Southern China ER R g 5,135 36
Northern China ESld=go 6,352 44
Eastern China O @ i 2,892 20
Total &5t 8,008 100 14,379 100

During the reporting period, the Group’s focus in the three Core

Economic Zones and the strategy of balanced distribution proved to

be successful. Southern China, eastern China and northern China
contributed HK$2,761 million, HK$1,964 million and HK$3,283
million to the Group’s revenue respectively.

Turnover by business segments:

WMEHAN AEB U =REHEE AR
EhOEBHOEMREKEE
5 R R A EE AL E
DRI E B T 27611 B L 19.6418 8
TTR3283EBILHEZERA -

BEBGE D ZEEWA

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF

HK$ million  Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
Business Segment EEER BEAET ke Bl (%) BEAT LE 511(%)
Sales of properties MEHEE 13,696 95
Rental income U A 92
Property management income — #J¥& M Ug A 411 3
Income from hotel operation B IE & E A 180
Total &5t 14,379 100
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2. Business Review (Continued) 2. ¥%EEe
Turnover (Continued) % % LI& A (%)
During the reporting period, the Group's strategy to optimize WEBHRN KEBE/LWALRE-
income structure and balance various sources of income had proven HEERBEBKRARBEERERN —F
to be successful. In 2011, income from property development was I, T —-—FEYPEBRRERKRAS
HK$7,170 million, income from property management was HK$490 7,170,000,000/8 7T ' MEEBRWA A
million, income from property investment and income from hotel 490,000,000 7T WEKLE WA LB
operation were HK$148 million and HK$200 million respectively. JEEZ I A D Bl A148,000,0007% 7T &
200,000,0007% 7T ©
Turnover by major projects: HIXEBEHE S ZEEIWA
2011 2010
—E2——F —ZT—-F
HK$ million  Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
Project Name HEEB BEAET ke il (%) BEET EE 511 (%)
Beijing Kylin Zone Jb B At 235 2
Shanghai Hopson Town EBEERB 233 2
Beijing No. 8 Royal Park IREETEKSR 4,057 28
Shanghai Sheshan Dongziyuan AR RER 324 2
Huizhou Regal Bay BEMERE 960 7
Guangzhou Huanan New City J& M 2= 7 F 20 -
Huizhou Golf Manor BINEEEREAHER 93 1
Huizhou Hopson BINEE
International New City B 3T 9k 214 1
Beijing Hopson IERa%E
International Garden BRIE 492 3
Guangzhou Pleasant View Garden E N2 52 575 4
Others Hib 7,176 50
Total A3 14,379 100

Asset Seascape Residence

BUEMEERLE
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2. Business Review (Continued)

Turnover (Continued)

Contracted sales by major projects:

BHEAREBARAR - —T——FFH

2. ¥KMOkEE 4w

EEIWA @
BEEEA BN A NNE

2011 2010
—E2-—-F —T—BF
HKS$ million  Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
Project Name HEE® BEAET ke Bl (%) BEAT EE 511(%)
Beijing No. 8 Royal Park ItREEB TSR 2,534 20
Beijing Dreams World 1 St A 1,166 9
Huizhou Regal Bay BINwRE 601 5
Shanghai Hopson Town EBE ERF 1,137 9
Ningbo Hopson International City 28 )7 & 4 B BR 45 1,066 8
Cixi The Town of Hangzhou Bay  Z&)Z & 4 i /&
P SET 98K — —
Beijing Kylin Zone b o B B 604 5
Guangzhou Hopson BEIMNE 4
Regal International = BB — .
Guangzhou Hopson Plaza BINE £ ES — -
Huizhou Hopson BMEE
International New City B 3T 309 2
Others H ity 5,333 42
Total A&t 12,750 100
Project Completion Volume IREREIE
Completed Area in 2011: —E-—FAXTIEE:
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
Area  Ratio (%) Area Ratio (%)
Region & [ ke B (%) (IR LE 511 (%)
sq.m. sq.m.
FH K 7K
Southern China #E 5 @ I 283,340 554,440 41
Northern China b [@ 15 231,373 453,987 33
Eastern China ERES 96,856 357,652 26
Total &t 611,569 1,366,079 100
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2. Business Review (continued)

Project Completion Volume (Continued)

Property Development Completion Schedule (Projected):

Project Name

Beijing Regal Court

No. 8 Royal Park

Beijing Desheng Building

Kylin Zone

Dreams World

Yuhe Project

Hopson World Garden

Regal Park

Regal Court

Beijing Miyun

Jingjin New Town

Hopson Belvedere Bay

Tianjin Hopson International Tower

Tianjin Hopson International
Mansion

Dongli Lake Project

Dalian Hopson Regal Seashore

Hopson Ziyue Mansion

Seasky Villa

Hopson Town

Sheshan Dongziyuan

Hopson Yuting Garden

Hopson International Plaza

Shanghai Songjiang
Guangfulin Project

Shanghai Pudong Sanlin Project

Asset Seascape Residence

Hopson Yiting

HEEW

ERHIFTR
AEEEKSHR
EREBERE
BB AT

A

EAIEE

A RIEER
EEBI®S
RRER
EtRERE
TR
BEERE
REGEBBARE
XEALEBBEAS

REMER
RESETILTR
BEEUA
REA

BHEEH
RIREKE
BEHER
BHEBERES
BT EEHIER

EFBHER=MIER
BEVEBRAE
BEEE

2. X0

o=
IRREIE %

2012
Completed
Area

—E -
TIEE
(sq.m.)
(FF75K)

32,748
13,836
154,450

46,067

74,355
47,966
13,082

19,179

MEFE T TEREGER) -

2013
Completed
Area

—EF—=F
TELIEE
(sg.m.)
(FF772K)
320,818
53,542

182,095
51,951
148,855

261,860

18,581

55,497
10,716
64,463

133,486

99,459
128,038
124,703

2014
Completed
Area

—EF—NNF
EIEE
(sg.m.)
(F 75 K)
37,425

81,991
96,415

233,815

141,573
83,000
27,359

345,944

136,053

2015

and after
Completed
Area
—ZE—hF
Ko LA 18
TELIEE
(sq.m.)
(FF772K)
248,843
230,571
23,901
155,995
10,000
26,085
88,927
138,021
12,327
3,517,075
197,590
158,939

1,130,000
161,490
250,666
816,085

400,954
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2. X0

2. Business Review (continued)

Project Completion Volume (Continued)

Property Development Completion Schedule (Projected): (Continued) RS TEEGESH : (88)

2015

2012 2013 2014 and after

Completed  Completed Completed Completed

Area Area Area Area

—E—T1F

- ZETE-Z=F —T-NEF N LA 1%

Project Name HRER TLEE STILEE e LHEE e LHEE
(sgq.m.) (sg.m.) (sgq.m.) (sg.m.)

(73 2K) (75 K) (F 7 K) (F 7 K)

Hopson International City A A B BRI 187,553 — — 209,838
The Town of Hangzhou Bay A UM E BRI 74,760 257,209 229,320 2,129,175
Hopson Sea Block BEMNE 39,608 120,462 — —
Gallopade Park “=IEE — — — 439,529
Pleasant View Garden = — — — 69,437
Huanan New City Eqraps i 20,474 11,634 14,514 1,495,144
Gallopade Park — South Court B — — 8,735 83,903
Regal Riviera WI®s — 74,659 — 690,772
Regal Villa k=g i 20,400 36,862 22,743 —
Junjing Bay EEE 180,040 — — 408,484
Hopson Plaza BHES 78,809 144,287 — 5,373
Hopson Xijing Banshan AEHEE=H — 100,000 — 1,094,880
Guangzhou Jiufo Machao Project &M L8 & 818 B — — — 193,513
Hopson Regal International AETFEEB 98,480 — — —
Hushan Guoji Villa S L B B 13,629 10,419 351,694 889,686
Qianjin Road Project A HE RS IE B — — — 244,300
TIT Project (Industrial Park) TITHEE (EXR) — 157,056 227,291 —
Huizhou Golf Manor EEEBARER 41,110 189,794 210,034 1,447,970
Huizhou Regal Bay == 177,995 60,674 — 146,063
Hopson International New City A A B BRET 80,837 136,301 137,263 522,649
Wangxiangying Project EEEIAE — — — 1,383,667
Shidai City iSE R — 173,856 121,663 1,181,579
Binhai City VpisE 143,120 133,851 153,163 1,221,195
Regal Court W= 12,507 48,367 — 51,749
Zhongshan Dongkeng Project LR STIE B — — — 537,257
Zhongshan Rainbow Project LRI AR E| — 42,205 — 437,294
Total K2 1,571,005 3,351,700 2,659,995 22,450,926
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Business Review (continued)

Land Bank

The Group possesses an adequate land bank which is sufficient for
the needs of project development in the upcoming eight to ten
years. An abundant land bank is one of the Group’s core
competencies to sustain persistent growth and high investment
value. It is also the prerequisite to be more prudent in land
acquisition for us. During the reporting period, in order to maintain
a balanced product portfolio and enrich the product mix further,
the Group acquired 3 land plots with development area of 1,526,674
sg.m. in the first-tier cities such as Beijing, Guangzhou and Tianjin.
Moreover, the Group acquired a parcel of land with development
area of 160,070 sq.m. in the second- and the third-tier cities with
vast potential. As at 31st December 2011, the land bank of the
Group was 31.91 million sg.m., which is sufficient for the rapid
development of the Group in the future.

The following is the new land that the acquisitions have been

¥KERE e

+ it 5

AEEHEBERTTH T HEE THEE
RNE+FEEBBRRME 2511
RERERASERBERERSR
ﬁ{ﬁ@@/uﬁa&ﬁ*ﬂ — thEHM
EFAEEMNRB LRI - RS
Hﬁm RERBEMTERE—STESE
ERnFx® AEEELR EM-
iﬁ*u?ﬁﬁ%ﬁiafﬂlmiﬂﬂ Hj'ﬁ:t
R AE1,526,674F 5K W HEHE
BNRRKN -  Z@RBRm#HIL—E L+
Hb - AT 4 2% R B 160,070 5 K o 1
—E——F+_-_A=+—H £K&EH
AT HFHEEIINBFER K THAm
EEBRRRRERMTE °

—E-—FERRBEHE L ED

completed in 2011: T~
Group’s Gross
Project Name Interest Location of Project Floor Area Saleable Area
HAEB rEBzERZ EHAME EEEE AHEEEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FF 75 3K) (F 75 3K)
Beijing Miyun 100% East Zishan Reservoir, Bulaotun 12,327 12,327
EtREE Village Miyun County
FEZTEEE L FKERA
Hopson Sea Block 100% No. 588, Longjiang Road, Taicang 160,070 160,070
BEHE A B BT B 58855
Dongli Lake Project 100% East Chitu of Chitu Town, 1,130,000 1,130,000
REEHIEE Dongli Avenue North,
Dongli Lake West,
Dongli District, Tianjin
RKERERFRLERLHE -
REAREUL - REMNAR
TIT Project (Industrial Park) 65% Dawo Village, Tanbu Town, 384,347 384,347
TTIER (E%E) Huadu District
TEHP IR o 2 A S OB A
Total 1,686,744 1,686,744

a5t
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2. Business Review (continued)

Land Bank (Continued)

Land acquisition contracts signed but the

acquisitions were not

BHEREBEERAF -

¥KOEEe

T E e
BESHRETREEAR T —

—E——FFH

completed by the end of 2011: —EEEER
Group's Gross
Project Name Interest Location of Project Floor Area Saleable Area
HE AR AEEZERZ HBEMLE EEEE THHEEER
(sq.m.) (sg.m.)
(PHK)  (FHK)
TIT Project (International Park) 65% No. 489, Xingang Middle Road, 500,000 500,000
TTIEE (RIEE) Haizhu District, Guangzhou City
J& N T 8 BK [ 37 78 3K 489 5%
Tea Factory 100% No. 1300, Jungong Road, Shanghai 33,024 33,024
REM BEETIE&13005%
Total 533,024 533,024
a3t
Usage and Location BRI E
Saleable Area (million sq.m.)
AHEEER(BEEFHK)
Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing Tianjin Shanghai Ningbo Total
[& M =M = RiE L& EiK BEr
Residential = 6.47 6.50 2.92 5.16 3.20 0.35 24.60
Shopping arcade 7 ## 0.86 0.21 0.34 0.19 0.59 0.02 2.21
Office /N 0.19 — 0.27 0.21 0.16 — 0.83
Car parks FHE %5 1.14 0.99 0.28 0.22 0.75 0.03 3.41
Hotels iy 0.16 0.22 0.29 0.14 0.05 — 0.86
Total #Et 8.82 7.92 4.10 5.92 4.75 0.40 31.91
Development Status and Location FR MR R
Saleable Area (million sq.m.)
AHEEER(BEETFHXK)
Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing Tianjin Shanghai  Ningbo Total
&M =M = RiE i R st
Completed Properties 2 & B ¥ % 0.50 0.25 0.40 0.41 0.31 — 1.87
Properties under BRPYE
development 1.13 0.86 1.42 0.73 1.37 0.40 5.91
Properties to be TERME
developed 7.19 6.81 2.28 4.78 3.07 — 24.13
Total wEr 8.82 7.92 4.10 5.92 4.75 0.40 31.91
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2. Business Review (Continued)

Usage and Location (Continued)

Development Status and Usage

Saleable Area (million sq.m.)

ATHEERR (BB FHXK)

2. ¥%EEE e

AERE®)

BRI K &

Shopping
Residential arcade Office Car parks Hotels Total
= wWH WAZE  FEHIG B IR #et
Completed Properties B E 0.78 0.34 0.22 0.26 0.27 1.87
Properties under BRPYE
development 4.1 0.47 0.43 0.63 0.27 5.91
Properties to be TREDE
developed 19.71 1.4 0.18 2.52 0.32 24.13
Total @5t 24.60 2.21 0.83 3.41 0.86 31.91
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2. Business Review (Continued)

Usage and Location (Continued)

Title Status and Location

Saleable Area (million sq.m.)

2.

BHEREBEERAF -

¥KE e

AERbE®)
FT B B Rt 2

THHEERR (BB FHXK)

—E——FFH

Guangzhou® Huizhou Beijing” Tianjin Shanghai® Ningbo Total
= =M =D PN= L£i5® B AF
Land use rights certificates £ S+ (s 55
and construction works KERTIR
planning permits BB EY
obtained” 1.88 1.64 1.48 0.54 1.87 0.40 7.81
Land use rights certificates 2 HS £ b (e A&
obtained but without BARIE
construction works ERTIERE
planning permits? FrarE? 3.73 488 1.29 2.04 1.74 —  13.68
Construction land use BESEEZ A
planning permits BB EYD
obtained®® — — 0.77 — 0.05 — 0.82
Grant of major approvals  BFEZH# X
and certificates not rEEZ
yet obtained“®® b @e© 3.21 1.40 0.56 3.34 1.09 — 960
Total Bt 8.82 7.92 4.10 5.92 4.75 0.40 3191

33
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2.

Business Review (Continued)

Usage and Location (Continued)

Title Status and Location (Continued)

Notes:

(1) Relevant land use rights certificates and construction works planning permits
have been granted.

) Relevant land use rights certificates have been granted while the appertaining
construction works planning permits have not yet been obtained.

(3) Relevant construction land use planning permits have been granted. However,
the land use rights certificates have not yet been obtained and will only be
secured upon execution of the relevant land transfer contracts and payment of
land premium.

(4) Only upon completion of the land grant procedures (e.g. obtainment of the
construction land use planning permits, and the execution of land transfer
contracts) and the payment of the appertaining land premium will the land use
rights certificates be obtained.

(5) For payment status of land premium, please refer to notes 22 and 40 to the
financial statements.

(6) The Group has established a sino-foreign co-operative joint venture and
acquired Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Limited in the PRC for the development
and construction of residential and commercial properties on a site of
approximately 2,560 Chinese acres in Panyu of Guangzhou City, Guangdong
Province. Among which, the land use rights of approximately 1,060 Chinese
acres were transferred to the Group and approximately 1,500 Chinese acres
were under the process of transfer application from the transferor to the
Group. Such application has been submitted for approval by the government
bureau and is currently pending for review by the government bureau.

(7) Including Dalian, Shanxi Taiyuan and Qinhuangdao.
8) Including Hangzhou, Kunshan, Taicang and Cixi.

9) Including Zhongshan.

The above analysis of the land bank of the Group by saleable area is
based on its internal records only and without any independent
verification.

¥KEEE e

AERE 4w
FT B A R Hb B (48

Hiat

() BEEEHELHEHERREIERL
A

(2) EERERALMERFZFEERZZRT
FEAR &5 B 2 AR HRAF

(3) EBERFHNZRMMEEFAZ H
7 15 R B A L 4 (& 3% - T B B
THEAEREHEETLIBERES AR
17 B B+ 1 11 3% 2 12 BR7F

4) THEAFERTH LR ESF (0
BRI B FFAIEREIT LI HEEE
B RX AT EBLI M #E R &7 TR

(5)  THMHEDZZAMRIEDERE R E22
R 40 -

6) AEFERFELTFIEEE E LS
R T EEHTIEHELRNE KU R
BREENTHE R — 18425608 .2 i
v EREREEEEAGAYE  HA
#91,060 8 19 F 1 (Z /5 # B #F 2 K £ B 5
T A91,500 0 69 1 Hf IF 7F A7 $% 58 77 B 7
WEFMFEEAREEE TR BEF - 15
B EEEABTEPI EHEE - B AT
IFIEESFBTEPT a9 B H B FE A+ -

(7))  BEXE WAXRRFZLE -
8  EENN Bl  XBERFEEX-
9  BEFU-

b AAEE LG S R
{5 3 T 30 PR BB KL O BB A2 AR 3t
BB -
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3. Principal Business Strategies in 2012 3.

Striving for the target of operating results
under the influence of austerity measures and
industrial fluctuation

In 2012, it is expected that the policy of austerity will not be shifted
or loosened in terms of its direction and intensity. In line with the
changes of the policy, the Group will continue to sustain our
prudence to confront the internal and external challenges
proactively. The projected completion area is 1.57 million sgq.m in
2012 and it is expected that the turnover of the Group in 2012 will
increase substantially on the basis of the foundation built up in
2011.

A Steady financial operation to upgrade the
standard of asset management

In 2012, the Group will continue to uphold a prudent attitude as
the principle of the overall financial operation. Simultaneously, we
will strengthen our effort to centralize the coordination and
management of our financial processes, optimize our internal
management structure, achieve a high efficiency in resources
allocation and usage, and strengthen the control on operational
and financial risks. Given the tough situation caused by austerity
measures, the Group will upgrade its standard of asset management
and optimize the mode of sales operation. Our aims are to increase
the asset turnover rate and enhance the input-output efficiency. It
ensures that the Group could operate steadily and achieve a
sustainable development.
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3. Principal Business Strategies in 2012 (continued)

Integrating the product mix to increase the
investment income

For the future development, the Group will devote ourselves whole-
heartedly in integrating and optimizing the product mix with our 20
years of valuable experience in the industry. We hope that the risks
brought by the policies can then be avoided and the risks of
investments can be diversified. In line with the development of the
market, the overall level of investment income of the Group will be
increased. While we are optimizing and integrating our product
mix, we will continue to improve our product’s quality. Through
optimizing and refining our management system as well as ensuring
the quality of construction and the strict standard of project
acceptance, the Group will strive for providing properties with
higher quality to the market and customers, and sustain our leading
position among our peers.

Reinforcing the brand building to enhance the
value of the brand

Given the conditions of the increasingly intense competition on the
market, the Group fully understand that enhancing the product’s
added value is the only way to stand out from the competition. In
the future, the Group will continue to put our efforts on
strengthening the brand building so that the corporate culture and
the core values of the brand can merge perfectly. We will infuse this
ideal perfection into every single project which is invested and
developed by our Group. And we will strive to furnish more quality
products with high added value to the market and consumers.

BE-—FRTAETENE
RHERZH =
PaNy
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=

Em&ER RBARE

ERENERT  SESER -4
MERZEETERLR BEZ IR
EABLEEERGE UHETR
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MEER RASEREEBNER
WamkF - HEGBEEEBERSE
BORE BRMATEEERSERE
E BBEBLEBRBER TZEREY
E-HRIEEE BBIRERY
NFRTEREEEEREREME
KB RITERLNKRT -
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3. Principal Business Strategies in 2012 (continued)

Emphasizing a balanced development among
the business segments

In the future, the Group will continue to consolidate the revenue
from property developments, property investments as well as equity
investments. At the same time, we will achieve a balanced
development of the above three major sources of revenue, in order
that the Group can operate steadily in the long run and achieve a
reasonable, stable and healthy growth in terms of revenue.

Replenishing the land bank in a prudent and
moderate manner

The market and the industry are adjusting in volatile conditions,
therefore, the Group will pay close attention, with prudence and
composure, to the market changes. We are actively exploring
quality land resources which match with the plan of the Group’s
strategic development. We will keep the flexibility in land acquisition
and consolidate the revenue generated from the major first-tier
cities. Meanwhile, we will continue to optimize the investment plan
in second-and third-tier cities in order to satisfy the needs of
development for the upcoming three to five years.

Corporate Governance

The Group is committed to improving its corporate governance and
transparency and at the same time enhancing the shareholders’
interests. During the period, the management and respective
committees continued to operate in accordance with the “Code on
Corporate Governance Practices” under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Details of the corporate governance report of the Group is set out
on pages 109 to 119 of the Annual report.

—ER-—HFERTAETEMNE
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Awards

During the period, value investment remained as the theme of the
Group, we were keen to boost our brand image and value. The “China
Real Estate Top 10 Research Team” published the “Research Results
of 2011 listed PRC Developers”, and the Company was re-elected
top 3in “2011 Top 10 HK-listed PRC Developers in terms of Overall
Strength” and was among the top 3 in “2011 Top 10 HK-listed PRC
Developers in terms of wealth creation capability”. We also won top
5in “2011 Top 10 HK-listed PRC Developers in terms of investment
value” and ranked top 3 in “2011 Top 10 PRC Developers in terms
of Brand Value”. The brand of the Group was highly praised by the
market and the society. We received the following titles and awards:
“2011 CIHAF Reputable PRC Developer”, “2011 Star of Xinhua —
Reputable Developer”, “2011 PRC Developers’ Reputation Ranking
— Public Opinion Award for Enterprise Value”, “Top 10 Leading
Developers in terms of Overall Strength”, “2011 PRC Real Estate
Enterprise Annual Overall Ranking — Annual Golden Enterprise”,
Benchmarking Awards — Responsible Developer”, “2011
Influencing Power-The Most Influential Real Estate Brand Awards”,
“"The Most Contributed Developers in Guangdong Style — Gold
Award"”, “Southern China: the Welfare Innovation Enterprise for the
year”.

We were so glad that the projects in different regions were widely
recognized and well received by the markets and the community,
for instance, the No. 8 Royal Park in Beijing was awarded the “2011
Star of Xinhua — Top Landmark”, “PRC Property Collection
Awards” and “The Real Estate Project of the Year”. For the Dreams
World Project, it was awarded “2011 Top 10 of The Most Influential
Project for Sale”, “lLeading Real Estate Enterprise — Hot-Sale
Property”, and “Benchmarking Property”. The Wanjing Project won
“The Most Distinguished Commercial Property”, while the World
Garden won the “2011 PRC Real Estate Enterprise Annual Overall
Ranking — Golden Award” and “Benchmarking Real Estate
Enterprise- Benchmarking Properties”. The Regal Park was awarded
“2011 Influencing Power — The Most Expected Projects”; the
Shanghai Sheshan Dongziyuan was granted “PRC Property
Collection Awards”; the Hopson Yuting Garden received the title of
“The Standard Villa of China e International Premium Community”;
Regal International in Guangzhou was honored to award “2011
Real Estate Network Ceremony — Benchmarking Property of the
Year”, “The Top 10 of Guangdong Leading Residential Property
Brand”; the Regal Villa received “The 2011 Real Estate Oscar ® Top
10 of the Best Property in Guangdong”; and the Hopson Plaza got
“2011 The Most Valuable Commercial Property for investment in
Guangzhou”
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6. Appreciation 6. =3
| would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our management AAZBUEEEEBNEMNE THMNEH
and all staff members for their commitments and dedications to the EOEEIN F i
Group.

Zhang Yi B F

Deputy Chairman REE

Hong Kong, 30th March 2012 E& —E——F=A=1+H

Sheshan Dongziyuan in Shanghai
BRI R KA
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Py 2 i At

Beijing bt

1.

2.

3.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Beijing Regal Court
IERWIFR

Citta Eterna

Hopson International Garden
& EBRIEE

No. 8 Royal Park
a4 B KR

Beijing Dongfangwenhua Project

JERER A XEIER
Beijing Desheng Building
EREBAE

Kylin Zone

BHBAL

Dreams World

5

Yuhe Project

FAIEE

Hopson World Garden
HEHRIER

Regal Park
BHEBITR

Regal Court

TR

Beijing Miyun
MEFREE

Tianjin X#

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Jingjin New Town
SO

Hopson Belvedere Bay
BERSHE

Tianjin Hopson International
Tower
RESEBBRAE
Tianjin Hopson
International Mansion
RESERBEASE
Dongli Lake Project
REHIER

Dalian K&

19. Dalian Hopson Regal Seashore

RNESETINTR

Taiyuan XJ&

20.

Qinhuangdao £ 8

21.

Hopson Ziyue Mansion

BERGMT

Seasky Villa
REA

- Annual Report 2011

Huanbohai economic zone

B3 Bene

Qinhuangdao

Beijing =1 ol
bR | apan
. K
- ]
Tianjin
Taiyuan Rz
KR
]

Yangtze River Delta economic zone

RI=AMann
Taicang

Kunshan K&
B | — Shanghai
Hangzhou B o5
o M
Cixi
ey Ningbo

ER

Pearl River Delta Economic Zone

BI=ZAMenm

Guangzhou
M - Huizhou
u =M
||

Zhongshan
fl



Shanghai £&

22. Hopson Town
& EL

23. Hopson Golf Mansion
EESRAAE

24, Sheshan Dongziyuan

25. Hopson Lantern Villa
AR

26. International Garden
B ERFRIER

27. Hopson Dongjiao Villa
aHERHNE

28. Hopson Yuting Garden
B EHER

29. Hopson International Plaza

BERERES

Gallopade Park
Sk =AEE
Pleasant View Garden
Huanan New City
FEEITHM
Gallopade Park — South Court
5( ?ﬁ%lz
Regal Riviera
HIms
Regal Palace
TR AD
Yijing Huayuan
[E e
Guangzhou Zhujiang
International Tower
BN TR A E
Yunshan Xijing
ElER
Regal Villa
T L

30. Hopson Fortune Plaza
SEMERS

31.  Shanghai Songjiang Guangfulin Project
B TIESMIER

32. Shanghai Pudong Sanlin Project
EERR=MIER

33. Asset Seascape Residence
/\/_:Eﬁj EEI/iE/_\

Hangzhou #t N

34. Hopson World Trade Centre
NG EBE L

Kunshan E W
35. Hopson Yiting
& AREE

Junjing Bay

=
Hopson Plaza
BHEES
Hopson Xijing Banshan
BEERFIL
Guangzhou Jiufo Machao Project
BN A R
Hopson Regal International
B TR B
Hushan Guoji Villa
L BB
Qianjin Road Project
RIERRIA R
TIT Project (Industrial Park)
TTIEE (EXE)

Huizhou Golf Manor

SESRREE

BERAIREEARAR - —T——FFH
Ningbo 2§
36. Hopson International City
B 4 BRI

Cixi %2
37. The Town of Hangzhou Bay
B M B BRI

Taicang X&
38. Hopson Sea Block
AELE

Huizhou Regal Bay

BT =E

Hopson International New City
& BTN
Wangxiangying Project
E18EIEE

Shidai City

R

Binhai City

B

Regal Court

TR

Zhongshan Dongkeng Project
FILRTTIER

Zhongshan Rainbow Project

IR AR A
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6. Beijing Desheng Building
EREHAE

7. KylinZone
PR At

8. Dreams World
R A

9. Yuhe Project
A IE R

10. Hopson World Garden
BHEHERIEE

11. Regal Park
EERBRLITER

12. Regal Court
R R

13. Beijing Miyun

tREZE

Beijing Regal Court * JtHEIHR

23, West Dawang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)

It REGEE ALK 235 (FEH100%EH)

Dongsishitiao
Rty o O

ZIRPEK

Chaoyang Park
L C PN

Chaowainan Street

E W m H

N. Chaoyang Road
B3 IE R

Ritan Park H Chaoyang Road
RN oy

Beijing Youyi Shop Chaoyang District
R E E[5 B

Jianguo Road

Dongsanhuanzhong Rd. 5

Jianguomenwaida St.

BRI AE

- 12
Guanggqumenwaida St. 5
I 5 5 P8 AN A 5 Guangqu Road & & &
Jingsong Road Nan Mofang Road & = %

I SRR

IR
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 110,493
HRATREBTI Construction to be completed
e —T—AFRIE in 2015 and after 248,843
RZT——F+=A Land bank as at

=t+t—HzLH#HE 31st December 2011 359,336




"

- =

I

BHEREEERAR - —T——FFR

Citta Eterna s B EER

107, Chaoyang Bei Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
3t = EARE B EA 5 4k 25 107 5% (5 100% #E )

FroK
Sg.m.

BT Construction completed 18,034

R-_E—F+=8 Land bank as at

=t+—B2 LA 31st December 2011 18,034

Hopson International Garden « &4 EETEE

31, Guangqumenwaida Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
B RERMIPKREIR (FEHE100%EH)

IR

Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 4,674
R—ZZE——F+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BZIEE 31st December 2011 4,674
No. 8 Royal Park » &4 EERIK8Ik
8, Xiaoyun Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (80% owned)
T REBBESEHSH (HEF80% ER)

Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 29,402
BRATRERBTI Construction to be completed
o — T —— in 2012 32,748
e T =4 in 2013 320,818
e — T —[OFE in 2014 37,425
e _E—FERIAE in 2015 and after 230,571
R-_ZET——F+_-A4 Land bank as at
=+—B2 T HEE 31st December 2011 650,964

Beijing Dongfangwenhua Project « t RS XEIEH

West Side of the East Second Ring Road, Dongcheng District, Beijing (97% owned)
ETRRBEBR-REEM (FEFI7%ER)
Fr5k
Sg.m.

BT Construction Completed 141,343

R-BE——F+= A8 Land bank as at
=t+t—BztiREE 31st December 2011 141,343
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Beijing Desheng Building ¢ JtRiEXE

No. 11 Deshengmenwai Street, Xicheng District, Beijing (100% owned)

b E AR ER PSR HT 1155 (B 100% &)
IR
Sg.m.
HRATEREBTI Construction to be completed
—ZT—=F in 2013 53,542
WN—ZT——&+=H1 Land bank as at
=t+—HztwFEE 31st December 2011 53,542
Kylin Zone « EiESiTt
Interchange of Wanjing Street and Futong West Street,
Wangjing, Beijing (100% owned)
TREFEBARAFNERHIER (HEF100%E %)
K
Sg.m.
Ean Construction Completed 22,281
HRATERBTI Construction to be completed
—ZT——F in 2012 13,836
—E-RFRNE in 2015 and after 23,901
WZT——%+_H1 Land bank as at
=T—Hz e 31st December 2011 60,018

Dreams World ¢ 1 R+

500 metres south of the bridge, No. 1, Majuqgiao, Majugiao Town,
Liangshui River south, Yizhuang, Tongzhou District, Beijing (100% owned)

36 5 M & I R KOR 7 55 B AB SIS B 4B 1 5 B R 500K (BEH 100% 1 55)
K
Sg.m.
BxL Construction completed 9,998
HERIATEBTT Construction to be completed
e T ——F in 2012 154,450
T —=4F in 2013 182,095
e —_T—FERIAE in 2015 and after 155,995
W_ZT——F+_H Land bank as at
=t+—B2Z LA 31st December 2011 502,538
Yuhe Project » EFIEH
Plot 11, Southern District of Yuhe Wenbao Area, Dongcheng District,
Beijing (100% owned)
TR EENRGEANEE 11551 58 (EHF 100% E &)
Fhk
Sg.m.
HERIA TR T Construction to be completed
e —E—FHEFERUE in 2015 and after 10,000
R=ZT——F+=A Land bank as at
=T—Hz e 31st December 2011 10,000




ol
B
B
B
=
B
o
]

§
Tt

LR

BHEREEERAR - —T——FFR

Hopson World Garden « &4 it R1EEH

500 metres south of the bridge, No. 1 Majugiao, Yizhuang,
Tongzhou District, Beijing (100% owned)
ERBENER I EEFEE 1575 500°K (FEH 100% #E5)

IR
Sg.m.
BHRATEBTI Construction to be completed
e —FT—= in 2013 51,951
e — T —[JUF in2014 81,991
« —E—RHERLIE in 2015 and after 26,085
R_ZE——%+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HzLtHHE 31st December 2011 160,027

Regal Park e &4 FE/IHFR

Qiaozhuang Village, Yongshun Town, Tongzhou District, Beijing (100% owned)
EREMEKIEEB AN (BEH100% )

AR
Sg.m.
AR A TR T Construction to be completed
o — T —= in 2013 148,855
e —ZT—F in2014 96,415
e —T—HFRUNE in 2015 and after 88,927
N-ZZE——F+=H Land bank as at
=+t—BzZtiFEE 31st December 2011 334,197

Regal Court B3R

Xin Tian Jia Yuan South Zone, No. 21, West Dawang Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing (100% owned)
TRHERAREEMEFAEEDE (FHE 100% E )

IR
Sg.m.
N S Construction to be completed
—E—FHERE in 2015 and after 138,021
R-_E——F+—8 Land bank as at
=tT—Hz TS 31st December 2011 138,021
Beijing Miyun ¢ Jt RESE
East of Shanzi Reservoir, Bulaotun Village Miyun County (100% owned)
REBTELERLFKRERA (FEHE100%#ERH)
IR
Sg.m.
HERIAT BT T Construction to be completed
e —E—FFERIE in 2015 and after 12,327

RZF——F+=A Land bank as at
=+ —Hz e 31st December 2071 12,327
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Tianjin
==

\

Baodi District

= =]
ﬁtﬁli __/\
f

KiE

Heping District
NTE

16. Tianjin Hopson International
Tower

REREBRBRARE

17. Tianjin Hopson International
Mansion
REREBBEASE

18. Dongli Lake Project
REHIER

Jingjin New Town * R##ii

No. 1, Zhujiang South Road, Zhouliangzhuang Town, Baodi District, Tianjin
(92.3% owned)
RREEEFHRFHEKTIRE — 5% (EH23%EH)

K
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 248,250
RATEBTET Construction to be completed
e —T—=4F in 2013 261,860
o —T—FFRIE in 2015 and after 3,517,075
RZZE——F+=A Land bank as at

=+ —Hz:mFEE 31st December 2011 4,027,185




¥ '.\tf-

BHEREEERAR - —T——FFR

m Hopson Belvedere Bay * &4 & &

Interchange of Donghai Road and No. 1 Shipcanal, Tanggu Development Zone,
Tianjin (90% owned)
REFELCHBEME EERSRIO(EH0%ER)

IR
Sg.m.
HERIA TR T Construction to be completed
o« — T[4 in 2014 233,815
R-_ZT——%F+_FK Land bank as at
=t+—HBztifEE 31st December 2011 233,815

Tianjin Hopson International Tower « XA+ BB XE

Interchange of Fuan Main Street and Xingan Road, Heping District,
Tianjin (at Beian Bridge) (98.9% owned)
REMFERZATEREAZRERRZ A (L ZEEHE) (HEHI8.9%E )

AN
Sg.m.
AR TR T Construction to be completed
 —T—RFRIUE in 2015 and after 197,590
R-ZE——F+=A Land bank as at
=t—HztifEE 31st December 2011 197,590

Tianjin Hopson International Mansion ¢ X &S 4B

Interchange of Weijin South Road and Shuishang North Road,
Nankai District, Tianjin (100% owned)
REMFEFEMEEK LB O (HFEE100%E %)

TR
Sg.m.
BRATERETT Construction to be completed
« — T —FHERIIE in 2015 and after 158,939
RZT——F+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztHHE 31st December 2011 158,939

Dongli Lake Project « RE#IEH

East Chitu of Chitu Town, Dongli Avenue North, Dongli Lake West,
Dongli District, Tianjin (100% owned)
RERBERATEFINER  REARE UL  REMHUTE (FEHF100%#E5m)

IR
Sg.m.
RATREBTI Construction to be completed
o —TE—FFRUE in 2015 and after 1,130,000
R-—_ZT—F+_=A Land bank as at

=t+—BzZHEE 31st December 2011 1,130,000
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Dalian

\

“Dalian City Centre

RET R

Lushunkou Station

AR E Ok

Dalian Hopson Regal Seashore ¢ XE#E& 4 T ILFR

808, Yanbei Road, Tieshan Town, Lushunkou District, Dalian (100% owned)
KE R E O B £ 1L 48 B8 b 2% 808 5% (¥E B 100% #E i)

TR
Sg.m.
ExL Construction completed 63,999
PR LA TR B 52 T Construction to be completed =
o T — 4 in 2012 46,067 o
o —T—= in 2013 18,581 -
o T in 2014 141,573 e
e _T—FHFENUE in 2015 and after 161,490 .
R-—T——&+=A Land bank as at "

=t+—HztiRHEE 31st December 2011 431,710




Talyuan

AR

20. Hopson Ziyue Mansion
BHERUM

BHEREEERAR - —T——FFR

FJF Provincial Government I
> A BT 2
3 Municipal Government = o
¥ B 8 2
X 3 Es
= o
g &
= =3
s 5w
™ Y %‘L:‘ m
= 8
o a i
w
= kil i
o) =
& =
k) %
é‘ =i Yingpan Street
® HEE R

Il

=5 B

Changfeng Street & & 1

Shanxi University
=
Xuefu Street £ fiF #7 WEAR

Hopson Ziyue Mansion ¢ & 4% %&1RFF

West of Bingzhou Road, East of Tiyu Road and North of Eryingpan Street,
Taiyuan, Shanxi (100% owned)

WA AR RN LATE - BB UIR » — &R E bt (JEH100% )

K
Sg.m.

AR TR T Construction to be completed
e —_T—F in 2014 83,000
e —T—FFERMNUE in 2015 and after 250,666

R-—_ZE—F+—=A1 Land bank as at

=t+—BztEE 31st December 2011 333,666
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Qinhuangdao

EE
— = A ¢

)|
N

Seasky Villa  X#

Intersection of Hebei and Liaoning Provinces, Northwestern coast of
Liaodong Bay (51% owned)
BEREALE HEMEAIRE (FEES1%ER)

FIAK
Sg.m.
NN Construction to be completed
o —_F—= in 2013 55,497
o _T—F in 2014 27,359
e —T—HFRIE in 2015 and after 816,085
R—ZZTE—F+=A Land bank as at

EJ_r— Hz i 31st December 2011 898,941




BHEAREBARAR - —T——FFH

Shanghai
b’

Pudong New District

Shanghai Honggiao International Airport

LTI R S BRI E
Shanghai Civil Aviation Airport

Sheshan
A
N

BEMEES

31. Shanghai Songjiang Guangfulin
Project

EBMTEEMIAR

32. Shanghai Pudong Sanlin Project
FBER=MIER

33. Asset Seascape Residence
EEVEBERAE
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Hopson Town e & %1538

518, Anning Road, Minhang District, Shanghai (100% owned)
LT R R ER 51855 (JEH 100% HE %)

FHoK
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 44,183
BRATERBTL Construction to be completed
e T ——F in 2012 74,355
RZZE——F+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HBztHRFEE 31st December 2011 118,538
Hopson Golf Mansion « 84 E# XA E
1095, Jiangpu Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
£ 15 R & ST 2% 1095 5% (5 100% A& 25)
R
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 7,384
R—ZZE——F+=A Land bank as at
=t —BZLmEFEE 31st December 2011 7,384
Sheshan Dongziyuan UK %E
1189, Linhu Road, Shanghai Sheshan National Holiday Resort,
Shanghai (100% owned)
Bl B SR R B AROM R 118935 (BB 100% #E &%)
Tk
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 44,076
AR A TR T Construction to be completed
o T — 4 in 2012 47,966
e T ——4F in 2013 10,716
R—ZZE——F+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztitEE 31st December 2011 102,758
Hopson Lantern Villa « &4 BAEHE
199, Zhenle Road, Zhaoxiang New City, Qingpu District,
Shanghai (100% owned)
LEEREHEBHIMELK199F (EHF100% E %)
IR
Sg.m.
25xL Construction completed 3,314
RZT——%+=HA Land bank as at
= t+—HzLIHFE 31st December 2011 3,314

BE s & & W & § &

W

:
- -
L]
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International Garden « €4 EEBEE

1290, East Changxing Road, Dongjing, Songjiang District,
Shanghai (94% owned)
BB T RIRE & BLR % 129055 (HEH 94% R i)

Ik
Sg.m.
2wl Construction completed 18,077
RZT——F+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BzZztHEE 31st December 2011 18,077
Hopson Dongjiao Villa « & %X BRIE
7, 699 Nong, Cuibai Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai (100% owned)
FEBERHERAKE99F 75 (A 100% i)
FoK
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 39,976
N-ZE——F+=H Land bank as at
=+—Hz e 31st December 2011 39,976

Hopson Yuting Garden « &4 #ZH

99, Xiangju Road, Zhaoxiang Town, Qingpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
LEEHEEBEBERK9M (FEH100%EiH)

AR
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 20,268
N S Construction to be completed
e —T—_F in 2012 13,082
T —=4F in 2013 64,463
R—ZZE——F+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztH#E 31st December 2011 97,813
Hopson International Plaza « & £ B &S
292 Jiefang, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
- EEBE®E292# 5 (HEH 100% B &%)
Sg.m.
HERIA TS 5T T Construction to be completed
e — T U4 in 2014 345,944
T——&+_—1 Land bank as at

+— Bz i 31st December 2011 345,944




54

Hopson Development Holdings Limited - Annual Report 2011

Hopson Fortune Plaza o & 4 Bt = Ri5

483, Feihong Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai (100% owned)
£ 8T O & 7 4 3% 483 5% (5 100% #E 2%)

K
Sg.m.
L Construction completed 51,200
R-_TE——F+_—H8 Land bank as at
=t+t—Hz LB 31st December 2011 51,200
Shanghai Songjiang Guangfulin Project
e LBV IREMIAE
Lot Nos. 2-5, Guang Fu Lin, Songjiang District, Shanghai (100% owned)
BN IEEEME2ESH (EH100%E )
FHR
Sg.m.
AR IA TS 58 T Construction to be completed
o —FT =4 in 2013 133,486
R—ZZE——%+=A Land bank as at
=t+—Hz iR 31st December 2011 133,486

Shanghai Pudong Sanlin Project » g R=#IEH

Lot A14-1, Sanlin Ji Zhen, Sanlin Zhen, Pudong New District, Shanghai (100% owned)
EBARHFE=ME=MEEA14-1 (FEE100%E =)

K
Sg.m.
NN Construction to be completed
o T =14 in 2013 99,459
R-ZE——F+=A8 Land bank as at
=t+—BZz i E 31st December 2011 99,459
Asset Seascape Residence « S4MEBROLE
Lot E25, Hangzhou Bay Avenue, Longsheng Road, Jinshan New District,
Shanghai (100% owned)
£ 1L BE B B U M B RS T B E25 (A 100% #E35)
Fhk
Sg.m.
BRATERESTT Construction to be completed
e T =4 in 2013 128,038
o — T U5 in 2014 136,053
R-_ZE—F+_A Land bank as at

=t+—HBztifEE 31st December 2011 264,091




BHEAREBARAR - —T——FFH

) : T \
Hangzhou gESEs rJ i s
- EE:4i6) \

\
- \
@Q’%’ Vam Provirm Government ?

Zhejiang University

Hopson World Trade Centre « i &£ ER D

No. 327, Tianmushan Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou (95% owned)
MM FEHE X B 1L EE3273% (BB I5% EH)
FIK
Sg.m.

BT Construction completed 87,456

R-ZTE——F+=-H Land bank as at
=t+—HztiHEE 31st December 2011 87,456
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Kunshan
£ L

Hopson Yiting « &4 &

Yingzhou Road and south of Xintang River Zhoushi Town, Kushan City
(100% owned)
B2 1Ly T /3] h S 3D B % P 55 BT 4 LA (HEH 100% R #)

FIAK
Sg.m.
HE A TR 52 T Construction to be completed
e — T —— in 2012 19,179
o—T—= in 2013 124,703
 —T—RFRINUE in 2015 and after 400,954
R-—_ZF——F+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BZLiEE 31st December 2011 544,836
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%
& Jiangbei District
% 7 i
@ o % (/3/79\%4
pS O)O’ /0(9
%
o
€ @

)l(\ 7 k 20 \)\Oad

& Q—f‘i\% 2000 ey
IS
& «é@%
<

g 035
3 &%
bQ) g\)’é(\

§ 1,‘(\0“Q

e ¥

Zhonggue” Road T2
S e Ningbo University
o ES N
e
- NO

~ L
Kongpu Par
pasm

Jiangdong District

IR
]

Hopson International City « & 4 BB

No. 1, Zhongbao Road, Zhenhai New City, Ningbo (100% owned)
SR ER N EER 15 (#EH100% %)

TR

Sg.m.

BExEL Construction completed 69
BERATERBTL Construction to be completed

e T ——F in 2012 187,553

T —RFRMNUE in 2015 and after 209,838

R=ZT—%F+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztHHE 31st December 2011 397,460
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Cixi City
BE™

+

Ezac]

MSSaidxg 1Bl Uayg

Ae

§

fenssaidxa uif

The Town of Hangzhou Bay e & & #i i Bl B ¥ 16

Northwestern region of Hangzhou Bay New District, Cixi (100% owned)
ZORMMNE B 4L 3 (EH 100% fE )

TR

Sg.m.
AR A TR T Construction to be completed
e T —— 4 in 2012 74,760
T —=F in 2013 257,209
T in 2014 229,320
s —T—FERMUE in 2015 and after 2,129,175
R_ZT——F+_A# Land bank as at

=t-—AxtikEE 31st December 2011 2,690,464




Taicang
X

A

=

BHEREBEERAF -

Hopson Sea Block « & 4 {4ifg

No. 588, Longjiang Road, Taicang (100% owned)
A2 HIBET % 58855 (#EH 100% fE )

—E——FFH

Liujiagang Town

BRE R

K
Sg.m.
R A TR BT Construction to be completed
« —_ET— 4 in 2012 39,608
e —T—=F in 2013 120,462
R-_ZE——F+_H1 Land bank as at
=t—HBztifFEE 31st December 2011 160,070
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Huadu District national
R 9
¢ ZER®S
2l
i
£
Luogang District
i
Baiyun District
BER
Tianhe District Guangshen Express
Guangsan Express KA & BRE:
=R
Foshan e 49 N\ Guangz__hou Huangbu District
Nanhai District [
Bim HiEE . ’ .ﬁ :(-
Guangzhou
Tianhe Railway Science City
Station M R
ESEP

“Yuexiu District
W= m \

Dongshan Distric‘ﬁ\
=

Guangzhou
Haizhu District BN

Metro ine No.3 Guangzhou
8= 5 AR University City

BN AR




e i

No. 190, Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (95% owned)
FE N R SATE A L K 3B 19058 (B 95% %)

FHK
Sg.m.
RS Construction completed 2,763
HERIATEBTT Construction to be completed
e —E—FHEFENIUE in 2015 and after 439,529
R-_E—F+=8 Land bank as at
=T—Hz TS 31st December 2011 442,292

No. 1028 Guangzhou Avenue South, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (94.98% owned)
B INB TRk & B N KB 7 102855 (5 94.98% )

FHK
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 30,270
R TR BT T Construction to be completed
T E—FERE in 2015 and after 69,437
WZTE——F+=R1 Land bank as at
=t+—HztifFEE 31st December 2011 99,707
Xingnan Avenue, Panyu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
ENEBEEREAE (HEHE100%EH)
FHHK
Sg.m.
BExL Construction completed 60,550
BRATERBTL Construction to be completed
o — T —— 1 in 2012 20,474
o — T —= in 2013 11,634
e — TN in 2014 14,514
T —FERLIE in 2015 and after 1,495,144
R-_Z—F+_-H1 Land bank as at
=+—BzZtHkEE 31st December 2011 1,602,316
No. 190, Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (95% owned)
BN KT & 1L KE 19055 (B 95% )
Pk
Sg.m.
BExL Construction completed 22,438
HERATREBTI Construction to be completed
« — T4 in 2014 8,735
e T —HFRINR in 2015 and after 83,903
R-T——%+=A Land bank as at
—t+t— Bzt E 31st December 2011 115,076
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No. 1, Haojing Street, Yizhou Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (99.5% owned)
BMNEBHREE MBS 15 (FEHF9.5%EH)

FIR
Sg.m.
B 5T Construction completed 63,353
BRATREBTI Construction to be completed
e — T —=4F in 2013 74,659
e~ T —FHERBIE in 2015 and after 690,772
R—ZE——%+=A Land bank as at
=+—H2 T EE 31st December 2011 828,784

Guangzhou Avenue, Chigang, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
BN RE TR R EMNKE (FEH 100% #Ex)

FHK
Sg.m.
SEL Construction completed 4,995
R-ZE——%F+_-A8 Land bank as at
=t+—HzLiEHE 31st December 2011 4,995
Dongxiaonan Road South, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
BINEHRERERER (HH 100%E &)
FHK
Sg.m.
=T Construction completed 47,758
RZZE——F+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztiFE 31st December 2011 47,758
No. 114-116 Yuehua Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou (100% owned) | e :
BT B 1145 11638 (B 100% ) EEE |
5% EEED
Sq.m. il
BT Construction completed 95,746 1
R-_ZT——F+_H8 Land bank as at - 1
=t+—HztHFEE 31st December 2011 95,746 o
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Guangzhou Avenue North, Baiyun District, Guangzhou (70% owned)

BMNAEBEMKEL (FEE70%ER)

FHK
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 17,128
R-_TE——F+_8 Land bank as at
=t+—HztFEE 31st December 2011 17,128
Aoti Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
BN R E R B IR (FEH 100% )
FHK
Sg.m.
B 5T Construction completed 23,991
ERATREBTI Construction to be completed
e T ——F in 2012 20,400
o —EFE—=4&F in 2013 36,862
e — T —[F in 2014 22,743
R-ZZE—%F+_-A1 Land bank as at
=+—BZTEE  31st December 2011 103,996
Huanggi Beicun Avenue, Dali, Nanhai District, Foshan,
Guangzhou (100% owned)
EMGILEEEXBEZ BN KE (HEE100%ER)
TR
Sg.m.
S Construction completed 2,131
BRATERETT Construction to be completed
o — T —_1F in 2012 180,040
T E—FHERE in 2015 and after 408,484
R-ZZE——F+_-A1 Land bank as at
=t+t—BztHEE 31st December 2011 590,655

Interchange of Guangzhou Avenue South and Diejing Road (opposite to the
governmental office of Haizhu District), Haizhu District, Guangzhou
(75% owned)

BNEHEEMNABHEEERTER CEXREBNHE) A% ER)

I
ki Sg.m.
E | BRATEBTI Construction to be completed
o« —_EF—— in 2012 78,809
o — T —= in 2013 144,287
T —RFRIUE in 2015 and after 5,373
R-—_ZT——F+_-H1 Land bank as at
=t+t—BztEE 31st December 2011 228,469
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Honbenggang Reservoir, Shiling Town, Huadu District, Guangzhou
(95.5% owned)
EMNEEE R EEAEEKE (BEHS5.5%EE)

FHK
Sg.m.
HERIATEMTT Construction to be completed
—ET—=F in 2013 100,000
“E-—RHFEMMNUE in 2015 and after 1,094,880
R-ZT——F+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BzZztHEE 31st December 2011 1,194,880
Jiufo Machao Industry Town, Guangzhou (55% owned)
EMNAGESHIEN (FEES5%ER)
FFK
Sg.m.
HRATRETT Construction to be completed
e —T—FHERKIE in 2015 and after 193,513
RN—_ZT——F+_-A1 Land bank as at
=t+t— Bzt E 31st December 2011 193,513

N. 188, Canggang Mid Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned) ul | 5
ENEERE S & 2% 18855 (HEH 100% # %) o
FHK 3
%
Sqm l.' [
-l
BRATREBTEI Construction to be completed E :
——4F in 2012 98,480 i
RZT——F+=A Land bank as at py ==
=t+—HztFEE 31st December 2011 98,480
Yuanzhang Avenue, Xintang Town, Zengcheng City (100% owned)
BT HIEERERE (HEHF100%#EH)
FHK
Sg.m.
25wl Construction completed 12,288
BRUATERBTL Construction to be completed
e —T——F in 2012 13,629
o —T—= in 2013 10,419
o« — T in 2014 351,694
T —RFRINUE in 2015 and after 889,686
R-_Z——F+_-A Land bank as at
=+t—BzLtHhRFEE 31st December 2011 1,277,716




South of Qianjin Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
[& N g 2R R A 3#E 2% BA R (B 100% R %)

FHK
Sg.m.
HERIATEBTT Construction to be completed
«— T —FHERIAE in 2015 and after 244,300
R-_E——F+=8 Land bank as at
=t+—B2ztHERE  31st December 2011 244,300
Dawo Village, Tanbu Village, Huadu District, Guangzhou (65% owned)
BMIEE & &P HE AR (FEB65%ER)
FHK
Sg.m.
BRATEBTT Construction to be completed
« T =4 in 2013 157,056
e —T—[UF in 2014 227,291

R-ZE——F+=A1 Land bank as at
=t+— Bz LiEE 31st December 2011 384,347
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=
%
<RI
. g \
57. Huizhou Golf Manor e /-
ALBRANE s

i Disttict

58. Huizhou Regal Bay
BMERE

59. Hopson International New City

B A B R T P ) 4 TSuj'ITown
RIS s Yanth District™~".

Kuichong Town
S

-

60. Wangxiangying Project
BREIER

61. Shidai City W
S o &
SR Dongjiang .<¢+Q‘,A o
Y Industrial Do
o T W

62. Binhai City . Huizhou Municioal v 03
o Y Zengcheng uizhou Municipa
B, 1245 Government N

BN BUF

-~

2
3
=3
\ Maon New Zone %
P e
BRHE= e

No. 1, East Longhe Road, Shuikou Town, Huizhou (100% owned)
BT K ABERMRER 155 (FEH100% # )

FHK
Sg.m.
2xL Construction completed 125,260
HERATEBTI Construction to be completed
o — T —— 4 in 2012 41,110
o — T — =4 in 2013 189,794
e _ T in2014 210,034
«—T—FHERIE in 2015 and after 1,447,970
R-ZZT——F+=-A Land bank as at

=t+—HZ L E 31st December 2011 2,014,168




BrEREEER

N

Gl

R EFH

No 2, Wenchangyi Road, Jiangbei District, Huizhou (100% owned)

EMNTTIIEEXE — 525 (BEH 100% )

FFK
Sg.m.

BT Construction completed 25,309
BRATEBTT Construction to be completed
o —EF —— 4 in 2012 177,995
o T —= in 2013 60,674
o —T—FERMNUE in 2015 and after 146,063
W-ZE——F+=H Land bank as at
=+t—BztifEE 31st December 2011 410,041
The Corner of East Sanhuai Road, Shuikou Town, Huizhou (100% owned)
BMAORLCE=ZFREREZ (FEE100%EmR)

FHK

Sg.m.

BT Construction completed 93,109
BRATREBTI Construction to be completed
o _T—_1F in 2012 80,837
o —FT—= in 2013 136,301
e — T —[U4F in 2014 137,263
T —FERE in 2015 and after 522,649
R-ZZE——F+=-A1 Land bank as at
=+t—HBztufEE 31st December 2011 970,159

Taipingxu, Taiping Village, Licheng Street, Zengcheng City (100% owned)

1R ™ Z 4 AT AN KPR (BB 100% )

TR
Sg.m.
HRUATRETT Construction to be completed
s —_E—FFERUE in 2015 and after 1,383,667
R—ZT——F+=A1 Land bank as at
=+ —HBzxFEE 31st December 2011 1,383,667
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Xiangshuihe South, West side of Daya Bay (100% owned)
K 588 7 B 2 K R g B 3 BR (75 100% RE &)

FHK
Sg.m.
R TRMETT Construction to be completed
o« — T =1 in 2013 173,856
e —T—MF in 2014 121,663
« T —RERINE in 2015 and after 1,181,579
RZE——%+=A Land bank as at
=+—BztHuiEE 31st December 2011 1,477,098

The West of Holiday Inn, Anhui Revenue, Aotou, Daya Bay Area (100% owned)
AGDEEBREBZERNERBEEERN (EF100%EH)

FITK

Sg.m.
BRATEBSTI Construction to be completed
e —_FT—— in 2012 143,120
o T —=4 in 2013 133,851
e —E—[UF in 2014 153,163
e T —RHFRIIE in 2015 and after 1,221,195
R-_ZT——F+_-H1 Land bank as at

=t+t—BztHHE 31st December 2011 1,651,329




63. Regal Court

TR

64. Zhongshan Dongkeng Project
hILRIAER

65. Zhongshan Rainbow Project
LTI E

%
£
ﬁ&i)
€
. ) *
Rainbow Bridge G,
FALNL R2AS ‘9/)9
Yixian Lake Park eéo
eI PN- ot <,
et /z?r
. oo & &%
‘\\(.\Q (QSS\ Z

Zhongshan Park
FILAE

Linggang District, Huoju Development Zone, Zhongshan (100% owned)
il KB EREEE (A 100%E &)

FHK
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 15,283
BRATERETET Construction to be completed
o« — T ——1F in 2012 12,507
o T —= in 2013 48,367
s _TE—FEFERIE in 2015 and after 51,749
R-E—F+=8 Land bank as at
=t+t—BztifEE 31st December 2011 127,906
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Dongkeng, South District, Zhongshan (95% owned)
Rl BRI (EH % ER)

-
i
Al

-
i
.

SOT i
—
Sg.m. *‘ .
BRATERBTL Construction to be completed 'i
e —E—FFNIAE in 2015 and after 537,257 'i :
N-E——F+=A Land bank as at T‘i
—t+—BztiRFEE 31st December 2011 537,257 [
Caihong Planning Zone, West District, Zhongshan (95% owned)
PFLTAEBRIREE (EES%ER)
FHK
Sg.m.
R TRMETI Construction to be completed
T =4 in 2013 42,205
e —T—RHFRMUE in 2015 and after 437,294
R-—B——&+=A Land bank as at

Zt+t— Bzt E 31st December 2011 479,499




Investment Property Factsheet

BEME—TE

Details of the investment properties of the Group as at 31st December 2011

are as follows:

Location

Hopson Plaza

Guangzhou Avenue South,
Haizhu District
Guangzhou

Guangdong Province
Mainland China

Hopson International Plaza
292 Jiefang

Yangpu District

Shanghai

Mainland China

Guangzhou Zhujiang
International Tower

No. 114-116 Yuehua Road
Yuexiu District

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province
Mainland China

Hangzhou Hopson World Trade Centre

327, Tianmushan Road
Xihu District
Hangzhou

Zhejiang Province
Mainland China

Beijing Desheng Building

No. 11 Deshengmenwai Street
Xicheng District

Beijing

Mainland China

Hopson Fortune Plaza
483, Feihong Road
Hongkou District
Shanghai

Mainland China

MEFIWT

Group’s interest

L E SE LR

LilEPN 75%
ERE

M

BRE

EMNAKERE

BMEEES

R B K 100%
+£B

SBRE

2921y

A4 AR ES

A B A 100%
ERE

B

M

MEERR1142 1165

BMET

R AE

)N 95%
ipa=)

Al

gl

XE L3275

NEERZH L

LalEPNS 100%
1=

PR

BEBFISNAH 1155

EREBARE

R B K B 100%
+£B

AR

FUT PR 48357

HBEVEES

Existing use

BATA®

Commercial/office/
retail and carparking
EmEMRES
TERFES

Commercial/office/
retail and carparking
BEPRE

TERIZES

Commercial/office/
retail and carparking
[SEVE VNV
TEREFES

Commercial/office/
retail and carparking
BE/MRE/
TERFES

Office/

retail and carparking
WAES
ZEREFS

Commercial/office/

retail and carparking
¥ MAE

ZERIFHES

IR EFH

R-_E——F+_A=+—H £EBKE

Approximate
gross floor area
MR
BHE S

(sgq.m.)
(F75K)
220,545

366,224

101,989

92,418

59,394

53,614
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Directors’ Profile

= iy

il

Executive Directors

HITES

CHU Mang Yee, aged 51, has been a Director since 1997. He is
the Chairman of the Company and one of the founders of the
Group. Mr. Chu has over twenty years' experience in trading,
construction, property investment and development. He is also a
member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, an Honoured Citizen of
Meizhou of Guangdong Province and the Vice Chairman of
Guangdong Research Institute for the Development of
Corporate Strategy. Mr. Chu is the sole director of Sounda
Properties Limited. Sounda Properties Limited is a substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

K@M S B - MNAEFHERRFES - RA/EAR
TIF&$EIWH¢—ﬁ@%A KRELEEES =

CMERERBERIAEED _TFER -BIAZHE
ﬁ%x% EREEMNTREMRMEREEERRBEH
EhBEgRk KRELERNEEXARAFAZIE—ESFT R
BESIBMERMEXVE HEEERLARAZIER
=

Zhang Yi, aged 49, joined Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China (Asia) Limited as an Assistant General Manager in
January 2003 and was promoted as a Deputy General
Manager of the Bank in December 2003. Mr. Zhang was
appointed as a Director and an Alternate Chief Executive of
the Bank in March 2005. He was also a Director of Chinese
Mercantile Bank and the Chairman of ICBC (Asia) Investment
Management Company Limited, both companies are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of ICBC (Asia). Mr. Zhang graduated
from Shanghai University of Finance & Economics with a
Master’s Degree in Money & Banking and qualified as a
Senior Economist. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang was
the Deputy Governor of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China Limited, Shanghai Municipal Branch. Mr. Zhang Yi has
been appointed as an Executive Director, Deputy Chairman
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company since 7th
November 2011.

RE A RZEE=F—AMAFREIFERIT(E
MERATAMEALE IR _ZTT=F1+_ A
FAZRTABECE - REER_STRF-ARZE
TAZBRTESESTTREY  WESIERIMNE
ENBARERBETESRIBREMEETEARA
RAIEER -RALBENLBMERE  BEBRTE
Eﬁifﬁﬁ RS ERCEMER RMAGESEE

CRAEAEATRIFRITLEETATRINTR -BZF
**E%*Htﬁi*%%%i%é&%ﬁgﬁﬁﬁ
EF BEXERUBBE-



Directors’ Profile (continued)

=l (5

XIANG Bin, aged 65, has been a Director
since 2001. He is the Deputy Chairman of
the Company and director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Xiang is
a Chinese Registered Superior Career
Manager in the PRC and a senior
engineer. Mr. Xiang was a senior
management staff of a public listed
company before joining the Group in
February 2001. He has over thirty- seven
years' of experience in construction and
administration management.

EHiR 65 BA_EE—FHEARD
AEZ -FAARRABERENARNT
ETWEARAzEEZ -HELEHEAT
EERTMBESCENS R ITREM
BE N _ZTT—F_ANBAEE
Al - BEER—LELTMRAGINEHRER
AB -MEZERTHREREFERE
M=+ FEH-

XUE Hu (resigned on 1st March 2012),
aged 49, has been an Executive Director
since 23rd October 2007. He was
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Group on 22nd March 2010 and
director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Xue graduated from
Zhongshan University in Guangzhou and
obtained a Master degree in Business
Administration. He is a senior economist
and worked for higher education
institutes and large state-owned
enterprises in the PRC. Mr. Xue joined
the Group in 1994 and has over ten
years' of experience in real estate
investment, marketing and enterprise
management.

BERWZIZE—Z-F=ZA—HEET)
9 BZETLFTA-+T=HR
HERTEF - —T—ZFF=A-+
“HEESETRER BT RAR
AETHEBRARZES BEERE
REMNPILABYWETHERBEL
B B am R - BERRE
NEERERERVERELE  — AN
MEMBAEE EEHWERE &
HER CREEREITEERA TFEL
B o

T —FEHR

AU Wai Kin, aged 55, has been an
Executive Director since 1997. Mr. Au
joined the Group in 1995. He is also a
director of our other member companies.
Mr. Au graduated from Zhongshan
University in Guangzhou and has over
twenty years’ of experience in
construction of buildings, town planning,
real estate investment and property
development.

EAfEE 55 B - M EFHER
TEFE - BEER-AARFMEAR
EE YAXREBEEMKERRZE
EZ REERBEMBPILKRE -BUEAE
ERFRE BTRE HWERER
MEBRTEER - TFRLR-
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LIAO Ruo Qing, aged 47, has been an Executive Director since
21st January 2010. He is also a Vice President of the Group and
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liao
graduated from Zhongshan University in Guangzhou and
obtained a Master degree from the University of Western
Sydney of Australia. Mr. Liao joined the Group in 2003. He
worked in government department and engaged in real estate
investment and business management for over ten years and

has extensive experience in working with government
departments, legal affairs and investment development.

BEF TR B-E-—TF A+t HEBHENRTE
Z RN RASEHBARNARAETHEBRAR 2EE -
BEAEEREMNPIURBYEBNAEEAZE LS
fL-BEEN_ZZ=FMBREAEE - REEBRTBFIE
B UREFHERENKEERTEIHRE BRTEE
MEEBFRFALEREY KERBTENEELR -

Chu Kut Yung, aged 24, studies in the Renmin University of
China, majoring in Finance with solid knowledge in finance
principles and comprehensive investment skills. She has been
appointed as the Executive Vice President of the Company
since March 2012 and was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in November 2011. She was an
intern of the Group in 2007 and 2008, and held the position
as Assistant to President from 2009 to 2011. She has worked
in areas relating to financial and human resource
management of the Company, and thus accumulated
extensive and professional experience in such areas.

KEB 245 RERPEARKEZESHZHE A
EXEMNSRERANBNE2EMEEF KL 1
202F3AREZERARBEHEIEE - KR2011F 11
RAEZERARRIWNITES - 7£2007 F 2008 5 # (£
NEBWEDE  R2009F 22011 FEB B BHIE
VHEARARPE  ANTREFEIE BRET —T
MY BEREMANEREREEETELES -
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Directors’ Profile (continued)

=l (5

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHITES

LEE Tsung Hei David Chris, BBS, JP, aged 62, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director. Mr. Lee is the Chairman of DS Capital Group Ltd; DS Transportation
Interchange Development Ltd and Chairman of the Investment Committee of Cheever
Real Estate Master Fund SPC. He qualified as a Chartered Valuation Surveyor in 1973
and was registered as an Authorized Person in 1977. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors, a Registered Professional Surveyor, a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors, an associate of the Incorporated Society of Valuers and
Auctioneers, and an associate of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. Mr. Lee is a
former member of the Central Policy Unit, which is known as the Government “Think
Tank”, a past Chairman of the Hong Kong Housing Society, a former member of the
Supervisory Board of the Hong Kong Housing Society, a former director of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited, a former Council member of Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and a former member of the Land and Building Advisory
Committee, and the Steering Committee on Review of the Urban Renewal Strategy. He
is currently an Advisor to the Guangzhou Metro Corporation, a Visiting Professor of the
Guangzhou Urban Mass Transit Training Institute, a member of the Remuneration
Committee and Nominating Committee of the Hong Kong Housing Society, a member
of the Salvation Army Advisory Board and Chairman of the Property Advisory
Committee of the Salvation Army. Mr. Lee has been a member of our Board since
1998. He is also a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee of the Company.

SER WEAEE ATHE 625 BUNATESE -TAEARKES
BRARER BHUXAERREHENEERAFALE AERBERSREA
FERER - -BR AL FRERSREFARMER TR AL EFER
BERTAL BABENENSRERGE FELMELAUEN 558
FLERERGE HEGERAEFSRRARAARHNRAZERE T
EAERATARNTRARAE IRNEEE) 2 HNEE8 EEEEHENE
o EEREEWBESENEE EANBACRARAAIANES AR
TASHRE B LB RERANEEASNEERTEERERRYBEEE
EgNZEE - RABAEMNTIRTHEEAAE LENTED  BENATHE
REENBREERE EAREBEFWEEGRREAEEEGEE NHE
ENEESEE RN BN EENEE R IR T A4AE A \FRAES
ERE - BAARAAZEREES FMEESRBERS BHUEALR
SEBEME -
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WONG Shing Kay, Oliver, aged 59, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director. Mr. Wong obtained his professional
accounting qualifications in both Hong Kong and Canada. Mr.
Wong is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the United
Kingdom. Mr. Wong is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an ordinary member of
The Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and an
associate member of the Certified General Accountants of
Canada. Mr. Wong had worked in various renowned auditing
firms in Hong Kong with over 20 years of experience in handling
auditing, financial accounting and taxation matters. Mr. Wong
is currently appointed as an independent non-executive director
and a member of Audit Committee of several listed companies
in Hong Kong. He has also assumed the duty of financial
controller for several listed companies in both Hong Kong and
Canada for over ten years. Mr. Wong is presently practicing as a
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He is knowledgeable
with expertise in financial accounting, taxation, system
development, internal control and company management. Mr.
Wong has been a member of our Board since 1998. He is also a
member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions
Committee of the Company.

EAE SOR BUFNTEFZ BELEARBTERMER
ERZMEAmER RS RRBSITF A R ERSFF
AREAMAEEREGE  BAGHMAGTHUXRERESR
Bl BEEAGHOASGRERMERTMEFED - 1
REETABRZHARBZEAMEBAIEBEBE _+F A
BEEMNET MBS ARBREELR BLERBR
ETREALMARZBLFATESREFZEEZ B
MABHEZHEERNER LT RAZMBAER =
THE RARBEAETMEFAMHEIONE - | L HR
MBET B ROBR AREERARNEESZAR
EzRBE-BEEE-NANEFKRRBEFTEKE - WITA
ARBIZERZES FHZESLBERS ABREA

TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron, aged 56, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director since 2nd July 2010. Mr. Tan currently
serves as Senior Advisor to a global financial services firm. Prior
to this, Mr. Tan was the managing director and head of the
Hong Kong investment banking business of Barclays Capital. Mr.
Tan holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University
of Alberta and has obtained a Master of Business Administration
degree from City University in the United States of America. He
is an Associate Member of the Canadian Certified General
Accountants and a Fellow Member of the Institute of Canadian
Bankers. Mr. Tan has over 25 years of experience in the banking
industry in both Canada and Hong Kong. Mr. Tan had held
senior positions in several major and international financial
institutions including Citicorp, JP Morgan Chase and HSBC. Mr.
Tan has a wide breadth of experience in corporate and
investment banking as well as capital markets. Mr. Tan was
formerly the Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong Capital Markets
Association.

FREBE S6m BT —ZTF - A_ARBRBEB LN
TEZE - REELRR—BRREBBHF LA ZERERM -
Itk AT BR 5T 4 /& Barclays Capital 2 & E 44K B M BB KR E R
TEBZEE - RIEEHA University of Alberta s ¥ £ + &
fi7 » 37 BX 18 = B City University T 7% & I 78 + 27 - % & A1
EXRAMEHMBETERNERARTRBES L - MRk
ERMERREBZRITERED 25FL8R - REEER
Citicorp * JP Morgan Chase K JE & R 17 % % R A 8L IR © &t
BEETSRBL - REERCERRERITURERT
LREELEERBR - MALTBRECREEFTBERATSL ARG
BlEFRE -
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Senior Management’s Profile
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ZHU Guoxing, aged 63, Vice President of the Group, President of Commercial Property Headquarters and General Manager
of Eastern China Commercial Property Company. Mr. Zhu holds a Master degree. He is a senior economist and a certified
accountant in the PRC. He was appointed as Head of Financial and Taxation Bureau in Zhabei District of Shanghai, Head of
Financial and Taxation Bureau and Head of Audit Bureau in Pudong New Area of Shanghai and the President of Shanghai
Lujiazui Holding Company since 1988. He is the Chairman of Building Association in Lujiazui of Shanghai, Vice Chairman of
Commercial Association in Pudong New Area of Shanghai. Mr. Zhu has substantial management experience in commercial
property industry and has in-depth knowledge in the operation and administration of office building, hotel, shopping mall
and hi-technology software park. He is familiar with the macro economy and capital market activities.

KER 635 AREEARRDEMVEALBENERFEVELTNALE - RALEHARLEN  SRLHE
AhEAE - AP EEMEM - B - AWN\N\FREELERILLREMBERRE LEFRFEVHBRERK FFHFRB
EMERERNARARTR RLEEEREETHEER  LEBRFENERER RELABEENEE
WETEXEELR BRF2 EE B% SHREGEMNEFEREFRFAE HZEBLKEE —EMR B
BARERE-

LIU Jian, aged 44, Vice President of the Group. Mr. Liu graduated from the Chongging Institute of Architectural Engineering
with a Bachelor degree. He is a certified first-class architect and a professor-level senior engineer in the PRC. He served as the
Vice-President of China Institute of Aerospace Construction and Design, Deputy General Manager of Beijing Zhujiang Real
Estate Development Limited and Deputy General Manager of Beijing Hopson Beifang Real Estate Development Limited
respectively since 1989. He joined the Group as Vice President in 2002. Mr. Liu has wide exposure in real estate planning,
design and engineering management with extensive practical operations experience.

82 My AEEEZH - ZEXEEXENEFEETRER  BEL2MU - BR —RTMEEM  HEES
BRIRM - BN \NFEEETPEMREERFARRECR ERKIEHERBAR A F EALIE R
RAELELTEHEREAERAFBAKLE - —_ ST _FNBEASEIERAR RELERBLENFHERIR
A ITREELR BERBEEREE -

ZHANG Liming, aged 45, Assistant to President of the Group. She graduated from the Xinjiang University of Education and
is an economist. Prior to joining the Group in 2002, she worked in Shenzhen Taxation Bureau and had been engaged in real
estate investment, operation and management for over ten years. She has substantial experience in government public
relations and investment and development.

REH 455 AKEAHBIE  EXRMEMBARE LFEM - —_ ST _FNEAKE - R L L EBRFY
mEER REFHERELGEEETF+HRF FEENBRRNAABERRERNEST TIEER -
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Zhu lJinli, aged 40, Assistant to President of the Group and Chairman of Guangzhou regional company. She is a
postgraduate student of EMBA School of Business Administration, Sun Yat-Sen University. Since 1995, she joined Guangdong
Pearl River Investment Holdings Co., Limited, Hopson Development Group Limited, Guangdong New South Group Limited
and Guangdong Zhuguang Group Limited respectively, served as the Project Manager, General Manager of Marketing
Department, General Manager and Assistant to President. Ms. Zhu lJinli has engaged in real estate operation and
management for sixteen years, with substantial management experience in real estate marketing, investment and operation.
She also possesses extensive relations with government and a vast social network.

REB 405 AKREAHAPERENBERAREER - PIUAZIMBATHEEERMATKLE  —ANEFES
DRAMABRBRIKIKERNBER AR ALAREEARAR ERFEHTEEARAR ERAAEEARQ
Al EERERE  SHAAKE AKE AUPEFRE RSBXINFTEHELEEE T F HEit
ELHELREELFAELENEELR AKBAARZNBGTEEMLEER

Bao Wenge, aged 36, Assistant to President of the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in Real Estate Operation Management
and joined the Group in 1999. Mr. Bao worked in the real estate industry for over ten years and had successfully carried out
several large-scale real estates projects. He is familiar with the operation of commercial, office building, residential, hotel and
property management. He has over ten years of experience in real estate operation and management, marketing and
operation management.

g 3658 AREANE FHELLEESEL —ANMNAFNERE -HEEREEHETEA 5
ERMRIEBZEALER UREX BFR ETBEE DEEREFIFTAL EEHELEERE mHE
WOCEER T EERBTFER-



Financial Review
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Turnover

()

Recognised Sales

Faced with the environment of austerity measures, the Group
produced a turnover of HK$8,008 million in 2011 (2010:
HK$14,379 million). The overall GFA delivered by the Group in
2011 was 391,277 square metres (2010: 766,030 square metres).
Whilst certain projects in various locations achieved an increase in
GFA delivered, such as the Huanan New City in Guangzhou, the
Huizhou Golf Manor, the Kylin Zone in Beijing and the Hopson
Town in Shanghai, some of the other projects furnished mainly
remaining unsold units and carparks thereby resulting in a
significant decline in the GFA delivered.

The average selling price for delivered and completed properties in
2011, also decreased by 2% to RMB15,175 per square metre (2010:
RMB15,474 per square metre) as a considerable volume of lower
price products and remaining unsold units were delivered during
the year. The average selling price of several delivered properties,
namely No. 8 Royal Park in Beijing, Hopson Town in Shanghai and
Jingjin New Town in Tianjin showed 26%, 70% and 7% growth
respectively, but quite a number of projects in various regions
recorded a decrease in the average selling price.
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Turnover (Continued)

(i) Contracted Sales

During the year, affected by Central Government's further
implementation of the austerity measures on real estates in order to
adjust the housing prices to a reasonable level and promote the
healthy development of the market, the Group recorded a total of
RMB9.94 billion contracted sales (2010: RMB11.04 billion),
representing a drop of RMB1.1 billion. Average contracted selling
price also decreased by 4% to RMB15,110 per square metre (2010:
RMB15,684 per square metre).

The combined contracted sales of Beijing and Tianjin was RMB3,309
million, representing 33% of the total contracted sales of the
Group in 2011. Nine property projects were on sale in Beijing and
Tianjin, of which No. 8 Royal Park, Dreams World and Kylin Zone
were still the major sales contributors.

Twenty property projects were on sale in Guangdong and the
contracted sales were RMB4,108 million in 2011, representing 41%
of the total contracted sales of the Group. Huizhou region recorded
a growth in contracted sales by 69% to reach RMB1,817 million.
The major projects in Guangdong were Pleasant View Garden,
Junjing Bay, Huanan New City, Hopson Regal International, Hopson
Plaza, Hopson International New City, Huizhou Regal Bay, Binhai
City and Huizhou Golf Manor.

There were eight property projects on sale in Shanghai, comprising
Hopson Town, Hopson Golf Mansion, International Garden,
Sheshan Dongziyuan, Hopson Dongjiao Villa, Hopson Yuting
Garden, Hopson International City and The Town of Hangzhou Bay.
Contracted sales of Shanghai amounted to RMB2,527 million,
representing 26% of the total contracted sales of the Group.
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Cost of Sales

Cost of sales included land and construction costs, decoration and design
costs and capitalised interest. In line with the decrease in turnover, cost of
sales was down by 50% to HK$4,329 million (2010: HK$8,692 million)
and, as a percentage of turnover, dropped 6% to 54% (2010: 60%).

Gross Profit

Gross profit margin increased from 39.6% in 2010 to 45.9% in 2011 was
mainly attributable to the delivery of some high-end development projects
with high gross margins achieved during the year.

Other Income/Gains, Net

Other income/gains amounted to HK$99.7 million in 2011 (2010:
HK$1,124.1 million) comprising (1) grants amounting to HK$31.2 million
from government authorities in the Mainland; (2) dividend income of
HK$68.8 million from investment in listed and unlisted securities, and (3)
fair value losses of HK$0.3 million from listed investment.

Operating Costs

The net operating costs relating to expenses for selling, marketing,
general and administration amounted to HK$1,476 million, a slight
decrease of 3.4% from 2010 of HK$1,528 million. The slight decrease
was made possible by a substantial exchange gain of HK$262 million
recorded in 2011 due to the strengthening of Renminbi. Excluding the
exchange gain, there was a general increase in the operating expenses.
The increase was primarily attributable to (1) higher compensation costs
expended and more staff employed on various new projects; (2) greater
outlay on selling and promotional activities for new projects; and (3)
larger amount of finance charges incurred for additional bank and
financial institution loans in 2011.
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Operating Profit

Operating profit in 2011 was decreased by 73% to HK$2,410 million (2010:
HK$9,079 million).

Finance Costs

Gross interest before capitalisation increased 87% to HK$2,374 million
from HK$1,268 million in 2010. The increase was primarily caused by the
additional bank and financial institution borrowings made and the issue
The
effective interest rate in respect of the Group’s borrowings was

of Guaranteed Senior Notes of US$300 million in January 2011.

approximately 7.9% per annum (2010: 5.8%).

Share of Losses of Jointly Controlled Entities

Share of losses of jointly controlled entities represented the Group’s share
of loss of HK$3.3 million from two jointly controlled entities located in
Beijing and Guangzhou.

Taxation

The effective tax rate was 36% in 2011, up 7% compared with last year.
Excluding (1) government grants of HK$31.2 million, dividend income
from investment in listed and unlisted securities of HK$68.8 million and
interest income of HK$29.1 million, and (2) share of losses from jointly
controlled entities of HK$3.3 million and share of profit from associates
of HK$0.35 million, the effective tax rate would have been 38% (2010:
33%). The increase in effective tax rate was to a large extent attributable
to the increase of provision made for Mainland China’s land appreciation
tax during the year.
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Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Company

Profit attributable to equity holders was HK$ 1,430 million for 2011 (2010:
HK$5,889 million). Basic earnings per share was HK$0.818. Excluding the
effect of the net of tax gain from revaluation of investment properties
amounting to HK$81 million, underlying profit was HK$1,349 million,
down HK$1,693 million or 56% as compared with previous year.

Segment Information

Property development continued to be the Group’s core business activity
(90%). In 2011, the Group continued to develop its business in the three
core economic regions, namely the Pearl River Delta, Yangtze River Delta
and Huanbohai Area. Northern China (including Beijing, Tianjin, Dalian,
Taiyuan and Qinhuangdao) contributed 41% to the total revenue of the
Group, followed by Southern China (including Guangzhou, Huizhou and
Zhongshan) (34%), and Eastern China (including Shanghai, Hangzhou
and Ningbo) (25%).

Financial Position

As at 31st December 2011, total assets of the Group amounted to
HK$109,897 million and its total liabilities came to HK$65,831 million,
representing an increase of HK$18,736 million and HK$15,663 million
respectively over the previous year. The increase in total assets was mainly
attributable to the increase in (1) surplus from revaluation of investment
properties; (2) development cost incurred in the construction and
completion of projects, and (3) prepayment of land and acquisition costs
for land sites. Aligned with this, total liabilities also increased, primarily
due to (1) additional borrowings obtained, and (2) increase in accruals
and other payables and deferred revenue.

Current ratio was 2.16 in 2011 (2010: 2.75). Equity increased to
HK$44,066 million at 31st December 2011 from HK$40,993 million at
31st December 2010, due primarily to (1) current year’s profit attributable
to equity holders; and (2) increase in assets revaluation reserve and
currency translation differences reserve.
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Liquidity and Financial Position

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group regularly and closely monitors its
current and expected liquidity requirements to maintain its rolling cash
flow at a level which is considered adequate by the Group to finance the
Group's operations according to its cash flow projections and to maintain
sufficient cash to meet its business development requirements.

As at 31st December 2011, the Group's liability-to-asset ratio (i.e. the
ratio between total liabilities and total assets, excluding non-controlling
interests) was 60% (2010: 55%). The net debt-to-equity ratio (i.e. total
debt less cash and bank deposits over shareholders’ equity) was 72% (2010:
51%).

As at 31st December 2011, the Group had cash and short-term bank
deposits amounting to HK$3,648 million (2010: HK$2,697 million) of
which approximately HK$168 million (2010: HK$77 million) was charged
by certain banks in respect of the processing of mortgage facilities
granted by the banks to the buyers of the Group’s properties. 98.9% of
the cash and bank deposits were denominated in Renminbi, 0.7% in
Hong Kong dollars and 0.4% in United States dollars.

Total borrowings from banks and financial institutions amounted to
HK$30,351 million as at 31st December 2011 representing an increase of
44% or HK$9,329 million as compared to those at 31st December 2010.
Gearing, measured by net bank and financial institution borrowings and
Guaranteed Senior Notes (i.e. total bank and financial institution
borrowings and Guaranteed Senior Notes less cash and bank deposits) as
a percentage of shareholders’ equity, was 72%, increase 21 percentage
points from 51% as at 31st December 2010. The increase was mainly due
to the increase in bank and financial institution borrowings and the issue
of Guaranteed Senior Notes of US$300 million during the year.

All of the bank and financial institution borrowings were either secured
or covered by guarantees and were substantially denominated in
Renminbi with fixed interest rates whereas the United States Dollar
denominated Senior Notes due 2012 and Senior Notes due 2016 were
jointly and severally guaranteed by certain subsidiaries with fixed interest
rate,

representing approximately 82% and 14%, respectively of the

Group's total borrowings.
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Liquidity and Financial Position (continued)

All of the other borrowings were unsecured, interest-free and
substantially denominated in Renminbi.

The Group’s borrowing repayment profile as at 31st December 2011 was

BHEAREBARAR - —T——FFH
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PREREMEEYRERR 22 RAMS
NARBE -

AEER - Z——F+_A=+—RH2ZfE

as follows: EENERAERNAT
As at 31st December 2011 As at 31st December 2010
RZB——F+ZA=+-8 R-F-ZF+-A=+-H
Bank and Bank and
financial financial
institution  Guaranteed Other institution Guaranteed Other
borrowings  senior notes  borrowings Total borrowings  senior notes borrowings Total
BITR RITR
(HK million) MBHE R MEBEE
(BB% ) BE BERE Hitfe & @t BE Hipfg & @t
1 year —F 10,922 15,292 3,672 — 2,060 5732 (22%)
1-2 years —FEWME 10,886 10,886 5,626 2,698 — 8324 (32%)
2-5 years MEERF 5,384 7,674 8,863 — — 8863  (35%)
After 5 years AF% ERLL] 3,159 2,861 — — 2,861 (11%)
Total @5t 21,022 2,698 2,060 25,780
Less: Cash and bank deposits 5l : & R #2177 % (2,697)
Net borrowings EEFE 23,083

As at 31st December 2011, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$64,644 million (2010: HK$55,561 million) for short-
term and long-term bank loans, of which HK$34,293 million (2010:
HK$34,539 million) were unutilised.

Financial Guarantees

As at 31st December 2011, the Group provided guarantees to banks for
mortgage facilities granted to buyers of the Group’s properties which
amounted to HK$10,315 million (2010: HK$10,502 million).

Charge on Assets

As at 31st December 2011, certain assets of the Group with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$22,308 million (2010: HK$11,853 million) were
pledged with banks and financial institutions for loan facilities used by
subsidiaries.
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Commitments

i

AEEBR - Z——F+ _A=+—HZH&

The Group’s commitments as at 31st December 2011 were as follows:

EMT

As at As at
31st December 31st December
2011 2010
R-E——F R-E—FF
+=HA=+—-8 | +=A=+—H
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEBTT BEAT
Capital commitments B AR YE
Contracted but not provided for SHEEER
— Acquisition of land and equity —EETER TR
interests in certain entities % A #E 7 11,336 6,245
— Property construction costs — W) EFE KA 2,753 1,785
— Capital contribution to an associate ——RHEE R REE 264 —
Authorised but not contracted for EERBEERRITY
— Acquisition of land and equity —BEETER TR
interests in certain entities fi% 2N 2= 7,859
— Property construction costs — W ERERAK 3,526
15,978 19,415
Property development commitments W) BB R A E
Contracted but not provided for BEEIHEBREE
— Property construction costs —EEEKAK 20,576 13,066
Authorised but not contracted for EEBEERRITY
— Property construction costs — W ERERAR 73,910 66,221
94,486 79,287
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Commitments (Continued)

The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of premises under
various non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as
follows:

O A A 2 BOR

Amounts payable

— Within one year —— &R
— Within two to five year —MFEERFNA
— After 5 years —hFE
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LN

As at As at

31st December 31st December
2011 2010
R-ZE——F RZE—FF
+=-RA=+—H +=—A=+—H
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEAT

35 30

(] 74

40 40

With continuous cash inflow from property sales, the banking facilities
available and the cash in hand, the Group is expected to be in an
adequate liquidity position to meet these on-going commitments by
stages.

Treasury Policies and Capital Structure

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and
funding policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that
are directly related to the underlying business of the Group.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together with the

audited financial statements of Hopson Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year
ended 31st December 2011.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries,
associates and a jointly controlled entity are principally engaged in
investment holding, property development, property investment, property
management and hotel operations.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and their respective contributions to
operating profit for the year ended 31st December 2011 by geographical
locations is as follows:

EZEMARECEAREBEBRAA
ITAXRBDREREMBLB(GEIAEE]
HE_T——F+-A=+T—RHILFEHN
FHREFAKLELMBRE -

ARmR—HREZERLQAF  ETEHEB
NECBEARRAREHNERIZNS
REER MERRE WERE WEEE
EBRIBIEEE -
AEEBE_T——Ft+-_A=t—BL
FERMRE D ZEXBRAZAHEE
WM BEROFTIT

Contribution to

Turnover operating profit

Fapcd=dreil

HE ZE#

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEIT FHTT

Guangzhou =0 1,609,744 143,520
Beijing Bl 3,082,493 774,896
Shanghai ! 1,963,889 956,276
Tianjin RE 200,381 (83,066)
Huizhou =N 1,151,030 385,235
Others HAtb — 232,697
8,007,537 2,409,558

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business segments for the year
ended 31st December 2011 is as follows:

Sales of properties ES =
Property management income MEERITA
Income from hotel operation B JE EE IR A
Rental income WA

AGEHE_FT——F+t-_A=+—8L
FEREBSBE SO EEBIMMOT

Turnover
HK$'000
T
7,170,325
490,115
199,444
147,653

8,007,537




Report of the Directors (continued)

=3 O ()

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31st December 2011, the five largest customers of
the Group accounted for approximately 3.83% of the Group's turnover
while the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
9% of the Group’s purchases. In addition, the largest customer of the
Group accounted for approximately 0.9% of the Group’s turnover while
the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 4% of the
Group's purchases.

Save for the association with certain related companies as set out in Note
41 to the financial statements, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has a beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

Results and Appropriations

Details of the Group's results for the year ended 31st December 2011 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 124 of this annual
report.

No interim dividend was declared and paid during the year. The Directors
did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31st December 2011.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note
27 to the financial statements.

Reserves

Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 28 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st December 2011,
calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$624,061,000 (2010: HK$525,776,000).
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Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable donations totalling
HK$17,956,000 (2010: HK$202,771,000) to various charitable
organizations.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-

laws and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

Properties and Equipment and
Investment Properties
Details of movements in properties and equipment and investment

properties of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to
the financial statements, respectively.

Subsidiaries and Associates

Particulars of the Company'’s subsidiaries and associates are set out in
Notes 12 and 13 to the financial statements, respectively.

Borrowings

Particulars of borrowings as at 31st December 2011 are set out in Note
24 to the financial statements.

Pension Schemes

Details of the pension schemes are set out in Note 31 to the financial
statements.

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 254 to 256.

B
WA AR S 0 R R

EZRAA 17,956,000 T (ZF—FF
202,771,000 7T) ©

BrBER

KRB 2~ A AR B I B 5T RE B R RO
B REED T ER B R F R -

MERRBNREME

AEBRAFEZMERRBENERENE
EHHBORENM B RERMET RS-

BB 2 B R Bt 1 F

RKARZHBARLRBEANRFEED
R EsmERME 12213 -

ol

BE

R_ZE——F+_R=+—HZEBEFE
N WA E24 -

RIKEEE

BARTFAEFBINPBHHRRMES -

ETFHERE

REEBRBEREGTRFEEZ2EENEE
HEEREHNFE254F 2568 -



Report of the Directors (continued)

=3 O ()

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 30th April 2009, the Company and Guangdong Hanjiang
Construction Installation Project Limited (“Hanjiang”), being the
respective holding companies of the Group and the Hanjiang Group
(comprising Hanjiang, its subsidiaries and its associates), entered into a
framework agreement (the “Framework Agreement”) setting out, among
other things, the principal terms in respect of services/leased premises to
be provided to the Group by the Hanjiang Group and of services/leased
premises to be provided by the Group to the Hanjiang Group. The
Framework Agreement is effective for a term commencing from 16th
June 2009 to 31st December 2011. Hanjiang, a company owned by the
brother of Mr. Chu Mang Yee (the controlling shareholder and chairman
of the board of Directors of the Company) (“Mr. Chu”) as to 90 percent
and the brother-in-law of Mr. Chu as to 10 percent, is a connected
person of the Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Hence, the transactions between the
Group and the Hanjiang Group as contemplated under the Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Details of such continuing connected transactions
are set out as follows:

(i) Construction

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Group may
appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out construction works for
certain property development projects of the Group and the
Hanjiang Group agrees to carry out such construction works for the
Group. The construction fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group for carrying out construction works for various property
projects of the Group in the PRC shall be determined by the parties
by reference to the prevailing market rates charged by independent
third parties for similar construction projects and the stipulated
standards prescribed by ##z%Z 55 (Construction Committee) of
such area where the particular property project is located. During
the year ended 31st December 2011, total construction fees paid/
payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$571,916,000 (2010: HK$2,275,708,000).
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(ii)

(iii)

Property management

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Group may
appoint the Hanjiang Group to manage certain properties
developed by the Group in Shanghai. The amount of management
fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group for providing
management services to the said properties in Shanghai shall be
determined by the parties by reference to the prevailing market
rates charged by independent third parties for providing similar
property management services in similar locations, which shall
conform with the stipulated standards prescribed by B & £ i & 3%
/& (Housing and Land Administration Bureau) of such area where
the particular property is located. During the year ended 37st
December 2011,
the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$945,000 (2010:
HK$1,104,000).

management fees paid/payable by the Group to

Design

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Group may
appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out design works for certain
property development projects of the Group and Hanjiang agrees
to procure any member of the Hanjiang Group which is engaged in
the business of property design, to carry out such design works for
the Group. The amount of design fees payable by the Group to the
Hanjiang Group for carrying out the design works for various
property development projects of the Group shall be determined by
the parties by reference to, and shall not be higher than, the
prevailing market rates charged by independent third parties for
similar design projects and the standards or guidelines prescribed by
the relevant government authority on the fees chargeable for the
provision of similar services (if any). During the year ended 31st
December 2011,
Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$3,320,000 (2010:
HK$2,759,000).

design fees paid/payable by the Group to the
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(iv) Installation and decoration

(v)

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Group may
appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out installation and decoration
works for certain property development projects of the Group and
Hanjiang agrees to procure any member of the Hanjiang Group
which is engaged in the business of installation and decoration, to
carry out such installation and decoration works for the Group. The
amount of installation and decoration fees payable by the Group to
the Hanjiang Group for carrying out the installation and decoration
works for various property development projects of the Group in
the PRC shall be determined by the parties by reference to, and
shall not be higher than, the prevailing market rates charged by
independent third parties for similar installation and decoration
works and the standards prescribed by the relevant governmental
authorities of such area where the particular property is located.
During the year ended 31st December 2011, installation and
decoration fees paid/payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group
amounted to approximately HK$48,357,000 (2010:
HK$42,487,000).

Office lease

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Hanjiang
Group agrees to lease certain premises in Guangzhou to the Group
for use as office. The rent payable by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group will be determined by reference to the prevailing market
rents charged by independent third parties for the leasing of similar
properties in the vicinity. During the year ended 371st December
2011, rental paid/payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group
amounted to approximately HK$2,506,000 (2010: HK$1,203,000).
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(vi) Electrical power installation, intelligent

building installation works, budgeting and
construction cost control consultation

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Group may
appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out electrical power installation
and intelligent building installation works for certain property
development projects of the Group and to provide consultation
services to the Group in relation to budgeting and construction cost
control. The amount of fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group for carrying out electrical power installation works for the
property projects of the Group will be determined by reference to,
and shall not be higher than, the prevailing market rates charged by
independent third parties for similar works and the standards
prescribed by the relevant governmental authorities of such area
where the property is located. The amount of fees payable by the
Group to the Hanjiang Group for carrying out intelligent building
installation works for certain property projects of the Group in the
PRC will be determined by reference to, and shall not be higher
than, the prevailing market rates charged by independent third
parties for similar works and the standards prescribed by the
relevant governmental authorities of such area where the property
is located. The amount of fees payable by the Group to the
Hanjiang Group for the provision of budgeting and construction
cost control consultation services to the Group will be determined
by reference to, and shall not be higher than, 12K IE Bk 75Uk B 12
# (Standard Fees for Tender Agencies) issued by 1t 2 E ALk
2% 8% (Beijing Municipal Commission of Development and
Reform) in respect of the provision of services to assist in the tender
process and TiZEERARBKEERETHE (Provisional
Administrative Measures on Consultation Fees for Construction
Budgeting) issued by the relevant department of Z&&& =B (Ministry of
Construction) now known as 1= MRS (Ministry of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development) in respect of the provision
of budgeting services. During the year ended 31st December 2011,
fees for electrical power installation works, intelligent building
installation works and budgeting and construction cost control
consultation services paid/payable by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group amounted to approximately HK$144,552,000 (2010:
HK$109,403,000).
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(vii) Construction supervision

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Group may
appoint the Hanjiang Group to supervise the construction of certain
property development projects of the Group. The amount of
construction supervision fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group for supervising the construction of certain property projects
of the Group shall be determined by the parties by reference to the
prevailing market rates charged by independent third parties for the
provision of similar construction supervision works and the
standards prescribed under 3% T F2ESIR BAAE G IR IGUL BT 4
(Construction Project Monitoring and Related Services Fees
Standard). During the year ended 31st December 2011,
construction supervision fees paid/payable by the Group to the
Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$6,827,000 (2010:
HK$6,418,000).

(viii) Shop lease

(ix)

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Group agrees
to lease certain premises in Guangzhou, Beijing and Tianjin to the
Hanjiang Group for use as shops. The rent receivable by the Group
from the Hanjiang Group will be determined by reference to the
market rents charged by Group for the leasing of the same or
similar properties to independent third parties in the vicinity. During
the year ended 31st December 2011, no rental was received/
receivable by the Group from the Hanjiang Group (2010: nil).

Vacant property management

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Hanjiang
Group may appoint the Group to manage certain vacant properties
of the Hanjiang Group located in Guangzhou, Beijing and Xi'an.
The amount of management fees receivable by the Group from the
Hanjiang Group will be determined by the parties by reference to
the standards on property management fees and related costs
prescribed by the Guangdong Provincial, Beijing Municipal and
Xi'an local authorities and the property pricing guidelines issued by
the local government. During the year ended 31st December 2011,
vacant property management fees received/receivable by the Group
from the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$2,672,000 (2010: HK$5,967,000).
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(x) Design

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Hanjiang
Group may appoint the Group to carry out design works for certain
property projects of the Hanjiang Group. The amount of design fees
receivable by the Group from the Hanjiang Group will be
determined by the parties by reference to the prevailing market
rates charged by independent third parties for undertaking similar
design projects and the standards and guidelines prescribed by the
relevant local authority on fees chargeable for the provision of
similar services (if any). During the year ended 31st December 2011,
design fees received/receivable by the Group from the Hanjiang
Group amounted to approximately HK$12,852,000 (2010:
HK$16,312,000).

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
transactions and confirmed that:

() a. the above transactions have been conducted at arm'’s
length between the parties on normal commercial terms
or, if there are not sufficient comparable transactions to
judge whether they are on normal commercial terms,
on terms no less favorable to the Company than terms
available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties;

b.  the above transactions have been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;

c.  the above transactions have been carried out in
accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole;

(i) during the year ended 31st December 2011, total
construction fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group
amounted to approximately HK$571,916,000 (2010:
HK$2,275,708,000), which have not exceeded the annual
construction fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group in
respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 30th April 2009 (the
“Announcement”);

(x)
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(iii)

(vii)

during the year ended 371st December 2011, management
fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$945,000 (2010: HK$1,104,000), which
have not exceeded the annual management fees paid/payable
to the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as
disclosed in the Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2011, design fees paid/
payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$3,320,000 (2010: HK$2,759,000) which have not
exceeded the annual design fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang
Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2011, installation and
decoration fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group
amounted to approximately HK$48,357,000 (2010:
HK$42,487,000) which have not exceeded the annual
installation and decoration fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang
Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2011, office rental
paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$2,506,000 (2010: HK$1,203,000), which
has not exceeded the annual office rental paid/payable to the
Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed
in the Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2011, fees for electrical
power installation, intelligent building installation, and
budgeting and construction cost control consultation services
paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$144,552,000 (2010: HK$109,403,000),
which have not exceeded the annual fees for electrical power
installation, intelligent building installation, and budgeting
and construction cost control consultation services paid/
payable to the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcement;
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(viii) during the year ended 31st December 2011, construction

(ix)

(xi)

supervision fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group
amounted to approximately HK$6,827,000 (2010:
HK$6,418,000), which have not exceeded the annual
construction supervision fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang
Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2011, no shop rental
was received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group (2010: nil),
which have not exceeded the annual shop rental received/
receivable from the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2011, vacant property
management fees received/receivable from the Hanjiang
Group amounted to approximately HK$2,672,000 (2010:
HK$5,967,000), which have not exceeded the annual vacant
property management fees received/receivable from the
Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed
in the Announcement; and

during the year ended 31st December 2011, design fees
received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$12,852,000 (2010: HK$16,312,000),
which have not exceeded the annual design fees received/
receivable from the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcement.

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the abovementioned
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in
accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.38. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions, the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements under the Listing
Rules in force from time to time.
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Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Mang Yee (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Yi (Deputy Chairman and Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 7th November 2011)

Mr. Xiang Bin (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Xue Hu (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 1st March 2012)

Mr. Au Wai Kin

Ms. Zhao Ming Feng (Chief Financial Officer)
(resigned on 7th November 2011)

Mr. Liao Ruo Qing

Ms. Chu Kut Yung (appointed on 7th November 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Au Wai Kin, Mr. Xiang
Bin and Mr. Liao Ruo Qing retire from office by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, all the Directors appointed
by the Directors during the year shall retire at the annual general meeting
next following their appointment. Accordingly, Mr. Zhang Yi and Ms. Chu
Kut Yung retire from office and, being eligible, offers themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors’
Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received independence confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David,
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver and Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron and
considers them to be independent.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 41 to the accompanying financial statements,
no other contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, associates, jointly
controlled entity or holding company was a party and in which any of the
Company'’s Directors had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31st December 2011, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”),
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions in shares

RZE——F+-_A=+—HB ARFAE
ERTRAHREESFRBMEER (T35
REEGREID EXVEIRTRF8D BEANE
A B R B SR P B A AN R A S H AT R AR B
ZE(EZREFLPEKROBEXVER) Z B
- HEBRDREFTHREREZEDIARR
(BREREZEZ LB G ZZFRERR
REBIEREE 2 BEIRRA)  KBAFIA
REEFMAEGRIFINGTUFEZE
A HRBELTETAEFTETES
RpMBEESTA(FLESTH D) BAENE R
RAINBRFTZ R IORBREHINAT ¢

RG22 =

Number of shares of the Company

ERARBHE

Approximate

percentage of

Personal Family Corporate Other shares

Name of directors interests interests interests interests Total outstanding
HEBTRE

BEspgs PN £ RikER DRER Hib s CEi BAEDL
Mr. Chu Mang Yee (a) K& & 5t 4 (a) — — 1,101,003,809 — 1,101,003,809 63.42%
Mr. Zhang Vi RER LA 90,000 — — — 90,000 0.01%
Mr. Au Wai Kin (b) B %K & () — — 34,500,000 — 34,500,000 1.99%

Notes: Mat -

a. Mr. Chu Mang Yee held 1,032,363,809 shares of the Company through Sounda
Properties Limited, a company wholly-owned by him, and 68,640,000 shares of the
Company through Hopson Education Charitable Funds Limited, a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Chu.

b. Mr. Au Wai Kin held 34,500,000 shares of the Company through a company wholly-
owned and controlled by him.

a. KEGHELEBRSEEEZ RN AINEERFR
RARBEHEZERTERA AN FNFEEL
7]1,032,363,809 /i % 68,640,000 % % 177

b BEZALBBREZEHAREHNZZAFELR
73 7] 34,500,000 5% 2 17 °
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2011, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company and their respective associates
had any personal, family, corporate or other interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or any of their spouses
or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate, and no Directors or chief executives or their respective spouses
or children under 18 years of age had been granted any right to subscribe
for equity or debt securities of the Company nor exercised any such right.

Substantial Shareholders

Other than interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures” above, as at 31st December 2011, according to the register
of interests kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, the
following entity had interests or short positions in the shares of the
Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

BREXHEEN R_T——F+_-A=
T—B ARRES THAKIESFEAE
ZHB A ERRIEE S BB R EXV
BETRESDMANGARANBRIAE
ARARARLEERMABEE(EERES
KEIEEPIFEXVED) 2 Bt - #EBE R K&
FRHEAEMEA Kk ARHEMER
KRB (BRBREFESFLPEGRIZZEFR
ERRBRBXEERBZEDIAR) S
BHIAREE 7 M E RO 35216 F 17
EZECMA IREFETRLEANE
ARARRBZHZERMEA  Kik - RAEH
Hib sk R o

RERETAEHE AR HEEAHEBR
AYETIEMNZE WEEFARFZ
EAEBI T \RATFREEEREE
AR AT A E AR A B 2 D 3 E 7=
MmgEhEs TEEFHITREAHNKSE
EEZEBHTNARAT FREERERM
BANRBARABRNDIEFESFHET
EEMZFREAN -

FERR

B EXTES RITHAMNEG - HERG
MEFHERZERIRR | R ENER
I RZFB——F+ZA=+—8B EEARQ
AREESFLRPERIEIBHRFEZERT
MAreCsk THEEBRARABRDTES
REZBSFRBEGIEXVIE2RFEID
BRARARBEZRBIRR

Capacity and Number of Approximate percentage
Name of shareholder nature of interests issued shares of shares outstanding
IR & BOREENE ERITROHE HERTROMABI
Sounda Properties Limited Beneficial owner 1,032,363,809 59.47%
MEBXARAA EmEAA
Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other persons B EXRETEE SN - BLE FPTAN - BLET A H

who, as at 31st December 2011, had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO.
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Information on Share Option Scheme BRETENER

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted on 4th &N A & 7 BERR T 21 ([Z =T 2 )) ¥ =

= =

November 2002. The following table is a summary of the Scheme — &+ — AP BES - R i HBIFZ%
disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules: AENMERERZOT

1. Purpose of the Scheme

ZaTEIB A

2. Participants of the Scheme

ZatElz2EE

3. Total number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme and
percentage of issued share capital
as at 30th March 2012
BEZAETEITROBEHR
R-E——F=ZA=+HHE
BITRABOL

4. Maximum entitlement of each
participant under the Scheme
BEZAEBR2EENER
= EREEE

5. The period within which the
shares must be taken up under an
option

BITEBEERBRD ZHR

As recognition of the contribution of the participants by granting options to them as
incentives or rewards.

M2EERTHERBEARGRENOTE - L AU ERB @85 -

Any executive, employee, director (including non-executive director and independent
non-executive director), consultant, adviser and/or agent of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries.

RARKEFEMMBRARIZEMITRAE EE EX(BREIFATESER
BUERITESR) FAA BEREREIREA-

100,200,000 shares unless shareholders’ approval has been obtained pursuant to
the terms of the Scheme (approximately 5.77% of issued share capital).

B IE AR 15 7% 5T 81 R SROE R BEfE - & A %100,200,000 A% A 17 (14 B B 17 IR AR
#15.77%) °

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of share
options already granted or to be granted to each participant (including both
exercised and outstanding share options) in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital as at the
date of grant. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be subject to certain
requirements as stipulated in the rules of the Scheme.

BERSLEEEAMNBEREHABEEZED) LT ZEARMRNEER S HE
BRBRETUATERMETIREBTZRMEB(BEETERRKRITE
BB AR ) - ﬁ‘i@ﬁf\\&ﬁ HHIEZETRAE1% - E - TR O (EM @R
REE . BERRiE  RETZAERNATHZETHRE -

Commencing on the date of grant of an option and expiring at 5:00 p.m. on the
earlier of the business day preceding the fifth anniversary thereof and the business
day preceding the tenth anniversary of the day on which the Scheme was adopted.
BEREXEAHEEZREEMERBEF F— AL X AN ERRAZETE
FETEFzEF—EAE%B CAREERE) TFAKIERERM -
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6. The minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can
be exercised
ARITEAFABRE 2 ZEY
R

7. The amount payable on
application or acceptance of the
option and the period within
which payments or calls must or
may be made or loans for such
purpose must be repaid
REXENBREZENSR
VA R ASF RS 8 A1 AN R 2 B BR =X
ERPFEREER R

8. The basis of determining the
exercise price

BETEREZEE

9. The remaining life of the Scheme

EA E_I_ %‘J E/\] a%” ﬁ% /HH BE

Completion of half year’s full-time services with the Company or a subsidiary.

RARABH—HMBRARETFFERRE -

The exercise price is determined by the board of Directors and shall at least be the
highest of:
TREREFGET  TEERUTZESE

the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer of the relevant options;

REHEEBEREZEREARARNREXMEBEARER ZWHE

the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the relevant options;
REZEHEBBEREZERMOMAEXBARARONBRMAE AR
BXRZFHETE:

the net asset value per share as determined in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and with reference to the latest published
audited financial statements in the annual report or the latest published
unaudited accounts in the interim report (whichever is more recent) of the
Group on the date of offer of the relevant options; and

R EEBREER REREBVBRELNFAELZZARAEEH &
THRNE 2 FRALCERYBERRIAZOPTNE PP REARLE
REEE (ABEHERE)METEREEFE &

the nominal value of the Company’s shares.
RRARIKRMHEE

The Scheme was adopted on 4th November 2002 and will expire at 5:00 p.m. on the
business day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary thereof.

ZERTENR _ET_F+-ANBRS EEERETBFAIc L -—EEXBET
FREFELLE-

105



106

Hopson Development Holdings Limited - Annual Report 2011

Report of the Directors (continued)

&= ()

Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

The Group earns revenue and incurs costs and expenses mainly in
Renminbi and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the
exposure of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar and US dollar. However,
Directors do not anticipate any significant foreign exchange loss as a
result of changes in exchange rate between Hong Kong dollar, US dollar
and Renminbi in the foreseeable future.

Management Contract

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

Employees

As at 31st December 2011, the Group, excluding its associates and jointly
controlled entities, employed a total of 8,238 (as at 31st December 2010:
7,239) staff, the majority of which were employed in the Mainland China.
Employees’ costs (including Directors’ emoluments) amounted to HK$620
million (2010: HK$445 million) for the year ended 31st December 2011.

The fundamental policy of the Group’s remuneration and incentive
scheme is to link total compensation of executive Directors, senior
management and employees with the achievement of the Group’s annual
and long-term corporate goals and objectives. Remuneration package is
performance-based and takes into account business performance, market
practice and competitive market conditions in order to attract, motivate
and retain talent. The remuneration package of executive Directors and
senior management comprises salaries, bonuses, discretionary bonus and
other benefits-in-kind.

Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly represent
their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various committee
meetings. The recommended remuneration package of the independent
non-executive Directors comprises annual director’s fee and fee for
representation on board committees.
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The remuneration of all the Directors during the financial year is set out in
Note 31 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments
disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Ordinance and
Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in Note 31 to the financial
statements.

Purchase, Redemption and Sale of the
Company'’s Listed Securities

During the year ended 31st December 2011, the Company repurchased a
total of 16,364,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the

LSHAREEBRAT - ST —FFH
AEHFELEEE2HFHE SRR
KM EE3T -

RIE R A MBI 5 16180 K iR B 8 164
ECEERoREEEMNES S S0
BERERMIFE3 -

BE BEERHEFAQFZEL

m 7% &

Hz_ZT——F+_A=+—"BHILFE"
RN T) B B A B BE [0 16,364,000 A% 2 A &) %

P

Company on the Stock Exchange, details of which are as follows: AAEREEI0ETZKG - BHEFFIEW
T
Aggregate
Number of consideration
shares Highest price  Lowest price (excluding
Month of repurchase &[Gl B 15 repurchased paid per share paid per share expenses)
B8 = iR 12 28R ENER BRE
2EA BafE BREE (FEEHBEX)
(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)
(&) (BT (&)
September 2011 —E——%NA 12,358,000 4.80 420 55,062,740
October 2011 —F—F1+A 4,006,000 4.21 3.75 15,868,500
16,364,000 70,931,240

The issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal
value of the repurchased shares which had been cancelled. The premium
paid for the repurchase of the shares and related expenses totaling
HK$68,742,000 were charged to the reserves.

The repurchases of shares were effected by the Directors pursuant to the
general mandate approved by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 16th June 2011, with a view to
benefiting shareholders as a whole by enhancing the net asset value per

share and earnings per share of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31st December 2011.
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Corporate Governance

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 109 to 119 of the annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company has maintained during the year under review the amount of
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor for the ensuing year is

to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
On behalf of the board of Directors

CHU MANG YEE
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30th March 2012
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The Company strives to attain high standards of corporate governance.
The Board believes that effective corporate governance will continue to
improve transparency, risk controls and ultimately enhance shareholders’
value.

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the year 2011, except
that the non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed for
specific terms as they are all subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election by shareholders at the annual general meeting at least once every
three years in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company which in the
opinion of the Board meets the objective of the Code and the Chairman
of the Board did not attend the annual general meeting for year 2011
due to other business commitment.

Compliance with Model Code

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions during the year under review. Upon enquiry by the Company,
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31st
December 2011.

Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises six executive and three independent non-
executive Directors, whose biographical details are set out in the
Directors’ Profile section on pages 72 to 76 which demonstrate a balance
of core competence having regard to the business of the Group. Pursuant
to the Company’s Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and their re-election is subject to a vote of shareholders at the
annual general meeting. The Board believes that the independent non-
executive Directors, with diversified backgrounds and industry skills, shall
offer experience, independent judgement advice on issues relating to
strategy, performance, conflict of interest and the overall management of
the Company such that the interests of all shareholders are considered

and safeguarded.
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Board of Directors (continued)

The Board is responsible to the shareholders for leadership and control of
the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Group and its business by directing and supervising the Group's affairs.
The Board oversees the Group's strategic development and determines
the objectives, strategies and policies of the Group. The Board also
monitors and controls operating and financial performance in pursuit of
the Group's strategic objectives. The Board members have access to
timely information in relation to the Group’s business and make further
enquires when necessary. The Directors may seek independent
professional advice on issues relating to the Group’s business at the
Group’s expenses. The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal actions against its Directors.

Ms. Chu Kut Yung, an executive Director of the Company, is the daughter
of Mr. Chu Mang Yee, the Chairman of the Company.

Apart from the aforesaid, there are no other financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships among the members of the Board.
There was no such relationship as between Mr. Chu Mang Yee, the
Chairman of the Company and Mr. Xue Hu, the Chief Executive Officer,
who has resigned as an executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company with effect from 1st March 2012.

All independent non-executive Directors have offered sufficient time and
efforts to serve the business affairs of the Company and possess
appropriate academic and professional qualifications and related
management experience and have contributed to the Board with their
professional opinion.

Of the three independent non-executive Directors at least one has
appropriate financial management expertise in compliance with the
Listing Rules. Each independent non-executive Director gives the
Company an annual confirmation of his independence, and the Board
considers these Directors to be independent under the guidelines set out
in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Four Board committees, namely the Remuneration Committee, the Audit
Committee, the Option Shares Committee and the Connected
Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee have been established
to oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. The Board has
delegated the execution and daily operations of the Group’s business to
the management. However, clear directions are given to the management
as to the matters that must be approved by the Board before decisions
are made on behalf of the Group.
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Board Meetings
The Board met 4 times during year 2011 under review at which the
Directors considered and approved significant matters including, among

other things, interim and final results of the Group, statutory financial
reports, change in Board members as well as issue of senior notes.

Board meetings attended by each of the Directors were as follows:

Executive Directors HITEE
Chu Mang Yee K
Zhang Yi® /e
Xiang Bin T X,
Au Wai Kin B 2
Xue Hu? BR?
Zhao Ming Feng® HEREO
Liao Ruo Qing BRE
Chu Kut Yung® KIERY
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIAKEHITES
Lee Tsung Hei, David THEE
Wong Shing Kay, Oliver AR
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron g
Notes:
1. Mr. Zhang Yi was appointed as an executive Director on 7th November 2011.
2. Mr. Xue Hu resigned on 1st March 2012.
3. Ms. Zhao Ming Feng resigned on 7th November 2011.
4. Ms. Chu Kut Yung was appointed as an executive Director on 7th November 2011.

7 additional Board meetings were held during year 2011 for the purposes
of approving some operational matters such as approval of the provision
of guarantees by the Company in respect of bank loans granted to the
Company’s subsidiaries and change of qualified accountant and
authorised representative.
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Board Meetings (continued)

Board meetings attended by each of the Directors were as follows:

Executive Directors BITES
Chu Mang Yee K
Zhang Yi R B
Xiang Bin 18

Au Wai Kin B 2
Xue Hu EE R
Zhao Ming Feng HHRE
Liao Ruo Qing BEE
Chu Kut Yung KIER
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYFHITES
Lee Tsung Hei, David THEE
Wong Shing Kay, Oliver HAE
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron BREEE

One meeting of a board committee was held during the year 2011 for
the purpose of approving certain matters relating to issue of senior notes
by the Company. The said meeting was attended by two executive
Directors, namely Mr. Xue Hu and Ms. Zhao Ming Feng.

Between Board meetings, the senior management of the Company
provides the Directors with information on a timely basis regarding the
activities and developments in the businesses of the Group and meets
with the independent non-executive Directors to seek their views on the
business and operational matters of the Group.

The company secretary keeps detailed minutes of each meeting which are
available for inspection by all Directors.
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Non-Executive Directors

The three independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for a
specific term. This constitutes a deviation from Code provision A.4.1 with
respect to the appointment of non-executive directors for a specific term
subject to re-election. However, all Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election by shareholders at the annual general meeting at
least once every three years in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company. In the opinion of the Board, this meets the objective of the
Code.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Chu Mang Yee. The Chief Executive
Officer of the Company was Mr. Xue Hu, who resigned from the Board
on 1st March 2012.

The role of the Chairman was segregated from that of the Chief Executive
Officer during year 2011.

The Chairman is responsible for managing and providing leadership to
the Board in terms of formulating overall strategies, business directions
and policies of the Company. The Chairman is also responsible for
overseeing effective functions of the Board, application of good corporate
governance practices and procedures, and encourages the Directors to
make full and active contribution to the affairs of the Board. With the
support of the executive Directors and the company secretary, the
Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receive complete and reliable information
in a timely manner.

The Chief Executive Officer is directly responsible for the day-to-day
management of the business of the Company, co-ordinating overall
business operations and maintaining the operational performance of the
Company. With the assistance of the Chief Financial Officer, he ensures
that the funding requirements of the business are met and closely
monitors the operating and financial results against plans and budgets,
taking remedial action when necessary and advising the Board of any
significant developments and issues.
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Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration Committee comprises all three independent non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
assisting the Board in achieving its objective of attracting and retaining
Directors and senior management of the highest caliber and experience
needed to develop the Group's business successfully. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for the development of a fair and
transparent procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the
Directors and senior management of the Company and for determining
their remuneration packages. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David and has specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities and are posted on
the Company’s website. The principal functions of the Remuneration
Committee include:

o formulation of remuneration policy for approval by the Board;

o establishing guidelines for the recruitment of the Chief Executive
Officer and senior management;

o recommendation to the Board the policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors (including non-executive Directors and
the Chief Executive Officer) and senior management;

. determination of the remuneration of executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind and compensation
payments;

o review and approval of the compensation arrangements in
connection with any loss or termination of their office or
appointment, or dismissal or removal for misconduct to executive
Directors and senior management;

o determination of the criteria for assessing employee performance;
and

o consideration of the annual performance bonus for executive
Directors, senior management and general staff and making
recommendation to the Board.

On 28th October 2011, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) published Consultation Conclusions on Review of the
Corporate Governance Code and Associated Listing Rules. Based on these
consultation conclusions, the Stock Exchange will make amendments to
the Listing Rules and the Code. The revised Code (the “New Code”)
would come into effect from 1st April 2012.
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Remuneration of Directors (continued)

In compliance with the New Code, the Board has adopted new terms of
reference for the Remuneration Committee which will be posted on the
respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in due
course.

Three meetings were held by the Remuneration Committee during 2011
to approve the remuneration of Directors. The meetings were attended
by all members of the Remuneration Committee.

No Director is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

Nomination of Directors

The Group does not have a Nomination Committee. New Directors, being
individuals who are suitably qualified and expected to make a positive
contribution to the performance of the Board having regard to the
balance of skills and experience appropriate to the Company’s business,
are identified by existing Directors and submitted to the Board for
approval. A Director appointed by the Board is subject to re-election by
shareholders at the first annual general meeting after this appointment.

In compliance with the New Code, the Board has resolved to establish a
nomination committee and adopted terms of reference which clearly
defines its authority and duties. The composition of the nomination
committee and the related terms of reference will be posted on the
respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in due
course.

Auditor’'s Remuneration

During the year, the fees payable to the Company’s auditor for audit and
audit related services amounted to HK$5,500,000 (2010: HK$5,280,000)
and HK$2,280,000 (2010: nil) was paid for non-audit services.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-executive
Directors. It is chaired by Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David. The Board is of the
opinion that the members of the Audit Committee have sufficient
accounting and financial management expertise or experience to
discharge their duties. However, the Audit Committee is authorised to
obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice if it
considers necessary. The Audit Committee has written terms of reference
which are posted on the Company’s website. The principal functions of
the Audit Committee include:

o to make recommendations on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of external auditor and to consider the terms of such
appointments;

o to develop and implement policies on the engagement of external
auditor for non-audit services;

o to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual and
interim reports and the auditor’s report to ensure that the
information presents a true and balanced assessment of the
Group's financial position;

o to ensure the management has fulfilled its duty to maintain an
effective internal control system;

o to review internal audit programme and to ensure that it is allocated
with adequate resources and is effective; and

o to review the external auditor's management letter and any
questions raised by the auditor to the management and the
management’s response.

In compliance with the New Code, the Board has adopted new terms of
reference for the Audit Committee which will be posted on the respective
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in due course.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

In year 2011, the Audit Committee reviewed the results of an assessment
of the Group’s internal control systems, business management and
preventions against fraud and other irregularities. With respect to the
results of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2011, the
Audit Committee reviewed with the senior management and the external
auditor of the Company, their respective audit findings, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and internal control, risk
management and financial reporting matters. This review by the Audit
Committee included an appraisal of the integrity of the financial
statements and the annual report of the Company. The Audit Committee
also reviewed the external auditor’s remuneration. There was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on the
selection, appointment or resignation of external auditor.

The Audit Committee reports its work, findings and recommendations to
the Board after each meeting. During the year 2011, there were two
Audit Committee meetings. The meetings were attended by all members
of the Audit Committee.

Board Committees

In addition to the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee,
two other Board Committees have been established to assist the Board in
the execution of its duties.

(1) Connected Transactions/Related Party
Transactions Committee

The Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee
was established on 4th October 2005 and presently comprises the
three independent non-executive Directors, and chaired by Mr. Lee
Tsung Hei, David. The primary function of the Connected
Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee is to review all
connected transactions and related party transactions to ensure that
they are conducted on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group and to recommend to

the Board corrective measures in such transactions if needed.
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Board Committees (continued)

(2) Option Shares Committee

The Option Shares Committee was established on 4th November
2005 and comprises two executive Directors. Its primary function is
to deal with the allotment and issue of shares of the Company
upon the exercise of options granted or to be granted under the
Company's share option scheme adopted on 4th November 2002.

Accountability and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear and balanced assessment
of the Group’s performance, position and prospects. It is also responsible
for preparing financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
Group's financial position on a going-concern basis and other price-
sensitive announcements and financial disclosures. The management
provides the Board with the relevant information it needs to discharge
these responsibilities.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2011,
applied them consistently, and have made judgement and estimates that

the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and

are prudent and reasonable.

The Group has announced its annual and interim results in a timely
manner within the limits as laid down in the Listing Rules.

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’
interests. The Directors confirm that the Group, through its Internal
Control Department, performs regular checks on office procedures,
practices and systems to safeguard assets from inappropriate use,
maintains proper accounts and ensures compliance with regulations. The
regular reviews also cover all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions of
the Group. The Internal Control Department reports directly to the Group
Supervisory Committee which in turn reports independently to the Board.
The Internal Control Department is independent of all management
functions of the Group and has direct and independent access to the
Board. Summaries of major audit findings and control weaknesses, if any,
are reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Accountability and Internal Controls (continued)

In year 2011, no frauds and irregularities, internal control deficiencies or
infringement of laws, rules and regulations have come to the attention of
the Audit Committee to cause it to believe that the system of internal
controls is inadequate. The Board is satisfied with the adequacy of the
system of internal control of the Group.

Circulars or guidance notes were issued to Directors where appropriate to
ensure that they are aware of their continuing obligations as Directors
and corporate governance matters.

Corporate Communications and Investor
Relations

The Company continues to promote and enhance investor relations and
communications with its investors. Communication have been maintained
with the media, analysts and fund managers through meetings.
Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company'’s developments.

The Company provides detailed press releases and reports to its
shareholders on the Group’s business and financial positions with timely
annual report and interim report, to ensure that they are effectively
informed of the Group’s status and developments. General presentations
are made immediately after the announcement of financial results. The
website of the Group is also updated regularly to keep investors and the
general public informed of the latest development of the Group.

The Company’s annual general meetings allow the Directors to meet and
communicate with shareholders, providing a forum for the shareholders’
views to be communicated to the Board. Both Directors and senior
management make an effort to attend. External auditors are also available
at the annual general meetings to address shareholders’ queries. Separate
resolutions are proposed for each issue considered at the annual general
meetings. The 2011 annual general meeting circular was distributed to all
shareholders not less than 20 clear business days prior to the annual
general meeting, setting out details of each proposed resolution, voting
procedures and other relevant information. The procedures for
conducting a poll were explained by the chairman presiding at the annual
general meeting at the beginning of the meeting.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hopson
Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 122 to 253, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31st December 2011,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated cash flow statement and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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Report of the Independent Auditor (continued)
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
December 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30th March 2012
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Asat31st December2011 R-ZF——F+-H=+—H
Note
k=3

ASSETS £E
Non-current assets kRBEE
Land costs T HLB AR 6
Prepayments for Yo £ B FRE
acquisition of land 19
Properties and equipment ENE 7
Investment properties REME 8
Intangible assets BVAE 11
Investments in subsidiaries RIBARZIRE 12
Investments in associates RBEDRZERE 13
Investments in jointly A LR 5
controlled entities ERZRE 14
Available-for-sale financial assets B it H &£ B B A 7 16
Deposit for proposed investment  E#RE 2K E 17
Deferred tax assets BIERBEE 25
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments for Y hE £ s B AR
acquisition of land 19
Properties under AHHE 2
development for sale BERPME 9
Completed properties for sale AfHE B EKME 10
Financial assets at fair value RATEERER
through profit or loss SIEZHBEE 18
Accounts receivable & W AR X 20
Prepayments, deposits and BRHE Zek
other current assets HimB & E 19
Due from associates JE Ui Bt A B SRR 41
Due from related companies e WA E A R HIB 41
Loans to subsidiaries PR o= 12
Pledged/charged bank deposits BEA/ RDBITER 21
Cash and cash equivalents Re kAL ZEEY 21
Total assets BEE

Consolidated

e

2011
—EBE-—F
HK$'000
TERT

714,967

131,221
3,264,839
16,637,473
41,245

151,685

1,753,004
5,203,335

220,240

13,508,836

49,064,535
11,640,241

11,456
232,940

3,634,376
31,890
6,188

1,030,093
2,618,161

81,778,716

109,896,725

HK$'000
TET

622,193

209,795
3,199,845
15,405,498
124,837

43,433

1,512,923
3,316,388
560,210
167,541

25,162,663

18,053,335

31,967,756
10,487,033

11,693
171,953

2,565,026
30,382
13,644

123,671

2,573,604

65,998,097

91,160,760

Company
AT

2011 2010
—B--fF —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FET
15,228,037
18,365,896 15,228,037
290
137,345 218,274
20,449
138,293 239,013

18,504,189 15,467,050



Balance Sheets (continued)

Consolidated

)
2011
—E-—F
HK$'000
THERT

173,600
40,910,852

41,084,452
2,981,657

44,066,109

81,481
21,718,581

439,841
5,816,801

28,056,704

5,120,006
602,612
13,629,307
9,679,048

2,962,465
6,808
81,704
1,574,135
4,117,827

65,830,616

109,896,725

Y, EIS ==
HEAEE G
Asat 31st December 2011 R-ZE——F+_H=+—H
Note
Wi &%
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves ERARREFEA
attributable to the BHERERFE
Company's equity holders
Share capital [ 27
Reserves & 28
Non-controlling interests FEFE I R =
Total equity BEEE
LIABILITIES a8
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Land cost payable FEA LA A 22
Borrowings BE 24
Due to minority shareholders ENMBARDH
of subsidiaries IR 2 SR 4
Deferred tax liabilities EXRIEEE 25
Current liabilities REAE
Accounts payable FE BRI 23
Land cost payable JE LAk A 22
Borrowings BE 24
Deferred revenue EEA
Accruals and other payables FERTRIE R E A
JE T RIE
Due to an associate B A R 2 ZOR 41
Due to related companies EBEARZREA 41
Due to a jointly controlled entity  JE{ tt %41 B 52 2 K E 41
Current tax liabilities ABHBEAE 26
Total liabilities EEAE
Total equity and liabilities EEREELE
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE/(BF)FE

44,004,804

Total assets less current liabilities # & & 7 8 & &

BHEAREBARAR - —T——FFH
Company
AT
2011 2010
—E--f —ZE-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TER TER TET
175,237 173,600 175,237
38,011,918 13,154,706 12,538,507
38,187,155 13,328,306 12,713,744
2,805,944 — —
40,993,099 13,328,306 12,713,744
111,178 = —
20,047,524 2,290,102 2,697,576
432,323 —
5,551,128 =
26,142,153 2,290,102 2,697,576
5,645,612 — =
264,271 — =
3,671,919 2,707,119 =
5,544,615 — —
2,196,200 159,137 37,947
6,486 =
344,057 =
1,709,345 —
4,643,003 17,783
24,025,508 2,885,781 55,730
50,167,661 CAVER:X] 2,753,306
91,160,760 18,504,189 15,467,050
41,972,589 (2,747,488) 183,283
67,135,252 15,618,408 15,411,320

72,122,813

CHU MANG YEE
REMK

Director

EF

The notes on pages 130 to 253 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

#B1D °

ZHANG YI
RE

Director

EF

F10E2BEZMER/UMBHERREH —
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Consolidated Income Statement

»'/TIIIJ: ‘\i%

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #HZE - EF——#F+_H=+—HIFF&E

2011 2010
—E——4F —_E-F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B E FHET FET
Revenues Uk & 5 8,007,537 14,379,253
Cost of sales $H & A 30 (4,329,161) (8,692,021)
Gross profit | 3,678,376 5,687,232
Fair value gains on investment properties % & 1) 2 2 8 U 25 107,397 3,795,624
Other income/gains, net Hi g AU zs - B 4E 29 99,732 1,124,053
Selling and marketing expenses HELRTHEESE R 30 (466,549) (410,225)
General and administrative expenses —RETTHRER 30 (1,009,398) (1,117,712)
Operating profit FE— i 2,409,558 9,078,972
Finance income R TN 32 29,098 17,039
Finance costs B 75 Ak 2N 32 (238,539) (253,307)
Share of profit less loss of associates SAGEEE A alE MR E 1B 13 351 1,071
Share of loss of jointly controlled entities 5> 1f £ [/ 122 &I & 2% &5 18 14 (3,284) (666)
Profit before taxation B B R 2,197,184 8,843,109
Taxation Fi18 33 (788,773) (2,550,097)
Profit for the year FERF 1,408,411 6,293,012
Attributable to: FEAG -
Equity holders of the Company KN IREEE A 34 1,430,031 5,889,412
Non-controlling interests JEd M RE 2R (21,620) 403,600
1,408,411 6,293,012
Earnings per share for profit RERAEQATRERFEA
attributable to equity holders EEREANTEZER
of the Company during the year 2F|
(in HK$ per share) (BB
— basic —EK 35 3.43
— diluted —#E 35 3.42
Dividends hg= 36 300,531

The notes on pages

statements.

130 to 253 are an integral part of these financial

#B1D ©

FI130E253B 2 AL ERERE AR —



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

A 4 TN R

For the year ended 31st December 2011

BE-_FT——F+-A=+—HIFE

BHEREEERAF -

2011
—E——F
Note HK$'000
Bt 5 FET
Profit for the year FERF 1,408,411
Other comprehensive income His2HEUWA
Fair value (loss)/gain AHEERFEEEY
on available-for-sale financial assets NTE(BE), W (40,645)
Assets revaluation reserve realised upon HERBIEREWER
disposal of properties held for sale BR o BEESEHHFHE 28(ii) (26,684)
Deferred tax IR E T IR 2,156
Currency translation differences BHEN 58 2,044,172
Other comprehensive income FEHME2EKA -
for the year, net of tax HKRHER 1,978,999
Total comprehensive income FEXEBALE
for the year 3,387,410
Total comprehensive income THALEEZE
attributable to: LON L
Equity holders of the Company KARIREZFEA 3,268,207

Non-controlling interests

FEREHI MR

119,203

3,387,410

The notes on pages 130 to 253 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

#B1D ©

—E——FFH

HK$'000
TAT

6,293,012

542,775
(86,447)

24,880
1,302,553

1,783,761

8,076,773

7,586,266
490,507

8,076,773

F130E23B 2WEFA MM BEHRERE S —
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
»‘/—‘r =) ﬁ é {)lb

For the year ended 31st December 2011 E £ —F——F+ - H=+—HIFFE

2011 2010
—E——fF —E-F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 THERT FAT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHZEHESRE
Cash used in operations KEFAZIRS 37(a) (926,706) (6,193,801)
Interest received 2 U F B 29,098 17,039
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREENEH (45) (15,028)
Mainland China corporate 2 A B K R
income tax paid EEEMN (1,144,532) (1,220,350)
Mainland China land BT AR B KR i
appreciation tax paid 1% (5 (425,181) (256,876)
Net cash used in operating activities KETZEAMAZ
e FH (2,467,366) (7,669,016)
Cash flows from investing activities RETEZRERE
Additions of land costs BE A £ i B AS (66,922) (282,056)
Additions of properties and equipment YN ENSE & (50,711) (71,347)
Deposit for proposed investment FBHREZES — (550,678)
Dividend income fig 24 A 68,843 15,292
Additions of investment properties BAREE (610,149) (471,920)
Decrease/(increase) in deposit paid B e R, (M) 292,484 (175,589)
Capital injection to a jointly A] — [ 2 R 45 &)
controlled entity EREEE (278,925)
Investment in a jointly BA—RERRES
controlled entity EEE (164,146) =
Investment in an associate BA—MHBE QA (105,736) =
Additions of available-for-sale BARTHEHEE
financial assets WEEE (1,161,112) =
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of BEMREAF -
cash acquired HEBEANE 2 37(b) (684,453) —
Decrease in prepayments for acquisition W B - b TE 1 FROB
of land N 86,830 64,843
Prepayment for acquisition of a jointly BE—ELRZEH
controlled entity BB RIE (1,504,151) =
(Increase)/decrease in pledged/charged BER R RITE 7f_ e
bank deposits (), m (878,488) 49,779
Net cash used in investing activities KEEBMAZ
B e -] (4,777,711) (1,700,601)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)
malashig® (E)
For the year ended 31st December 2011 #HZE - E——#F+_-H=+—HIF/Z

2011 2010
— —F-F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FTHERT FAT
Cash flows from financing activities MEITE2EERE
New short-term bank loans MR HIRITER 6,269,025 2,019,084
Repayments of short-term bank loans EEEHRITER (2,690,804) (4,228,791)
New long-term bank loans I EHISRITE R 8,389,515 12,786,036
Repayments of long-term bank loans EERBRITER (3,882,722) (1,610,374)
New senior notes g ELEEE 2,288,733 —
Redemption of convertible bonds B ATk ES = (2,211,510)
Repayment to a jointly BEART —HEHE
controlled entity S E (214,707) (193,378)
(Repayment to)/advances from (BEBRZT) 8%
related companies REBERQR (270,743) 162,011
Interest paid EATFE (2,353,452) (1,250,864)
Capital contributions by non-controlling eI S B
interests = 16,635
Repurchase of own shares 5 B 7N & iR 9 (70,379) (270,298)
Dividends paid to the Company’s DI il /NI )
equity holders BEAZKE (300,531) —
Net cash from financing activities MERDEEZ
Re F8R 7,163,935 5,218,551
Net decrease in cash and ReRESEBEYZ
cash equivalents WD EE (81,142) (4,151,066)
Cash and cash equivalents R—HAH—HBZ
at 1st January RekReZEED 2,573,604 6,546,144
Exchange gain on cash and RekBReEEWZ
cash equivalents b 5 i 2= 125,699 178,526
Cash and cash equivalents R+=—A=+—HZ2
at 31st December WERRESEEY 2,618,161 2,573,604

The notes on pages 130 to 253 are an integral part of these financial £5130% 2538 Z Mt sT At B Rk Eh —
statements. 2 o



128

Hopson Development Holdings Limited - Annual Report 2011

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For theyearended37stDecember2077 e E——F+_HA=+—HIFEZE

Attributable to equity
holders of the Company
ARAIRERE ARG

Non-
Share controlling
capital Reserves interests Total
FE1E 1
& AR f#E R’ BET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FiET FiET FiET
Balance as 1st January 2010 RZT—FF
—A—B2z &% 159,237 28,034,506 2,305,733 30,499,476
Profit for the year FEHF — 5,889,412 403,600 6,293,012
Other comprehensive income: HEm2miA
Fair value gain on AHHENBEE L

available-for-sale RNEE MRS

financial assets — 542,775 — 542,775
Assets revaluation reserve HERIEHEMER

realised upon disposal of SR EESR

properties held for sale {85 (P = 28(i))

(Note 28(ii)) — (86,447) — (86,447)
Deferred tax EIERIE — 24,880 = 24,880
Currency translation ERERZE

differences — 1,215,646 86,907 1,302,553

Other comprehensive income FEHEMEEBRA -

for the year, net of tax Mk B1E — 1,696,854 86,907 1,783,761
Total comprehensive income FEZ2ERA

for the year — 7,586,266 490,507 8,076,773
Transactions with owners: HEEERSD

Proceeds from issue of shares, BTG 2 FR5RIE

— Placements —iE 18,546 2,692,900 — 2,711,446
Repurchase of own shares B8 B AN & fg 1 (2,546) (267,752) — (270,298)
Acquisition of additional E—HWE

equity interests of LiNENS i g

a subsidiary — (34,002) (6,931) (40,933)
Capital contribution by FEEHIEEEHE

non-controlling interests — = 16,635 16,635

16,000 2,391,146 9,704 2,416,850
Balance at 31st December 2010 R-ZE—ZF+ - A
=t+—HZ&E® 175,237 38,011,918 2,805,944 40,993,099
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

A B ME 2 5 B 5% (A

For the year ended 31st December 2011

Balance as 1st January 2011

R_T——%F
—A—Bz#&H

HE-F——F+ZA=1T—HALFE

Attributable to equity
holders of the Company

KATRRERE AEMNL
Share
capital Reserves
% 2 R
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THERT

175,237 38,011,918

Non-
controlling
interests
IE 42
R
HK$’000
F#

2,805,944

—E——FFH

129

Total
#at
HK$'000
FERT

40,993,099

Profit for the year

F R A

— 1,430,0

(21,62

1,408,411

Other comprehensive income:

Fair value loss on
available-for-sale
financial assets

Assets revaluation reserve
realised upon disposal of
properties held for sale
(Note 28(ii))

Hip2EPA
AHLENBEEZ
RFEEE

HEFEHEMER
B EES
i 18 (P 7 28(11))

(40,645)

(26,684)
2,156

1,903,349

1,838,176

140,823

140,823

(40,645)

(26,684)
2,156

2,044,172

1,978,999

3,268,207

119,203

3,387,410

Deferred tax EEFIR
Currency translation EMEN =5
differences
Other comprehensive income FEHMEERA
for the year, net of tax e IE
Total comprehensive income FE2EBRALE
for the year
Transactions with owners: HEFEER S
Acquisition of equity interests U B8 — R FT B A A
of a subsidiary [ 75 7 25
Dividends paid ERRE
Repurchase of own shares EARRNE S Eh)
Balance at 31st December 2011 R-_E——F+=H
=t+t—HZ&#%

The notes on pages 130 to 253 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

= (300,531)
(1,637) (68,742)

(369,273)

173,600 40,910,852

21D °

2,981,657

56,510
(300,531)
(70,379)

44,066,109

F130E23A M FERUMBRRES —
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General Information

Hopson Development Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are mainly engaged in the
development of residential properties in Mainland China. The
Group is also involved in property investment, hotel operations and
property management.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 30th March 2012.

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to the two years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured
at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A o B 2 R B

—REHR

EHEAREEERAR(ARAD R
EWMBAR(MBIAKEDETERS
BAEREETEERER - AEETT
SEMERE  BERERMEERE -

KRR ARBRESAMAINEA
REMERA - HEMosEEiiu
/& Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda °

ARAREEBAERGMABR QA
(TBERXFr]) E70 o

AGEUBBRERENR_TE—Z-F=A4
ZSTHEESSHETE-

TEGHBERAE

RUAGEMBBRRRAZIEIEES
BRI T -BRBHAN ZF
BECRME2HZFEANEERE
FH o

2.1 REEE

ARABZEBMBHRRIRER
BUBREEN(EEH B RS
HADRE - HRAVBRRTIEK
FRESLKAER - LEERFE
AEMEGMBREYME  AIHEE
MBEEMBRATEEBERD
Rz EEM T AMERT

BEBVHRE L REEY R
REFERAETEE 2G5
A MEREERERRKAAEE
SR BRZBETELHE -5
RBZHABHERE2TTE X
BARGEEMBREMEBEEZ
RENMMGEE CEMFIRRE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ak o B 2 AR BT RE (A

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

In 2011, the Group adopted the following new or revised
standards, amendments and interpretations of HKFRS, which
are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2011 and relevant to the Group’s operations.

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosure

HKAS 32 Amendment  Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Classification
of Rights Issues

Annual improvements to HKFRS published in May
2010

HKAS 1 Amendment Presentation of Financial
Statements

HKAS 27 Amendment  Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

HKFRS 3 Amendment Business Combinations

HKFRS 7 Amendment Financial Instruments: Disclosures

The Group has assessed the impact of the adoption of these
new or revised standards, amendments and interpretations
and considered that there was no significant impact on the
Group’s results and financial position nor any substantial
changes in the Group’s accounting policies.

FEETFHREME )

2.1 REEXE )

R-FT——F AKERAAT
R-F——F—F—HXZR’&H
A& AT AR A AR R R B T
BRZEBMBIMELERFETH
RRERTER BT R -

EXRGFTER BEHFZHEE
2458

(IERT)

BEGER eRIA: 275
58325% — Rz D8R
CHEN)

R-ZE—FTFRAHEMZ

BB % ¥R & ERFEN

&

EA G ER FBHERZ 2T
%15

CCHEN)

ARG AR RERBIME
5275 e ES
CHEN)

BBV BRE EKEH
AR ZE 35
(BT A)

EEVHHRE T A HE
HERIETH
(BETA)

AEBECFHERAZEHT AL
(ERTER - BRI RBRBZEE
AR EBUARNEE 2 RE KRR
AEBESHRRANBRES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

27 /A
e

2 Summary of Significant Accounting

S 785 ¥ A P (78)

Policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to
Existing Standards that are Relevant but not yet

Effective

New or Revised Standards, Interpretations and

Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendment

BREMBHSERETR(BITA)

HKFRS 7 Amendment

BREMBHRSEETR(BITA)

HKAS 1 Amendment

BB ERFE 1 UEFTA)
HKAS 12 Amendment

BB G HEAE125% (BFTAR)
HKAS 32 Amendment

ARG ERE325% (BETA)
HKAS 19 (2011)

EHEHERSI9K (=2 — %)

HKAS 27 (2011)

EBGHANEIR(ZF——5)

HKAS 28 (2011)

EBGH AN L8R (ZF——5)

HKFRS 9
BAEMBREEREIR
HKFRS 10

BE M 1 &S 2 RIE 1057
HKFRS 11
BAMBREERER
HKFRS 12

BB B REERE125
HKFRS 13

FAMBHRESERE13R

2 FESHHEBREw

2.1 REEXE )

Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets

BE—CREENEE

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets

and Financial Liabilities
FE—HEeREERSRAE
Presentation of Financial Statements

MBHRRZZ7

Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

RIETIA - HEEER K E

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

HiFemEEREREE

Employee Benefits

BIER

Separate Financial Statements

BB &

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

REERAREETERE

Financial Instruments

SRITA

Consolidated Financial Statements

e M mE

Joint Arrangements

BELTH

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

EEMEIRERNKE

Fair Value Measurement

AFMEIE

TR BT -

B B8 i R L2 R
HE

E Rz BERAEFT

REREF

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTBE#HH 2%
MmcastiBEXR

1st July 2011
—E——%+HA—H
1st January 2013

—E-—=F—H—H
1st July 2012

— T o A
1st January 2012

= T S H
1st January 2014

—E—nmFE—A—H

1st January 2013
—E—=%—H—H
1st January 2013
—T—=%—H—H
1st January 2013
—E—=F—H—H
1st January 2015
—T-h¥—HA—H
1st January 2013
—E—=%—H—H
1st January 2013
—E—=%—H—H
1st January 2013
—T—=%—HA—H
1st January 2013
—E—=%—H—H



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ak o B 2 AR BT RE (A

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to
Existing Standards that are Relevant but not yet
Effective (Continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of these new or revised standards amendments and
interpretations, certain of which are relevant to the Group's
operation and will give rise to changes in accounting policies,
disclosures or measurement of certain items in the financial
statements. However, the Group is not yet in a position to
ascertain their impact on its results and financial position.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made
up to 31st December.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating
policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

EETHEREw

1 RBEEE »)

2.2 %

B B8 13 R LR 2 E R -
BB ER 2 B RAERT ()

AREBEC B EULFRT L

(ERIER BT RBBHERZE
B ERFETRAKREZERE
B W ERAEHETHR R

BRI ENBRERETEE
TEH 2B - AT - A KB A KB
MEHHAEBEEERTBMRR
ERRE

n‘/T\ = /E\'E E

RERBHRREBBARAREM
EMBARBE+_A=+—H
L) B A R

@) KB A

MBAREAEBEESE
= BB R A UK A A
X —RHEFTHEAYH
WERRRE EAEARSE
BREES S —X8EKE -8
AT AT 17 8 3k Al & K 7 72
SERENTFERTEAT
ERE o

MEBAREZEGZEERS
AEBEZB2Z2EHKEAE A
AR o B A BB AR LE
ZHRFELLGEAR-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ak o B 25 A BT RE (A

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(@)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting
to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated but
considered as indicator of impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(@)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Transactions with Non-Controlling Interests

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions—that is, as transactions with the owners in
their capacity as owners. The difference between fair
value of any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

©

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting

and are initially recognised at cost.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(d)

Joint Ventures

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture where the
Group and other parties undertake an economic activity
which is subject to joint control and none of the
participating parties has unilateral control over the
economic activity. Investment in jointly controlled entity
is accounted for under the equity method of
accounting, whereby the investment is initially recorded
at cost and is adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’'s share of the post-acquisition results,
distributions received, other necessary alterations in the
Group's proportionate interest in jointly controlled
entity arising from changes in equity of jointly controlled
entity that have not been included in the consolidated
income statement of the jointly controlled entity. The
excess of cost of investment over the Group’s share of
the aggregate fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired at the date of acquisition is tested annually for
impairment, as well as when there is indication of
impairment, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The Group's share of post-acquisition
results after taxation of jointly controlled entities is
included in the consolidated income statement.

A joint venture which does not involve the
establishment of a separate entity but involves the joint
control and ownership by the Group and other parties
of assets contributed to, or acquired for the purpose of,
the joint venture is accounted for as a jointly controlled
asset. The Group’s share of jointly controlled assets and
any liabilities incurred jointly with other joint venture
partners are recognised and classified according to the
nature of the relevant items. Income from the sale or
use of the Group’'s share of the output of jointly
controlled assets is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the transaction
will flow to the Group, whilst the Group’s share of
expenses in respect of jointly controlled assets is
recognised as incurred.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.3 Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with

the internal reporting provided to the chief operating

decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is

responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, has been identified

as the Executive Directors who make strategic decisions.

2.4 Foreign Currency Translation

(@)

(b)

(©

Functional and Presentation Currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured in Renminbi, which is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Company and its subsidiaries operate (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

presentation currency.

Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Group Companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.4 Foreign Currency Translation (Continued)

(©

(d)

Group Companies (Continued)

(i)  income and expenses for each consolidated
income statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(iiiy ~ all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

Disposal of Foreign Operation and Partial
Disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled
entity that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.4 Foreign Currency Translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of Foreign Operation and Partial
Disposal (Continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in
the Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is,
reductions in the Group’s ownership interest in
associates or jointly controlled entities that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

2.5 Properties and Equipment

Properties and equipment other than construction in progress
are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2
Policies (continued)

25 KR E )

MERRBOFTERBATOM
A EAF B R A RERED
B=FEENE:

2.5 Properties and Equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of properties and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Hotel property 28 to 30 years B JE ) 5 28E304F
(superstructure) (1)
Buildings Shorter of useful life EF A] A F Bk
or lease term HHNREE
Furniture and office 5 years RERPEAE S5F
equipment B
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years B 3E54

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater

than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Construction in progress is investments in buildings on which
construction work has not been completed and which, upon
completion, management intends to hold for providing goods
or services in the ordinary course of business. These properties
are carried at cost which includes construction expenditures,
borrowing costs directly attributable to construction of such
properties and other direct costs, less any impairment losses.
On completion, the properties are transferred to the
appropriate categories of properties and equipment at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. No depreciation is
provided for construction in progress until they are completed

and put into commercial use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the

consolidated income statement.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.6 Investment Properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group,
is classified as investment property. Investment property also
includes property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating
leases and buildings held under finance leases. Land held
under operating leases are classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted
for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs and borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair
value. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If this information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods such
as recent prices on less active markets or discounted cash
flow projections. These valuations are performed in
accordance with the guidance issued by the International
Valuation Standards Committee. These valuations are
performed annually by external independent valuers.

Fair value measurement on property under construction is
only applied if the fair value is considered to be reliably
measurable.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2
Policies (continued)

2.6 WEWZE w)

2.6 Investment Properties (Continued)

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in the light of current
market conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a similar
basis, any cash outflows that could be expected in respect of
the property. Some of those outflows are recognised as a
liability, including finance lease liabilities in respect of land
classified as investment property; others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognised in the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values of investment property are recognised
in the consolidated income statement.

[f an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as properties and equipment, and its fair value at
the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting
purposes.

If an item of properties and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of
this item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and taken directly to equity as a
revaluation of properties and equipment under HKAS 16.
However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment
loss, the gain is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Investment property held for sale without redevelopment is
classified as non-current asset held for sale, under HKFRS 5.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.7

2.8

Properties under Development for Sale
and Completed Properties for Sale

Properties under development for sale and completed
properties for sale are included in current assets at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

The costs of properties under development for sale and
completed properties for sale consist of land costs,
construction expenditures, amounts capitalised in respect of
borrowing costs directly attributable to construction of such
properties and other direct costs. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
as determined by management with reference to the
prevailing market conditions, less further costs expected to be
incurred to completion and selling and marketing costs.

Intangible Assets
Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures and represents the excess of the
consideration transferred over the Company’s interest in net
fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the

non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.8

259

Intangible Assets (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
a potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is
not subsequently reversed.

Impairment of Assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, which are at least tested annually for
impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2 FESBTHEBME S

Policies (continued)

2.10 Financial Assets 2101 I & &

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivable and available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

(@) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or
Loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current asset.

(b) Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date. These are classified as
non-current assets.

(c) Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the balance sheet date.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2
Policies (continued)

2.10 Financial Assets (Continued) 210 B EE )

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” category
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
“other income/gains, net”, in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of “other income/gains, net” when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the consolidated income statement.

Interest on available-for-sale debt securities calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of “other income/gains, net”.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated income statement as part of
“other income/gains, net” when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

FHRBERMMEZMBEEAR
X5 A (AL EARBEAND
EZEEEH)ER WA
BAFEBBBGEINKZAEM
BEE BEREVFEAFEN
RORATER - HAVFEEBRE
@R M B EERNNTIEAF
ERR MXHZRANAUNEHFER
BRI - ERREWBIRE R
EZRMEZHKCER  MA
SECKHEEE EREDAR
MERERELR  B5EEN
RIEER - AHEEMBEER
BAVFEEBEGIKRIHBHE
ERERRZAFEINEK - ERXK
FE U SR IR A R B R R ROE % 8K
ARG R

B AFEBEBEBSEI R HMH
BE Bz A FEESHMEE
Ba RELAHRESABRER
M2 AMEMBKRA A RS F
BMl-BRAFEBEBRRZIKZ
MBEEZREBARAEERK
B B 5K IB 2 4 R BE 3L B AR
ARBERERRIHEMBKA K

2% BE] WG -

DERARBEZESFRNER XK
MER REPERZRFTA
FEABRERGERaRIK-

AHEEESZEFANERNEZE
AEZHNEERERaRARE
RATE MUY A Mezs - 58] 88
- AIHERATAZRER
PN ER B U R A B8 SR IR 2 HE )
ERERABHERABRRME
W AW zs - F R — BB



148

Hopson Development Holdings Limited - Annual Report 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ak o B 25 A BT RE (A

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.10 Financial Assets (Continued)

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current
bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and
for unlisted securities), the Group established fair value by
using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent
arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that
are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and
option pricing models, making maximum use of market inputs
and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets in impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in
the consolidated income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the consolidated

income statement.

Impairment testing of accounts receivable is described in Note

2.11.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.11 Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of accounts receivable is established when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of receivable.
The amount of the provision is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.
The amount of the provision is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

2.12 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

2.13 Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
share capital, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes), is
deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity
holders until the shares are cancelled.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or
disposal of a financial asset or financial liability, including fees
and commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers and
dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities
exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the

effective interest method.

2.15 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying assets are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the assets for its intended

use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they are incurred.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2
Policies (continued)

216N HI R IEEFT 5 H4

2.16 Current and Deferred Income Tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Company and its
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, if the
deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.16 Current and Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities, except where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.17 Employee Benefits

(@) Pension Obligations

Group companies operate defined contribution plans
only. The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory or contractual basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments
is available.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2
Policies (continued)

2.17 Employee Benefits (Continued) 2171 E & Fl ()

(b) Share-based Compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as expenses. The total amount to
be expensed over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets). Non-market performance vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to vest. At each
balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the income statement, with
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.19 Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received

or receivable for the sale of properties and services in the

ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is

recognised as follows:

(@)

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

Sale of Properties

Revenue from sale of properties is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of the properties are
transferred to the buyers, which is when the
construction of the relevant properties have been
completed, notification of delivery of properties have
been issued to the buyers and collectability of related
receivables pursuant to the sale agreements is
reasonably assured.

Deposits and instalments received on properties sold
prior to transfer of the significant risks and rewards of
the properties are included as deferred revenue under
current liabilities.

Rental Income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the period of the relevant leases.

Property Management Fees, Property Design
Fees and Marketing Consultancy Fees

Property management fees, property design fees and
marketing consultancy fees are recognised when the
services are rendered.

Hotel Operations

Revenue from hotel operations is recognised upon
provision of services.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.19 Revenue Recognition (Continued)

()

Q)

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching with it and that the grant will
be received.

Grants relating to income are deferred and recognised
in the consolidated income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs they are
intended to compensate. Grants relating to the
purchase of properties and equipment are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred income and are
credited to the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets. Amounts received for which the earning process
has not been completed are accounted for as deferred
revenue.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.20 Operating Leases (As the Lessee)

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of

ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as

operating leases.

(1)

The Group is the Lessee other than Operating
Lease of Land Use Rights

Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor), are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.20 Operating Leases (As the Lessee) (Continued)

(ii)

The Group is the Lessee Under Operating
Lease of Land Use Rights

The Group made upfront payments to obtain operating
leases of land use rights on which properties will be
developed.

For land use rights to be developed for investment
properties which are measured at fair values, the
upfront payments are included in the cost of investment
properties and accounted for as finance lease (Note 2.6).

For land use rights to be developed for hotel properties
and self-use buildings, the upfront payments are
separately recorded as assets and amortised over the
periods on a straight line basis. The amortisation during
the period of time that is required to develop the
properties for its intended use, the land amortisation is
capitalised as the cost of construction in progress. In
other periods, the land amortisation is charged to the
consolidated income statement.

For land use rights to be developed for properties for
sale, the upfront payments are included as properties
under development for sale or completed properties for
sale which are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.21 Insurance Contracts

The Group regards its financial guarantee contracts in respect
of mortgage facilities provided to certain property purchasers
and guarantees provided to its joint ventures and subsidiaries
as insurance contracts.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the liabilities
under its insurance contracts using current estimates of future
cash flows. Changes in carrying amount of these insurance
liabilities are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

2.22 Dividend Distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s Directors/shareholders.

3 Financial Risk Management

3.1 Financial Risk Factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow
and fair value interest-rate risk. The Group’s overall risk
management policy focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effect on the Group’s financial performance. The Group
regularly monitors its exposure and currently considers not
necessary to hedge any of these financial risks.

2

FEETFHREME )

221 7R E X

AEEKERETETYWEER
ZEBEERGTHEAZLE
MEBARZERZMBERS
BRRBEH -

x
&

#)

AEBERNEEERMNARKEY
AR REZEFFHEERRF
BENTZEE HERBREME
ZEHEZEPERN KR BaRE

Ao
2.228% B Bk

A7 2 A R 2k # B B LR
EARBESR/IRILENEMHE
ARAEBERARBOTBHRE
NIBRIE-

B 7% [ B 18
3.1 B Rk A=

AEBZEBSHEARZENMK
Rk SNERR - EERR R
BESRRIRSR LR FEN
RER - -AKRENEERARE R
BRBIEN & B 5 1) T A] JB R
- 3 0 SRR K 3 7R & B B 7% R
BENEETHNEE AKETEB
EREAZARERL YRASE
B Al 73 LB 2E R (A b S B 7S
B 1T ¥ o

157



158

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

- Annual Report 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ak o B 25 A BT RE (A

3

Financial Risk Management (continued)

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (continued)

(@) Foreign Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risks as defined by HKFRS 7 arise on

account of monetary assets and liabilities being
denominated in a currency that is not the functional
currency; differences resulting from the translation of
financial statements into the Group’s presentation
currency are not taken into consideration.

Majority of the subsidiaries of the Group operates in
Mainland China with most of the transactions
denominated in Renminbi. The Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from the exposure of
Renminbi against US dollar and Hong Kong dollar. It has
not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

In addition, the conversion of Renminbi into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of the
foreign exchange control promulgated by the Mainland
China government.

At 31st December 2011, if Renminbi had weakened/
strengthened by 1% against US dollar with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$49.2 million (2010: HK$26.7
million) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of US dollar
denominated senior notes and bank deposits.

At 31st December 2011, if Renminbi had weakened/
strengthened by 1% against HK dollar with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$0.3 million (2010: HK$0.4 million)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of HK dollar denominated
bank deposits.
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3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

(b) Credit Risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
deposits with banks and financial institutions and credit
exposures to customers. The Group has credit policies in
place and exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis.

The Group manages its deposits with banks and
financial institutions by monitoring credit ratings. At
31st December 2011, deposits with banks amounted to
HK$3,648 million (2010: HK$2,697 million) were placed
with a number of international/national/provincial/
municipal financial institutions with sound credit ratings.

In respect of credit exposures to customers, the Group
normally receives deposits or progress payments from
sales of residential properties to customers prior to the
completion of transactions. In addition, the Group
monitors the exposure to credit risk in respect of
amounts due from joint ventures through jointly
controlling their financial and operating policy decisions
and reviewing their financial positions on a regular
basis.
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3 Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 BBEBEE®

3.1 iR R ZE e
b) EEREE &)

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (continued)

(b) Credit Risk (Continued)

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of property units and provided guarantees
to secure obligations of such purchasers for repayments.
If a purchaser defaults on the payment of its mortgage
during the term of the guarantee, the bank holding the
mortgage may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding amount under the loan and any accrued
interest thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group
is able to retain the property sales proceeds received
from the customers and sell the property to recover any
amounts paid by the Group to the bank. In this regard,
the Directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is minimal (see also Note 38).

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset (other than
equity securities included in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial
assets) in the balance sheet after deducting any
impairment allowance, and guarantees provided to
third parties. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from accounts receivable is set out in Note 20.
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3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

(©

Liquidity Risk

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group regularly and
closely monitors its current and expected liquidity
requirements to maintain its rolling cash flow at a level
which is considered adequate by the Group to finance
the Group's operations and to maintain sufficient cash
to meet its business development requirements.

The Group meets its working capital requirements
mainly through sales of properties and borrowings from
banks. Management has prepared cash flow projections
for the period up to 31st March 2013 which have been
adopted and approved by the Directors. Key
assumptions used in the preparation of the cash flow
projections include: (1) new bank borrowings will be
successfully obtained by the Group; (2) certain existing
bank borrowings due for repayment will be successfully
renewed on substantially the same existing terms; (3)
the level of sales volume and turnover in 2012 is
expected to be satisfactory; (4) certain borrowings from
other financial institutions will be repaid; and (5)
payments for acquisition of land will be paid. In
addition, management has taken into consideration the
repayment of the Company’s Senior Notes due in
November 2012 in the preparation of the cash flow
projections. The Directors believe the above key
assumptions are reasonable based on the following:

(1) Good
maintained. Leveraged on the Group’s quality

relationship with banks has been

projects and brand name, banks are supportive of
the Group’s business development;
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3

Financial Risk Management (continued)

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity Risk (Continued)

(2)  The Group’s history has shown that bank loans
have been settled in accordance with the
repayment schedule without any default and
therefore new bank loans are likely to be obtained
successfully to finance projects;

(3) Borrowings from other financial institutions will
be repaid through operating cash and disposing
of certain equity interests in listed investments;
and

(4)  Payments for acquisition of land will be settled by
cash flows from operating and financing activities.

Notwithstanding the above, should there be any
material unexpected impact on the Group’s anticipated
cash flow position, the Group has a number of
alternative plans to meet its business development
requirements, which include (1) obtaining further bank
loans by pledging certain property projects as collateral;
(2) slowing down the construction of investment
properties in order to provide additional resources for
the development of properties for sale; (3) carrying out
cost control measures; (4) accelerating property sales
with flexible pricing; and (5) disposing of certain
commercial property projects and equity interests in
unlisted and listed investments. The Group will pursue
such options as are appropriate with prudent
assessment.
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3 Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 BIREREREG®
3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued) Bt 7% &L e A = )

(c) Liquidity Risk (Continued) (c) B & E E B ()
Although there is no significant sign of relaxation of real AP REMFAAERE
estate policies by the Central Government, the Directors AHEXTENERF M E K
are cautiously optimistic about the Group’s business X BE-_ZF——FHME
plans and its capabilities to maintain sufficient financial AR — &L EFHAE
resources to meet its operational needs, considering Bl ¥BKtEaNEHERET
certain data of the first two months in 2012, for B BEERNENZERN
example: (1) repayment of bank loans amounted to EZeENWAED  Hlm:
approximately RMB2.0 billion; (2) new bank loans in the MEEBRITERHARE
aggregate amount of approximately RMB1.9 billion 0BT QEEFH B R
have been obtained; (3) the Group has received non- TEREEHDARE19E
binding intent for credit lines from banks, the total LB ERAEBRE
banking facilities as at 29th February 2012 stood at RITTENRHZEERE
approximately RMB48.8 billion of which unutilised EmE - R-_ZTE——F— A
banking facilities amounted to approximately RMB29.0 —tThHZEITEERRE
billion. The issuance of such non-binding offers for HEANRMEE A881ETT + B
credit lines is not uncommon in the PRC, and (4) a MABACIETEEREE
healthy cash level of approximately RMB2.3 billion was BB ANRE201E T FEH
held at 29th February 2012. BEZEHZTEORDZE

BEHEEMELHETLEE &
@hseE— — £ = =+
NEBEREEFENARE
B%ﬁmﬁi$ﬁo
The Directors will actively and regularly review and EEBEGMTE S j‘&
monitor the Group’s risk exposure to ensure that ERAEBEF R AR -
appropriate measures will be implemented and actions TR 8 B & B S 1T |»A
will be carried out on a timely and effective manner. ENEGE - EERAEAEE
The Directors consider that the Group will have EAEEZARKRERTH
sufficient financial resources in the foreseeable future to LB EREMEE S EFR
finance its operations. o
Management has periodically prepared cash flow EEETHREE SN E
projections and the Group has a number of alternative E B BAREFENFHEETE
plans to offset the potential impact on the Group’s FHE —H2B HEKARE
business development and current operation, should P S e = = ﬁﬁ ¥ 38 B MY
there be circumstances that the anticipated cash flow BEREETE ZEHR
may be affected by any unexpected changes in global/ Al B S 1 B B RSO
Mainland China economic conditions. The Company’s ENBRIKEHNTE - KA
Directors consider that the Group will be able to AEERAEBLRE ’E ® & gk 4
maintain sufficient financial resources to meet its needs. BERANBTIEER  EAE

HERE -

As at 31st December 2011, the Company’s current R—ZZE——F+ /8=
liabilities exceeds current assets by HK$2,747,488,000, +—H ARQRANRD
primarily due to the Company’s Senior Notes due in BEERARY E E B
November 2012. As the repayment of these Senior 2,747,488,000% 7T + £ E A
Notes has been considered in the above cash flow RARNBHNEBLEEER =
projections, the Directors consider that the Company TE-——_Ft+—A3H-A
will have sufficient financial resources to meet its RE LB S REERF
liabilities. B AZEZEEEZENE

B MESRAELARNRGHE

BERARHMBERENRNE

BfE-
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3

Financial Risk Management (continued) 3

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

©

BEERER®
3.1 I ERREE @)

Liquidity Risk (Continued) (o TEELERE#)
The table below analyses the Group’s and the THBFEBRAER R AR T
Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity THBaE  RBRHAEDMH
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance BRI BEREEEEASY
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The BB R Y R ETS
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual M- -ZANFABEEZSBEAL
undiscounted cash flows. A ARBLIBIE 2 E o
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
15K 122F 2855 BB5F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET FET
Group £E
At 31st December 2011 R-E——&
t=ZA=+—-8H
Borrowings (including interests) & & (£ % 8) 16,565,498 12,714,481 9,474,420 3,334,968
Accounts payable and FERTBR R - FE ST AIE
accruals and other payables Kz H i JE < 5B 8,082,471
Land cost payable JE A+ Hb B AR 602,612
Due to an associate BN —EEE D
Z A 6,808
Due to related companies R RERR 2 KA 81,704
Due to a jointly controlled JE A — e £k B 2 A
entity ER XA 1,574,135
Due to minority shareholders  FEFHTE A Al 2
of subsidiaries VEIRE 7 B 439,841
26,913,228 12,795,962 9,474,420 3,774,809
At 31st December 2010 R=-B—ZF
+=ZA=+-H
Borrowings (including interests) & & (£ & % &) 5,112,513 9,577,647 9,874,834 3,164,628
Accounts payable and accruals & BE 7t « EET 7018
and other payables N H A e 2B 7,841,812 — — —
Land cost payable JE A £ R AR 264,271 111,178 — —
Due to an associate FEfT— R B & R A
Z A 6,486 = = =
Due to related companies EfTEERR 2 KIE 344,057 — — —
Due to a jointly controlled B4 — R £k R 2
entity B HE 1,709,345 — — —
Due to minority shareholders KB A& 2
of subsidiaries DEIRR 2 FE — — — 432,323
15,278,484 9,688,825 9,874,834 3,596,951
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Financial Risk Management (continued)

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

©

Liquidity Risk (Continued)

Company NG|

At 31st December 2011 R-Z2——F%
TPz S TPl

Borrowings BE

Accruals and other payables FEETFIE R H A
ANES!

At 31st December 2010 R-E—-Z%
+=g=+-8

Borrowings BE

Accruals and other payables Bt REREM
& 5/ IB

3 BHERERE®

3.1 iR R ZE @)
() HEEZRER &)

Between Between
Less than 1and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
1R 1225 2E5%F  HBSF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TET TAET

3,215,250 273,969 2,902,421

159,137

3,374,387 273,969 2,902,421

221,326 2,945,340 = =

37,947 — — —

259,273 2,945,340 = —

The table above excludes guarantees given to banks for
mortgage facilities granted to certain buyers of the
Group’s properties (see Note 3.1(b) and 38) as

management considers the risk as minimal.

EXRTRERETFTAEE
MEZETERZRIBE
A RITIEL 2 ER (2
B E3.1(b)&%38) KA A
EERERRBEHERRBRE R

ERE-
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3

Financial Risk Management (continued)

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

(d) Cash Flow and Fair Value Interest-rate Risk

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from interest
bearing bank deposits and borrowings. Bank deposits
and borrowings issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings issued
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest-
rate risk. The Group has not hedged its cash flow and
fair value interest-rate risk.

At 31st December 2011, if interest rates had increased/
decreased by one percentage-point and all other
variables were held constant, the net finance income
(after taking into account the interest expenses
capitalised in the properties under development), would
increase/decrease the Group's post-tax profit by
approximately HK$19 million (2010: HK$19 million).

3
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Financial Risk Management (continued)

3.2 Capital Risk Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for equity owners and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity owners,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
current and non-current borrowings, as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet) less pledged/charged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
represents total equity as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet.

The gearing ratios at 31st December 2011 and 2010 were as
follows:

3

AHEIREEAR AR - —T——FFR
BERRER 2
32 ERRARE?
AEEEREAY BIEREA

CEREANEERBSEEER
B fem AR ER A AR R
YEEMAMEHABEIE UK
MR REBERNRBUAREELRK
o

AEBEREBREBIRN T RS
BAZBRBEE  BITHREH
EEERVER  EAERHH
EERRE -

AEERERNABELREEER
EXR-BABBLEXRTDIUNAESR
BERABEARGE - AEFES
NBEE(BRREAEEREBR
PRRZmE RIERBER) R
BH HALROTEALRERER
CEEYMHE - BEATIERZE
BHNEEEERBRMT) °

R-F——FR_F-—FTF+_
A=+t—BZzEABBLXN

T
2011 2010
—g—-% | —z-=2
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Total borrowings wEeE 35,347,888 23,719,443
Less: pledged/charged bank deposits and o B R IRTT
cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) FEERBESEES
EBY (Kat21) (EXTEPLINM  (2,697,275)
Net debt BEFEE 31,699,634 21,022,168
Total equity BN EsE 44,066,109 40,993,099
Gearing ratio BERBELE m 51%

The increase in the gearing ratio was mainly due to the
increase in borrowings from banks and other financial
institutions during the year, for the purpose of financing land
and construction cost payment.

ﬁ$ﬁﬁtb7tﬂixﬂa EV\]
TRH BB ZBEE M
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3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

3.3 Fair Value Estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

The following table presents the Group’'s assets that are
measured at fair value at 31st December 2011:

3

BEERER®

33N EMEE

TRABEEDTIERATETE
ZHMBIE - NEHKRZEREW
T

e HEREEXBBENER
M52 mECKIR) (F1
&) e

s FRIBAMBEAEEXE
BABRZERBARE
(BB 48) il #% 8 A
BVEEMFEE)GRE
BRoM (E24%) »

e MEENEBREMELIER
BABERMmBHEz2E A
HIE (BT AT B R EE) (5
34R) °

TREIRZ=ZE——F+=ZA=
T—BERATFEFEZAERE
=

Level 1 Level 3 Total
F£1H E3R At
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T TET FE T

11,456 11,456

2,130,561 3,072,774 5,203,335

Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEERER
through profit or loss 51| BR 0 B 75 & B
— Trading securities —EBEBEESH
Available-for-sale financial AHEENBEE
assets
— Equity securities —RAEFH
Total assets REE

PALYRNY 3,072,774 5,214,791
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Financial Risk Management (continued) 3

3.3 Fair Value Estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s assets that are
measured at fair value at 31st December 2010:

BEERRER®

33RNFEMLE @
T£E2HR-_T—=

F+-A=
T+T—ARAFTEFECAEERE

=
Level 1 Level 3 Total
18K F3R #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value BAFEBBIER
through profit or loss TR BB E
— Trading securities —BEEBEESH 11,693 — 11,693
Available-for-sale financial AIEHERKEE
assets
— Equity securities — R A& A 2,164,706 1,151,682 3,316,388
Total assets WEE 2,176,399 1,151,682 3,328,081

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm'’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1. Instruments
included in level 1 comprise primarily Mainland China and
Hong Kong equity investments classified as trading securities
or available-for-sale.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value
an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2. There was no instrument included in level 2 at 31st
December 2010 and 2011.

REBMEMEEESRTAZA
FEDRBEREER ZM&RD
BEREE - WA R ERER
R R5E &L FRA
A MERS REEREES R
B BRFERBERREHR
REERETZIMERS - AIh
548 R R R o AN E BT I IS
BEMAZMSHRERBAMZE
AEB-EFETEEFHFAFIR
FIRAAZIETEBREIR
REFRZGEAARLEMBTEE
ZHBEREREBZBRAERE -

AEBEEERMSEEZERIA
(WBIMTETR) 2 AFEIK
REEEETE - LFEHEFERE
ISR BRmEHE s AREE
iR WRAERDIKBEERR
EffEr - MAABAE—BIAZ
AREEMZEENE ASIEEBTE
REBBEIASH AE2R-
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A=t BLEYETAFASE
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3 Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 MHEBREE®
3.3 Fair Value Estimation (Continued) 33RNFEMLE @
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on {H—1I&%{I§7‘($@)\§Mﬁj’[3t
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. BiETEHRmIEEE: B
Instruments included in level 3 represent unlisted equity TEAE@FAE3IRN- aJr)\%B,?&Z
securities. THEFLTRAE
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial RAEemITEBEZHEM
instruments include market approach by applying multiple E’E%F’EEFH Y HEWLRERE
methodology with reference to similar companies and with RNAEIAREBRAR RIEEN TS
regard to the risks and nature of the business. 3% o
The changes in level 3 instruments for the year ended 31st Bz ET—F+_-_HA=+—H
December 2011 are as follows: IFE FIJTAEEFHMT :
Available-for-sale
financial assets
ARHEMKERE
HK$'000
FA& T
At 1st January 2011 R—ZZE—F—H—H 1,151,682
Addition %ﬁi IF72:. 19822
Fair value gain recognised in equity REZERZ A FERZE 97,493
Exchange difference fE X =% 102,277
At 31st December 2011 R-ZZE——F+=_RA=+—H 3,072,774

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of
accounts receivable, accounts payable, balances with related
parties and land cost payables are assumed to approximate
their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that
is available to the Group for similar financial instruments or
based on the current bid price in the market.

FEMBR AR - BT RR AR - BHEAEA
TEBREEN LKA ZE
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Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

4.1 Critical Accounting Estimates and

Assumptions

Critical Accounting Estimates and

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(@) Estimated Impairment of Properties and

Equipment and Intangible Assets

Properties and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment at each
balance sheet date or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of
properties and equipment and intangible assets have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations,
taking into account latest market information and past
experience. These calculation and valuations require the
use of judgements and estimates.

4

DR —FFR

EgHEER HE

WE R A R EET 2 LA
BEKBMEMRARIERER B85

# B

4.1

AMERTHRREHZAETR

EESHEERRER

AEBERRKELERERRE -
EEREL BUMEZSFHSR
BOEBBERSERER - &
HERBRERTEFBRFEZE
F‘Eﬁiﬁbﬁﬁﬁﬁ{’ﬁéﬁaﬂ%éz%ﬁ
BEREBERBEN T XH

@ DELKRELEFEE
B Z 451 E

MERZETIREETHXK
BERAESE REKREAET
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (continued)

4.1 Critical Accounting Estimates and
Assumptions (Continued)

(b) Estimated Provision of Properties under

(©

Development for Sale and Completed
Properties for Sale

For the purpose of determining provision, properties
under development and completed properties held for
sale are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows. The recoverability of
the carrying amounts of these asset is assessed based
on their fair value less costs to sell. The fair value is
determined taking into account costs to completion
based on past experience and net sales value based on
prevailing market conditions. Provision is made when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The
assessment requires the use of judgement and
estimates.

Estimate of Fair Value of Investment
Properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for similar lease and other contracts. In
the absence of such information, the Group determines
the amount within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making its judgement, the Group considers
information from a variety of sources including:

(i)  current prices in an active market for properties of
different nature, condition or location (or subject
to different lease or other contracts), adjusted to
reflect those differences, by reference to
independent valuations; and

4 EESTHERHAEH w9

A EESFHEERRBRRK

(%)

(b)

(c)

RO EZERFY
ERAKLEZEE
287 ESCETE: 3

RECREMNS  ZERY
ERBEHEZEERD
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ZEEERTARE - TR
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R AR & B TR A H 2 8
EFREREE - HAFMA
1% 3% % B B8 7R BR [ 1E 7 At
o S g 1 B T AR A - BT A
B A ¥ B R A 5T o

KEWEZ L FEG

AFEZEEREREM
HEREMAEAORNERED
B2 RITER - HRZH
MER AEEKELES
BEFEAREZ2AFEM
HEE A o R FEE
AEEBERZRERK
2R

() MREEBERBRZMHH
TRMEE - KRS
B (HFTAETRMEE
HMEH) 2MEZR
TERE2EHIM
B) WIFHABNUR
BR B AR ZEE R



AEBIREMERAR - —E——FFRH 173

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ak o B 2 AR BT RE (A

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and 4 EESTHERHAE
Judgements (Continued)

4.1 Critical Accounting Estimates and M BEGHEERRBRE
Assumptions (Continued) (%)

(c) Estimate of Fair Value of Investment c BREYEZNFER

Properties (Continued)

(i) recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices, by
reference to independent valuations.

In the case of investment properties under development,
their fair value reflects the expectations of market
participants of the value of the properties when they
are completed, less deductions for the costs required to
complete the projects and appropriate adjustments for
profit and risk. The valuation and all key assumptions
used in the valuation should reflect market conditions
at the balance sheet date. The key assumptions include
value of completed properties, period of development,
outstanding construction costs, finance costs, other
professional costs, risk associated with completing the
projects and generating income after completion and
investors’ return as a percentage of value or cost. The
fair value is made by reference to independent
valuation.

F (&)
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

4.1 Critical Accounting Estimates and
Assumptions (Continued)

(©

(d)

Estimate of Fair Value of Investment
Properties (Continued)

It may sometimes be difficult to determine reliably the
fair value of the investment property under
development. In order to evaluate whether the fair
value of an investment property under development can
be determined reliably, management considers the
following factors, among others:

The provisions of the construction contract

o The stage of completion

° Whether the project/property is standard (typical
for the market) or non-standard

o The level of reliability of cash inflows after

completion

o The development risk specific to the property

o Past experience with similar constructions

Status of construction permits

Current Taxation and Deferred Taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in Mainland China and
Hong Kong. Judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxation. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.

4 EESTHERHAEH w9
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EEEHERHAE»

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and 4
Judgements (Continued)

I EEEHAHERRBR

(%)

(d) 2N 8 B I8 R AE A R

4.1 Critical Accounting Estimates and
Assumptions (Continued)

(d) Current Taxation and Deferred Taxation

(Continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred
taxation assets and taxation in the periods in which
such estimate is changed.

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in
Mainland China. However, the implementation and
settlement of these taxes varies among various tax
jurisdictions in cities of Mainland China, and the Group
has not finalised most of its land appreciation taxes
clearance and payments with the local tax authorities in
Mainland China. Accordingly, significant judgement is
required in determining the amount of the land
appreciation and its related taxes. The Group recognised
these land appreciation taxes based on management’s
best estimates according to the understanding of the
tax rules. The final tax outcome could be different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the taxation and tax provisions in
the periods in which such taxes have been finalised with
local tax authorities.
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (continued)

4.1 Critical Accounting Estimates and
Assumptions (Continued)

(e)

Depreciation

The Group’s net book value of properties and
equipment as at 31st December 2011 was
approximately HK$3,264,839,000. The Group
depreciates the hotel properties, buildings, furniture
and office equipment and motor vehicles on a straight
line basis over the estimated useful life of 28 to 30
years, 50 years, 5 years and 3 to 5 years, respectively,
and after taking into account their estimated residual
value, commencing from the date the asset is placed
into productive use. The estimated useful lives and
dates that the Group places the properties and
equipment into productive use reflects the Directors’
estimate of the periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of the Group's
assets.

4.2 Critical Accounting Judgements

(@)

Revenue Recognition

The Group has recognised revenue from the sale of
properties in the ordinary course of business, as
disclosed in note 2.19. The assessment of when an
entity has transferred the significant risks and rewards
of ownership to buyers requires the examination of the
circumstances of the transaction. In most cases, the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership coincides
with the date when the equitable interest in the
property vests with the buyer upon handover of the
respective property to the buyer.

4 EESTHERHAEH w9
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

4.2 Critical Accounting Judgements (Continued)

(@)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

As disclosed in note 38, the Group provided guarantees
in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain
banks relating to the mortgage loans arranged for
certain purchasers of the Group's properties. These
guarantees will expire when the relevant property
ownership certificates are lodged with the various
banks. In order to obtain mortgages, the purchasers
would have settled certain percentage of the total
contract amount in accordance with the related PRC
regulations upon delivery of the properties. The
Directors are of the opinion that such settlements
provide sufficient evidence of the purchasers’
commitment to honour their contractual obligations of
the bank loans. In addition, based on past experiences,
there were no significant defaults of mortgage facilities
by the purchasers resulting in execution of the bank
guarantees. Accordingly, the Directors believe that
significant risks and rewards associated with ownership
of the properties have been transferred to the
purchasers.

(@)
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Judgements (continued)

4.2 Critical Accounting Judgements (Continued)

(b) Financial Implication of Regulations of Idle

Land

Under the PRC laws and regulations, if a property
developer fails to develop land according to the terms
of a land grant contract, including the designated use
of the land and the time of commencement and
completion of the property development, the PRC
Government may regard the land as idle and issue a
warning or impose a penalty on the developer or
reclaim the land. The Group has certain tracts of land
for which development has not commenced according
to the specified terms of the respective land grant
contracts. Judgement is required in assessing whether
these tracts of land will be subject to the penalty of idle
land or may be reclaimed by the Government and
thereby resulting in any adverse financial impact to the
Group. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates
the extent of development of the whole tracts of land,
status of negotiation with the government authorities
as to the extension of time of commencement or

- Annual Report 2011

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and

revision of development plans.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

4.2 Critical Accounting Judgements (Continued)

(©

Distinction Between Investment Properties
and Owner-occupied Properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as
an investment property. In making its judgement, the
Group considers whether the property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by
an entity. Owner-occupied properties generate cash
flows that are attributable not only to property but also
to other assets used in the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions can be sold separately (or leased out separately
under a finance lease), the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portions cannot be sold
separately, the property is accounted for investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is applied in
determining whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as investment property.
The Group considers each property separately in making
its judgement.
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Segment Information

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the
Executive Directors. The Executive Directors review the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating segments
based on these reports.

The Executive Directors consider the business from both a business
and geographic perspective. Reportable business segments
identified are property development, property investment, hotel
operations and property management. Geographically, the
Executive Directors consider that the reportable business segments
can be further segregated into three main geographical areas,
namely Southern China (SC) (including Guangzhou, Huizhou,
Zhongshan and Hong Kong), Northern China (NC) (including
Beijing, Tianjin, Dalian, Taiyuan and Qinhuangdao) and Eastern
China (EC) (including Shanghai, Hangzhou and Ningbo).

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of adjusted segment results.
Corporate expense, finance income and finance costs are not
included in the results for each operating segment that is reviewed
by the Executive Directors.

Segment assets consist primarily of properties and equipment,
investment properties, investments in jointly controlled entities,
prepayments for acquisition of land, properties under development
for sale, completed properties for sale, prepayments, deposits and
other current assets and cash and cash equivalents. They exclude
available-for-sale financial assets and deposit for proposed
investment which are managed on a central basis, and deferred tax
assets. These are part of the reconciliation to total balance sheet
assets.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Segment Information (continued)

Segment Results by Business Lines and
Geographical Areas

Sales between segments are carried out on terms equivalent to
those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. The revenue from
external parties reported to the Executive Directors is measured in a
manner consistent with that in the consolidated income statement.

Revenues comprise turnover which included gross proceeds from
sale of properties, revenue from rental and hotel operation, and
property management income.

Sales of properties eSS R
Property management income MEBERA
Income from hotel operation B JE & B IR A
Rental income e WA
— Investment properties —REME
— Others — E At

N

DEER (2

BRI EE D 25 5
3
DEHEHEE DR AFER PIERET -
MHAITE F 2 |2 E IR &= IR B4R
AR —BMZARGE-

il

WeEmYEEEMSRALE A
MBEEERRARYEEERAN
BERBAEMK -

2011 2010
—g—-% | -z-%

HK$'000 HK$'000

THR Ti#

7,170,325 13,696,356
490,115 410,634
199,444 179,792

41,712 98
105,941 9818

8,007,537 14,379,253
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5 Segment Information (continued)

Segment Results by Business Lines and

Geographical Areas (Continued)

The segment results by business lines and by geographical areas for

the year ended 31st December 2011 are as follows:

DEER @)
f%ﬁ&ﬂ@J’Zﬁ%

BE-F-——F+-A=t+-ALF
EREBRILERS 2D HEED

Year ended HE-T——F
31st December 2011 +ZA=+—H
ILFE
Total revenues Bls
Inter-segment revenues 7> #BF U &
Revenues Y
Adjusted segment results  EZ B B EE
Depreciation &
Amortisation gt
Fair value gains on RENEZ
investment properties ATEKE
Share of profit less loss 5% A 7]
of associates i AR E B
Share of loss of jointly {5 2 )
controlled entities ERER

=
Property

Property development Property investment Hotel operations ~ management Group
NEER NERE BEEE NEER &8

SC EC NC SC EC NC SC NC

3 R Bt #m 2R Bt FE®  Eh
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx THr THEx TER TExT TEx TEx TE=x TR THEx

2,651,026
(358,641)

2,292,385
449,270

(8,622)

1,921,790

1,921,790
901,509

(2,787)

3,118211 20,189

(56,120) =
3,062,091 20,189
835,850 58,694
(7,867)

82,382

(3,284)

34,628

34,628
9,969
(7,126)
(3,128)

20,187

164,816

164,816
(164,997)

(117,789)
(3,394)

497,346
(7,231)

490,115
18,796
(2,091)

8,429,529
(421,992)

8,007,537
2,123,374
(146,559)
(6,522)

107,397

351
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5 Segment Information (continued)

Segment Results by Business Lines and
Geographical Areas (Continued)
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The segment results by business lines and by geographical areas for HEx—_ZET—-ZF+-_A=+—HItF
the year ended 31st December 2010 are as follows: B E i‘% K[ E o2 o0 ¥ 4E&
i
Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management Group
NEEE NERE BEEE NEER &8
SC EC NC SC EC NC SC NC
£ $X  ¥X ¥ ER B ¥ 5k
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THr T#Ex Thx TEx TEx TEx TEx Thxn TEr  FEX
Year ended HE-Z-TF
31st December 2010 +-RA=+-H
ILEE
Total revenues Bl 5,052,562 2,885,163 6,075,622 98 = — 31,693 240,515 411,347 14,697,000
Inter-segment revenues PHENE (183,519) — (41,099 - - - — (92416 (713 (317,747)
Revenues g 4,869,043 2,885,163 6,034,523 98 = — 31,693 148,099 410,634 14,379,253
Adjusted segment results BRAENHEE 1,891,116 962,895 2,516,914 1,687,466 1579726 514979 13,187 (153,779) 28968 9,041,472
Depreciation N (8,336) (2,057) (6,850) (178) (118) —  (6750) (92,813) (1,820)  (118922)
Amortisation B = — — — — —  (2691)  (3,154) — (5,845)
Fair value gains on RENEZ
investment properties AEEYES e - — 1,694,803 1,584,659 516,162 — — — 3,795,624
Share of profit less loss AEBE D REF
of associates HER 1,258 — (187) — — = — — — 1,071

Share of loss of a jointly
controlled entity

AR HEREH
ERER

_ _ (666) _ — — = - — (666)

183



184 Hopson Development Holdings Limited - Annual Report 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A B B 25 i o M (4)

5 Segment Information (continued) 5 oFER @
Segment Results by Business Lines and REBRMWESE D 250
Geographical Areas (Continued) & m
The segment assets by business lines and by geographical areas as R-TB——F+ - =+—HIRE®
at 31st December 2011 are as follows: EhEE Dz DIEEMT :
Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management Group
NERRE NERE EEEE NEER &8
sC EC NC sC EC NC sC EC NC

5 R £ 1) R £ @ R L
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TEn TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx TEAx TEx TEx TEn FTER

As at 31st December 2011 R=Z——F
a=y: =t =l 31,692,887 18,324,211 33,518,088 5,370,445 10,491,960 1,119,520 931,398 87427 2,776,352 160,862 104,473,150

Segment assets include: ﬁ}ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁ

Investments in associates ~ REEENFZRE 2,339 — 149,346 151,685
Investments in joinlty PR
controlled entities ERIRE 168,373 — 1,584,631 — 1,753,004

For the year ended Bz-E—-%
31st December 2011 +=A=t-H
LEE

Additions to non-current R EEREEE

assets (other than (TaELR
finandial instruments TARER
and deferred HERE)

tax assets) 172,753 6,517 114890 165399 645137 19537 29,234 57,226 17,459 4280  1,232432
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5 Segment Information (continued) 5 92PER &
Segment Results by Business Lines and BEBERNLNMBEZ 9 2936
Geographical Areas (Continued) EE e
The segment assets by business lines and by geographical areas as RZE—ZTF+_A=+—"HKREH%
at 31st December 2010 are as follows: R@E D2 EBEENT ¢
Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management Group
NEER NERE BEEE nEER &8
e EC NC 5 EC NC e EC NC
£H E3 E3lf g £ £l £ ER E3l4
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TARL AR TAT TAT TAR TER TEr TEr  TET  TAR

As at 31st December 2010 R=E—-Z#F
+ZA=t+-HB 25831989 13,098329 28798138 5,192,093 9,207,410 1,027,794 525512 28,624 2,828,796 577,936 87,116,621

Segment assets include: A HEEBRE
Investments in associates ~ FA B Z A 7]

ZBE 1,939 —  41,49% — — - = — — — 43433
Investment in a joinlty R — R
controlled entity ER/RE = — 1,512,923 — - - — - - — 1,512,923

For the year ended Bz-%-%%
31st December 2010 = =l
LEE

Additions to non-current R E EREEE

assets (other than (TREER
financial instruments TAREE
and deferred HEEE)

tax assets) 15,122 2,527 21,244 134721 270,042 69,309 6,179 17,662 208,015 3% 745,215
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5 Segment Information (continued) 5

Segment Results by Business Lines and
Geographical Areas (Continued)

Reconciliation of reportable segment profit from operations to
profit before taxation is as follows:

Reportable segment profit from operations 7] £ {73 2B 4% & ¥4 7|

B4
Dividend income from available-for-sale RAHHEMKEEER 2

hS

DEE R (@)

A 230 I 2 £ &% F) B B B AT R
EERMT ¢

2011 2010
—g-—-% | -=-=

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH T

PRAVERYL) 9,041,472

68,184 14,910
215,067 22,995
29,098 17,039
(238,539) (253,307)

financial assets % B A
Unallocated corporate income, net AOBARMA » F5E
Finance income 5 75 W A
Finance costs 51 15 B AR
Profit before taxation B 75 B 5 F

2,197,184 8,843,109

Reconciliation of reportable segment assets to total assets are: AEmofcEERBEEHRN
T

2011 2010
- | —z-=%
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Total segment assets DEEERE 104,473,150 87,116,621
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEHERBKEE 5,203,335 3,316,388
Deposit for proposed investment BEREZRS — 560,210
Deferred tax assets EEHBEE 220,240 167,541
Total assets BEE 109,896,725 91,160,760

The Group primarily operates in Mainland China. All revenues for
the year ended 31st December 2011 and 2010 are from Mainland
China.

As at 31st December 2011 and 2010, all non-current assets, other
than financial instruments and deferred tax assets are located in
Mainland China.

AEBFTERPFERAELEER - &
EE——FRZZT-ZF+A=
T-HLEFE FERRHRETH
RPBE -

RZE——FR-_ZT—ZFF+_A=
+—HB FEFRDHEETEESR
TEARBEEREEE)HURPBE K

B o



Land Costs

Land costs represent prepaid operating lease payments for hotel

properties and self-use buildings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A o s ok M ()

3 B AR

THRAEBENERBERBTZE

MEEHEERA-

Group
£
2011 2010
—E——F | ZE-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAET
At 1st January w—A—H 622,193 329,440
Additions EIE] 44,154 201,055
Transfer from properties under EEaRHEEr
development for sale and prepayments ERIPMER
for acquisition of land W B+ TR FRIE 22,71 78,750
Amortisation 5 (6,522) (5,845)
Exchange difference X ER 32,431 18,793
At 31st December = = =8 622,193
Group
-
2011 2010
—2——F | —F—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THE T FAT
In Mainland China, held on: RABARE ZRATHRAFE :
Land use rights of between NFI0FEZE50F 2 i
10 and 50 years 155 A #E 711,563 618,871
In Hong Kong, held on: REZE BUTHAEHA :
Leases of over 50 years 504 LA E 2749 3,404 3,322

622,193

As at 31st December 2011, net book amount of approximately
HK$76,490,000 (2010: HK$90,069,000) of the Group's land was
pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note 24).

R-E——F+_-_A=+—H K&
5 BR )% {8 #976,490,00038 7T (= & —
= 1 90,069,0007% ) Z £ i B K I
RSB ZRITEE ZEBR R (M F
24) °
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A B B 25 i o M (4)

7 Properties and Equipment 7 MERFRE
Group
5
Furniture
Construction Hotel and office Motor
in progress  properties  Buildings equipment vehicles Total
HERR
EEIR B R ¥ % BF BOAER®E RE FLR
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FTER FTER THER TER FERT
Year ended HE-T——%F
31st December 2011 +=—A=+—H
HFE
Opening net book amount  HA %] R @ /F & 607,442 2,175,026 233,786 158,106 , 3,199,845
Additions (including g (eFEE R
capitalisation of land a1 570))
amortisation)
Acquisition of equity W B — R M B
interests of a subsidiary NG &N
(Note 37(b)) (K&t 37(b)) — — g 4,815
Depreciation e (94,519) (4,090) . : (146,559)
Disposals e — — (492)
Transfer i (418,929) — 418,929 —
Exchange difference [E 5 =% 20,625 105,588 21,894 g . 156,519
Closing net book amount  HA 4% BR T % & 244,391 2,186,095 670,519 135,101 . 3,264,839

At 31st December 2011 RZT——F
+=—A=+—8

Cost AR 244,391 2,471,694 699,306 365,189 66,797 3,847,377
Accumulated depreciation  ZEHiTE — (285,599) (28,787) (230,088) (38,064) (582,538)

Net book amount BREEE 244,391 2,186,095 670,519 135,101 28,733 3,264,839
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yo o A 7 203 ==
#k B 5 3 B ()
. . ) N N
7 Properties and Equipment (Continued) 7 MERFZE®
Group
&
Furniture
Construction Hotel and office Motor
in progress properties Buildings equipment vehicles Total
ERIIE B JE W) % BF BAERME A= Rk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FAT FAT FHET FAET FAET
Year ended HE-_T—ZTF
31st December 2010 +-A=+—H
IEFE
Opening net book amount  H ] & [ /F & 1,180,351 1,566,295 222,664 181,650 24,069 3,175,029
Additions (including i (BEE R
capitalisation of land = i 8 8H)
amortisation) 47,206 — — 18,179 5,962 71,347
Depreciation e . (63,919) (3,933) (46,169) (4,901) (118,922)
Disposals HE — — (13) (1,335) (488) (1,836)
Transfer LB (650,536) 643,235 7,301 — — —
Exchange difference [E W =% 30,421 29,415 7,767 5,781 843 74,227
Closing net book amount  H#A 4% iR [ S5 (& 607,442 2,175,026 233,786 158,106 25,485 3,199,845
At 31st December 2010 RZZE—TF
T=EE=E
Cost B AR 607,442 2,354,838 257,219 337,280 57,426 3,614,205
Accumulated depreciation ZEHiTE — (179,812) (23,433) (179,174)  (31,941) (414,360)
Net book amount IR mF (B 607,442 2,175,026 233,786 158,106 25,485 3,199,845

Hotel properties with

a net book amount of approximately

HK$1,979,463,000 (2010: HK$1,946,733,000) as at 31st December
2011 were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities

(Note 24).

Construction in progress mainly represents buildings and hotel

properties, which will be held for the long-term. All construction in

progress is located in Mainland China on land held under land use
rights expiring from 2042 through 2046.

Depreciation expenses have been included in general and

administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement.

NZE——F+-A=+—8" K@
7 {H #91,979,463,0008 T (= T — &
1 1,946,733,000 8 L) 2 BIEWMEE
RIFEASBERTEE ZHEE R M
F£24) o

FRIBZIZERIBECETR
BEME - -MEEREIRURFAEK
B UARMARBER TN =_FE=
TORFHEER 2 T ERERAB
Z e

FERXEEREFRARER IR
RITHERA -
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8 Investment Properties 8 BEWE
Group
£8
2011 2010
—E-—F | ZE-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Completed investment properties EERIREME 5,275,688 3,698,307
Investment properties under development  ZE R IG & W) % 11,361,785 11,707,191
16,637,473 15,405,498
Group
L |
2011 2010
—2——-F | 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
At 1st January n—H—H 15,405,498 8,378,105
Additions (including capitalisation of interest) 7 1% (8 & & A1 F| 8) 829,969 471,920
Transfer (to)/from completed properties and & () "B EEZKWE K&
properties under development for sale A EZERERYE (481,188) 2,335,722
Fair value gains on investment properties 1% & #) % 2~ T E W 25 107,397 3,795,624
Exchange difference fE X =% 775,797 424,127
At 31st December R+—-_B=+—H 16,637,473 15,405,498

All investment properties are located in Mainland China on land
held under land use rights expiring from 2037 through 2058 (2010:
2037 through 2058). They were stated at fair values with reference
to valuations performed on an open market value basis by DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, independent qualified valuers, as at
31st December 2011.

As at 31st December 2011, approximately HK$5,906,934,000 (2010:
HK$4,137,958,000) of the Group's investment properties were
pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note 24).

FTEREWESMN T EAERMR
BER-_ZE=ZtF=2_FTANF(=
TZ—ZFTF RZTE=LFE_FTAN
FIHEEMM T ERESE 2L
e TEREMER2ERERBYL
HEMBERTERAARZE ——
FH+_A=+—"BEAEMHERE
KT ZHE LAFENERE-

RZE——F+-_A=+—HB K=&
E 495,906,934,0008 T (=& —FF :
4,137,958,0008 7t) 2 I E WM X B K
REXEBRITEE 2 ET M
24) °
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9 Properties under Development for Sale

9 AHHEZERFUE

Group
M8
2011 2010
—E——F | 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amount comprises: LREBE:
Land costs + H# Ak R 32,325,047 20,970,601
Construction costs and capitalised BENALBEERL
expenditures S 14,731,713 9,386,290
Finance costs capitalised B & AL SR A 2,007,775 1,610,865
49,064,535 31,967,756
Expected to be completed and available TEE R ER T —EA
for sale after more than twelve months BETRAHHE 41,377,736 26,131,885
Expected to be completed and available EHERTZ@ARA
for sale within twelve months WIT R e 7,686,799 5,835,871

49,064,535 31,967,756

All properties under development for sale are located in Mainland
China and are located on land held under land use rights expiring
from 2037 through 2081.

As at 31st December 2011, approximately HK$6,054,370,000 (2010:
HK$4,055,569,000) of the Group’s properties under development
for sale were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities
(Note 24).

As at 31st December 2011, approximately 239,000 square metre
(2010: 239,000 square metre) of land with a carrying amount of
HK$272 million (2010: HK$259 million) was restricted for
development, transfer and pledge due to a pending litigation (Note
39).

AAHEEZERTYEHLR S
BORBE R A AR 1B L 5 R HE 1T 155
2 ZELHMERER —T=
FE_TN—F@Em-

R—E——&+-_A=+—H A&
#76,054,370,000 8 L (=L —F & :
4,055,569,000%8 T) 2 o] it i & 2 & &
PYEEERIEAEBRITEE 2K
Ao (HaE24) -

RZZE——F+-_A=+—H8B" %
239,000 75 K (= F —ZF 4 : 239,000
7 oK) BR Ml 1B 4 272,000,0007% 7T (=
T —Z4F 1 259,000,000 7)) 2 £ b 5
BOE-—BEAATAMIIBRE &
= R E RS (P FE39) o
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10 Completed Properties for Sale 10 I HEZS HRWE
All completed properties for sale are located in Mainland China and EEAEEE 2 EERDELSMLASP
are located on land held under land use rights expiring from 2037 AERMREE T EREmMESA
through 2078. 2L ZEIMEREAZZT=
FE_ZTENFEREM-
As at 31st December 2011, approximately HK$2,569,851,000 (2010: RZE—F+_A=+—"H &%
HK$1,623,111,000) of the Group’s completed properties for sale [ 492,569,851,000/8 Tt (Z&F — T F
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note 1,623,111,0008T) 2 Al K &E 2 B 3%
24). RMECEFIEREBRITEE K

(M aE24) -

11 Intangible Assets 1M1 BREEE
Group
58
Goodwiill

BE
2011 2010
—E——F | —=2—%FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1st January ®n—HA—AH 124,837 120,660
Transfer i B (85,542) —
Exchange difference fE R =% 1,950 4,177
At 31st December Nar= ) =ar—12 41,245 124,837
Cost B R 136,666
Accumulated impairment charge ExtREEZEHR (11,829)

Net book amount R FE 41,245 124,837
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12 Subsidiaries 12 BB A 7l
(@) Investments in subsidiaries () RMIB A Z2IRE
Company
YN
2011 2010
—E2——-F | 2%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE TG %EW$T§ 92,389 88,021
Due from subsidiaries = NGIE | 18,273,507 15,140,016

18,365,896 15,228,037

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest FEWHEB AR RIEAERT &
bearing and without pre-determined repayment terms. BRIEIETEEREMH -
Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31st December 20711 R=ZFE——F+=-A=+—A%2
are set out in Note 42. FEMBARGFEEHNMH T2 -
= — o
(b) Loans to subsidiaries (b) B AR ZE MK
Company
|
2011 2010
—g—-% | —z-=24
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T T
Current Vil
Loans to subsidiaries M BARzER 137,345 218,274
Loans to subsidiaries are unsecured and carry interest at 8.0% WBARzERTEEE  F
10 8.9% (2010: 8.0% to 8.9%) per annum. FIRESVERZZIE(ZE—F

F:80EE8IE) -
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13 Investments in Associates

13 RBEQRRZ2RE

Group
£
2011 2010
—z—-—f | -z2-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT
At 1st January w—A—H 43,433 40,925
Addition i 105,736 —
Share of profit less loss of associates D0 B & R R m R E 1B 351 1,071
Exchange difference fER =% 2,165 1,437
At 31st December w+-—_A=+—H -Elz:ﬂ 43,433
The Group's interest in associates, which are unlisted, is as follows: AEBRIFELEMBE QAR 2R W
T
Particulars of Place of Profit/ Interest
Name issued shares held incorporation  Principal activities ~ Assets Liabilities Revenues (loss) held
e &7 BAL i
18 RGBT HEMAE FEER BE 81 ' ON (B8 b £
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 %
FHET FHET FHET FERT
2011
—E——fF
Guangdong Huasheng Registered capital of Mainland China  Operation of 4,357 2,019 1,020 296 40%
Cultural Development RMBS5,000,000 B K B school
Company Limited o 1t AR AR =81
BREEHRELER  AR5000,0007T
BRAF]
Beijing BHL Logistics Registered capital of Mainland China  Property 53,173 7,984 11,810 1,596 25%
Limited US$20,000,000 ellciy N 73 development
TRRRYREE ERIT&N MEER
BRADHE 20,000,000 &
Tianjing Jingjin Financial ~ Registered capital of Mainland China  Property 115,546 11,388 — (1,541) 30%
and Property Investment ~ RMB300,000,000 LlEipN development
Company Limited SRR AR MEER
RERRCREFRE 300,000,0007T
BRAR
2010
ZE-ZF
Guangdong Huasheng Registered capital of Mainland China  Operation of 3,919 1,979 1,691 1,258  40.0%
Cultural Development RMB5,000,000 A B K BE school
Company Limited FER AR A EHBER
EREEHREX(LER  AR5000,0007T
BRI A
Beijing BHL Logistics Registered capital of Mainland China  Property 47,954 14,747 50,333 (187) 25.0%
Limited US$20,000,000 H B K RE development
IRRERYREHE MR MEER
BRRAF] 20,000,000 7T
Investments in associates at 31st December 2010 included goodwill RZE—ZTF+-A=+—8 ¥
of HK$8,286,000. The amount was impaired and recognised in the &N a2 E B IE T E8,286,0008
Group's share of profit less loss of associates. T ° Z I B R E I 1T AR & B 5 1h B
R REE RSB R
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14 Investments in Jointly Controlled Entities 14 Rt EZE4IESE 285

Group
£H
Share of
net assets Advance Total
PIEFEE B e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAE T FET
At 1st January 2011 WZZE—-——F—H—H 874,333 638,590 1,512,923
Addition $ig 48,901 115,245 164,146
Share of post-acquisition results DRI BB A (3,284) — (3,284)
Exchange difference lE R =% 44,556 34,663 VEWAL)
At 31st December 2011 RZE——%F
icH =+ B 964,506 788,498 1,753,004
At 1st January 2010 RZE—ZFF—H—H 571,470 617,222 1,188,692
Capital injection EE 278,925 — 278,925
Share of post-acquisition results 23 {5 W B§ 1% 3 45 (666) — (666)
Exchange difference &5 =% 24,604 21,368 45,972
At 31st December 2010 RZT—TF
T E =g 874,333 638,590 1,512,923

As at 31st December 2011, investments in jointly controlled entities
represent the Group’s investments in Beijing Dongfangwenhua
International Properties Company Limited (“BJ Dongfangwenhua”),
a company with a property development project in Beijing Mainland
China and Guangzhou Dongtai Textile Company Limited (“GZ
Dongtai”), a company with a property development project in
Guangzhou, Mainland China.

In 2007, the Group acquired 60.98% equity interest in BJ
Dongfangwenhua, for a total consideration and capital contribution
of HK$820,190,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB795,584,000).
The Group is responsible for contributing 97% of the capital of BJ
Dongfangwenhua and is entitled to 57.14% of the voting power in
the Board of Directors of BJ Dongfangwenhua. Ordinary resolutions
of BJ Dongfangwenhua require 75% of the voting of the Board of
Directors. Besides, the Group is entitled to 100% of the profit
arising from the office building (South) and 45% of the profit
arising from the office building (North) in the property development
project.

R-ZFB——F+=-A=+—HB 1A
FEHERZIRETNEASERIL R
RAXERREZFARAA(IERRE
AXE]) —HEETFEIER—EY
XRRBBZABZEE  REMR
ROBEFXFERARATEMRED
—HEETEEMN —EYEERER
ZRBZHE °

R-IZETEF AEBREILRRS
NI 7 6098% B AR REREXR
ST & 48 %8 /% 820,190,000 7T (48 & 7
49 A R # 795,584,0007T) ° 7N £ E A
BN EERRAXEZIINELRE
BEEEEAILRRE A XEST14%E
FeREE - LLRRHINEZLER
HEAEEETS%RER I &K
EENEARDHEREIXEXRE S
FHE(F) 2 100% % F) & 3R 5 9 % 2%
EREEBFEEL) B 245% 5 A o
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14 REEEHERB2BRE @

14 Investments in Jointly Controlled Entities
(Continued)

RZZT——F AEBKEEMNESR
65% 2 PR AR R EBERE XS E
£164,146,0008 T (HHE R H AR
136,500,0007T) ° ANE B R E M E =%
B5714%MES SR ER - BMNER
CEBRBRRAEEL66.7%MITE -

In 2011, the Group acquired 65% of equity interest in GZ Dongtai,
for a total consideration and capital contribution of
HK$164,146,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB136,500,000).
The Group is entitled to 57.14% of the voting power in the Board
of Directors of GZ Dongtai. Ordinary resolutions of GZ Dongtai
require 66.7% of the voting of the Board of Directors.

REBRZE—ZTFRZFT——F+
ZRA=t+— Ao hZzEERAE "
UEAREEREBEEZE_Z—ZFTFR_F
——F+-_A=+—BLFEMHH
HRAZEHEE WS REENT :

The Group's share of the assets and liabilities as at 31st December
2010 and 2011, and the Group’s share of revenues and results of
the jointly controlled entities for the year ended 31st December
2010 and 2011 are as follows:

Group
£

2011 2010
—B——F | ZT—TF

HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THT

Assets BE
Non-current assets FERBEE 101,556 1,518
Current assets (Note) TEEE M) 2,706,591 2,478,739
2, 808,147 2,480,257

Liabilities =N
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (878,687) (837,145)
Current liabilities mEEaE (964,954) (768,779)
(1,843,641) (1,605,924)
Net assets EEFHE 964,506 874,333
Revenues Wz 1,585
Cost of sales and expenses HEKRARFAX (2,251)
Loss before taxation K 5 BT B 18 (666)
Taxation T8 —
Loss for the year AEEHE (666)

Note: Current assets include the Group’s amount due to a jointly

controlled entity of HK$1,574,135 (2010: HK$1,709,345) as

at 31st December 2011.

fiet - RBEERRE_T——F+
A=t BAAKEEN—
MHRAZEHEBZIRE B
15741358 T (=T — & F :
1,709,345 7T °
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15 Investments in Jointly Controlled Assets

15 RAREHEEZRE

Certain subsidiaries of the Group entered into a jointly controlled
assets arrangement with Guangzhou Zhuguang Real Estate
Development Company Limited, an independent third party, under
which each of the Group companies and Guangzhou Zhuguang
Real Estate Development Company Limited contributed land and
other assets for the development of properties located in
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, Mainland China. During the year
ended 31st December 2011, the Group's participating interest in
these jointly controlled assets was 95.5% (2010: 95.5%). The
Group's share of the net gain of the jointly controlled assets for the
year amounted to HK$24,428,000 (2010: HK$140,182,000) and
the net assets of the jointly controlled assets as at 31st December
2011 amounted to HK$1,387,541,000 (2010: HK$1,295,173,000).

AEBAETHBRAGE BB ULE=
FEMNKAEAEHERZEBR ARG
—BHRAZHEELRH Bt A%
EETAREEMNGXEHERES
BABSEHREABRUNPEAERERS
BMzWEREIHEEBMEE - B
BE_ZT—F+_A=1+—HLIL®HF
ER AEEREZSHEAZHEE
955% (=T —FF:955%) 2 2 HE
moAKREFEREGEERZEHEER
IR B24,428,0008 L (Z T —FF ¢
140,182,000/ L) * MAEB R =T —
—F+ A=+ AEGEHEREHE
EFES D 51,387,541,0008 T (= F
— T4 1 1,295,173,00058 7T) °

16 Available-for-sale Financial Assets 16 AIHHEMBEE
Group
&5
2011 2010
—g—-% | —z—=

HK$'000 HK$'000

THER FET

At 1st January nN—H—H 3,316,388 2,671,719

Addition it 1,721,322 —
Fair value (loss)/gain recognised in equity RERPHERZATFE

(Note 28) (18), Wz (B a£28) (40,645) 542,775

Exchange difference fE X ZE5 206,270 101,894

At 31st December R+—_B=+—H 5,203,335 3,316,388
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16 Available-for-sale Financial Assets continves) 16 R HEBEEE &)

Available-for-sale financial assets include the following: AP ERBEEREINTRIE
Group
%
2011 2010
—E-—F | 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Listed securities: EmEH:
— Equity securities — Mainland China, —RAESF — B RRE -
at market value (Note (a)) IRHE (W aE@) 2,130,561 2,164,706
Unlisted securities: EFTESE:
— Equity securities — Mainland China — B AN 3E A5 — A B oA Bk
(Note (b)) (Kta b)) 3,072,774 1,151,682
.E:EEEH 3,316,388

(@) The investment represents equity securities listed on the @ AEREERLEBEHFISHA LM
Shanghai Stock Exchange. ZRARFE S o
The investment is denominated in Renminbi. BETIAARBEE -

(b) The investments represent 4.29% and 4.99% attributable b) AEEHEELEREPBEKNESH
equity interests in two financial institutions in Mainland China HHE4.29% N 4.99% 2 B R HE S o
respectively.

The investments are denominated in Renminbi. BETIAAREEE -
17 Deposit for Proposed Investment 17 BEREZERSE

As at 31st December 2010, the balance represented deposit paid RZZE-—ZFEFF+-A=+—H &%&

for proposed investment in 4.99% equity interest in a financial BRIEBL P — [ R B K Pk & B 4.99%

institution in Mainland China. During the year, the acquisition of BAER s EZREIN Z2EE - R

the investment was completed and classified as available-for-sale RER ZBARBEZWEETK XD

financial assets.

BRAAHEENBEE -
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18 Financial Assets at Fair Value through

Profit or Loss

Listed securities: FEEE
— Equity securities — Hong Kong,

at market value

Unlisted securities:

FELETES
— Equity securities — Mainland China

—k$ 5 —BB BME

— AR 5 — B Kk

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented
within operating activities as part of changes in working capital in
the consolidated cash flow statement (Note 37).

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recorded in other income/gains, net, in the consolidated
income statement (Note 29).

MBE
Group
&5
2011 2010
g% | —z-%
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET
11,340
353
11,456 11,693
BRATVEEABERIRZUBEER
?éfﬁé/jlbiﬁﬁm%/E@JW&'H’EA%
BezBoBe (ME37) -

EQﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂ%Z%ﬁﬁﬁz
NFEEHNIIAGEEZR Z2HEMD
WA W2k FEA (K EE29) -
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19 Prepayments for Acquisition of Land and

Prepayments, Deposits and other Current ME RERHMWRE
Assets E

Group Company

£H A

Non-current
Prepayments for acquisition
of land (i)

2010 2010

—E—ZF —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET F& T TET FH& T

Current
Prepayments for acquisition
of land (i)

Other receivables (i)

Deposits for acquisition of
equity interest (jii)

Guarantee deposit

Prepaid construction
expenditures

Land tender deposits

Prepaid sales taxes

Utility and other deposits

Receivable from disposal of
a subsidiary (iv)

Others

ETRED
Uk B8 1t

TR SRIA ) 209,795
mE
Uk B8 1t

815 3R IE (1) 13,508,836 IREKCEIEEL
H th i W 5RE (i) 238,789 579,345
Ik B AR AN

7 4 (i) 1,773,834 571,984 il
ERES 25,903 24,679 =
TEfTIEE

53 31,990 30,399 =
THRRERS 61,675 344,329 5
AR SHE R 599,812 337,794 5
PAZEREMES 373,549 317,375 —
HE—FHHBQF

2 FEUR TR IA (v) 172,668 205,542 =
HAtb 356,156 153,579

Prepayments, deposits and
other current assets

BNFIE - BE REA

MENE E efelbey 3] 2,565,026

Prepayments for acquisition of land represents advances made (i)
for the acquisitions of land use rights in Beijing, Shanghai,
Guangzhou, Tianjin and Dalian, Mainland China. Formal land
use right certificates have not yet been obtained as at 31st

December 2011.

The balance includes an amount of approximately HK$4,630
million (2010: HK$4,400 million) for the land situated in
Chaoyang district of Beijing in connection with the Group’s
acquisition of 80% equity interest in Believe Best Investments
Limited which, through its wholly owned subsidiary, possesses
the right to develop the Jing Run Project on the land (Note

41(f)).

WiE i 2 BN KEERRH

ANELER - EB BN RER
NEBEWE T HERAEMEL 2
BR-RZF——F+ZA=T
— B HARIBIER L F

v

-]
koj

EHREREMN I REAG R 2 ik
49 4,630,000,000% T (= ZT — &
£ 1 4,400,000,0005 7T) * 5% H IR
TEAEBKEEEREBRD
Al Z80%m B Mz RS
BEMBARBAEERREIER
Hh 38 2 AE F (BT 3E41(F) ©
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19 Prepayments for Acquisition of Land and
Prepayments, Deposits and other Current
Assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(Continued)

The balance also includes an amount of approximately
HK$4,195 million (2010: HK$3,997 million) for the land
situated in Panyu District of Guangdong in connection with
the Group’s acquisition of the entire equity interest in Panyu
Zhujiang Real Estate Limited which possesses the right to
develop the land (Note 41(g)).

Other receivables relate to the Group's participation in first
class land development projects in Mainland China with fixed
guaranteed returns based on a pre-determined percentage of
funds invested by the Group.

Other receivables are denominated in Renminbi. Their carrying
amounts approximate fair values.

This represents deposits made to independent third parties for
the acquisition of equity interests in certain Mainland China
entities (“the entities”) whose principal activities are property
holding and development. The acquisitions are not yet
completed as at 31st December 2011.

As at 31st December 2011, the Group also had other
payables of approximately HK$584,775,000 (2010: Nil) due
to one of the entities.

The balance represents consideration receivable from the
disposal of a subsidiary, Nam Fong Guangzhou Plaza Limited
to Jumbo Advance Investment Limited, a related party.

19 WEBELHENREARRE

/.

M =F

NE - REREAMK
Ew

0 (&

ERAENEEUAERESR
2 Hb 38 #94,195,000,00078 JT( =
T — T 4F : 3,997,000,000/8 7T)
ZH Ry EAEEWEFB KT
EBHEEBRAAZEZHESSE
B Mz AR BEBEERZ T
2 (M EE41(e) ©

(i) HEKRBERNEESEHDE
REERBZEED®R(RIEAE
BARRAESXERLET B D

Hat&) 2t —RABEB A
7 e

Hit BUGKENAARBEE &
HERQAFERS

(i) WDHEAKBETHFEAEER
(ZEEBD(HXZXBAY
ERBRRAE) 2R RERMA
BYR=NEHZEE -R=_F
——F+ZA=+—H WE~N
AT e

RZF——%+ZA=1t—8"
$%@Wﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ$—ﬁ%
FHE 8 2 FIAH584,775,0005 7T
(=% — ii-ﬁ)

vy ERAEHRERABEEALEER
EBERARGE —RKEBRRRE
THERSAERAEMEKZK
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20 Accounts Receivable

Consideration in respect of properties sold is generally payable by
the buyers at the time of completion of the sale and purchase
agreements. Rentals in respect of leased properties and property
management fees are generally payable in advance on a monthly
basis.

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

0 to 3 months 0ZF 31 A
3 to 6 months 3E6MEA
6 to 9 months 6ZE 91l A
9 to 12 months 9F 1218 H
Over 12 months HBiB1218 A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ak S s Ak M ()

20 F& U Bk =X

EHEMEZIRE-—RENEEHZE
TRERBRESXN -HEWMEZHE
EMMEERE-RAGAEMN-

FEUBR R 2 BRER D AT AN T -

Group
%8

2011 2010
—E——F | ZE—-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THETT
72,889 58,501
13,836 7,458
7,359 8,871
8,817 9,128
130,039 87,995

EE:!:I 171,953

Accounts receivable is denominated in Renminbi. Carrying values of
accounts receivable approximate their fair values.

As at 31st December 2011, approximately 11% (2010: 14%) of the
accounts receivable was due from one (2010: one) customer. Other
than this, there is no concentration of credit risk with respect to
accounts receivable as the Group has a large number of customers.

As at 31st December 2011, accounts receivable of HK$72,889,000
(2010: HK$58,501,000) were neither past due nor impaired.

EREFAARBHE HEmER
HERFERE -

R-—B——F+-_A=+—H EK
BERAFNEIN%(ZE—ZF 14%)
DH—&Z(ZE—ZF: —H)RBF
BER-BRBEUIIN - ARAEBBEER
2 BRERTESEERZER -

RNR—_F——F+-_A=+—H  Elk
8% 5072,889,0008 (=& — & F:
58,501,000 7T ) BT &8 B - TR Rk (A
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20 Accounts Receivable (continued)

As at 31st December 2011, accounts receivable of HK$160,051,000
(2010: HK$113,452,000) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers and the ageing
analysis of these accounts receivable is as follows:

3 to 6 months 3Z6f@A
6 to 9 months 6918 A
9 to 12 months 9ZF 121E A
Over 12 months Bid1218 A

20 EUWRBR X (@)

R-E——F+-HA=+—H ELR
R $0160,051,0008 T (=T — & F :
113,452,0007% 7T) B @ H B R E o 1t
EREERZEZBIUIRFER Z5E
R Z BRE D ITEAT -

Group
3

2011 2010
=
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TER THETT
13,836 7,458
7,359 8,871
8,817 9,128
130,039 87,995

160,051 113,452

During the year, no impairment loss on accounts receivable (2010:
nil) was recognised in the consolidated income statement.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of
accounts receivable mentioned above.

FAR-BRUREFBEREBR (ZF—
ZFEBNGABRaRER -

AEBEFEGcRANEERR S EX
P 2L & W B R 2 BR T (B ©
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21 Pledged/Charged Bank Deposits and Cash 21 B K 2 R T E = U

and Cash Equivalents RESRBESEEY
Group Company
58 AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
E——F |2 ZEF | ZB——F | Z=—ZF
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHETT THT FHET
Cash at bank and on hand BT FERE 3,648,200 2,344,666 20,449
Short-term bank deposits MHIRITER 54 352,609 —
3,648,254 2,697,275 20,449
Less: pledged/charged W BER R
bank deposits RITFER (1,030,093) (123,671) —
Cash and cash equivalents HELRBEEEED 2,618,161 2,573,604 20,449

As at 31st December 2011, the Group's pledged/charged bank
deposits mainly represented deposits charged by certain banks in
respect of the granting of banking facilities and the processing of
mortgage facilities granted by the banks to buyers of the Group's
properties.

As at 31st December 2010, the Group’s cash at bank of
HK$14,095,000 was restricted due to a pending litigation. In June
2011, the bank deposit was temporarily transferred to the Higher
People’s Court of Henan Province and was classified as
prepayments, deposits and other current assets as at 31st December
2011 (Note 39).

The carrying amounts of pledged/charged bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

RZZT——F+=ZA=+—H ' &%
BEER MTRTEREIERR
EEFTETRT AERLRTE
ERRTREEEAASEYEER
BRTRIBEER-

R-E—ZTFE+_A=+—H &A=&
214,095,000 TR TR € T3 A F
RFDMEZERE - R=ZFT——F <
A ROGKREERAEESRAAR
FEhR YR T ——F+ZA=+—
BESBEAREMNKIE R REMK
)& = (K1sE39) o

BEER MERTERARRERER
SEEBYWHREET AT E®S
B :

Group Company
& AT

2011 2010 2011 2010
—2--%|-FT-Tf|-8-—-F|-T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
THERT FHET TR FHT
Renminbi AR SHNGPEVE 2,645,247 =
US dollar E7T 14,431 6,598 449

Hong Kong dollar BT 27,566
3,648,254

45,430 20,000

2,697,275 20,449
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21 Pledged/Charged Bank Deposits and Cash 21 2 & #3052 4R 17 17 =X UL
and Cash Equivalents (continued) RREeRBAESEED»
Cash and cash equivalents include presale proceeds of ReLRBEESEZEEBEYWBEEBEERSER
HK$593,338,000 (2010: HK$566,675,000), which are to be used 18 593,338, OOO/% T(Z T — & F:
for purchases of construction materials and payments of 566,675,000/ 7C) ' Z SR E AR E
construction fee of the relevant property projects. ERMESXNEBEBAMEBEE Z2EEE
m o
22 Land Cost Payable 22 FEAS L Hb R AR
Group
=
2011 2010
—E——F | —_ET-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Land premium payable ATt EES 449,006 79,592
Land compensation payable JE A £ s H (B K 235,087 295,857
684,093 375,449
Less: Amount due within one year W ARBEBEER —FA
included in current liabilities BEEz&% (602,612) (264,271)
81,481 111,178

Land cost payable is denominated in Renminbi.

amounts approximate fair values.

Their carrying

BN A AAAREE  REE
BN EES
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23 Accounts Payable

The ageing analysis of accounts payable (including amounts due to
related companies of trading nature) is as follows:

0-3 months 0& 318 A

23 EFERX

JEHHE A2 RN (BIERN T
ERABRRXZME ZRFOMT

Group

£@
2011 2010
—E——fF | —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

5.120,006 5,645,612

As at 31st December 2011, approximately HK$2,516,006,000 (2010:
HK$2,534,380,000) of accounts payable were due to certain related
companies in respect of property construction fees (Note 41(b)).

Accounts payable is denominated in Renminbi. Carrying values of
accounts payable approximate their fair values.

24 Borrowings

WZE——F+-RA=+—8" &R
BR 3N AR #492,516,006,000 0 ( = & —
T 1 2,534,380,0008 7T) AR ¥R
EBENETEERDZ KKK
41(b)) °

ENEFRAARBHE HEmER
HRAFERSE

24 fBE
Group Company
& A

2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——HF | ZZ2-ZF| ZBE-——F | ZZF—ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FE T FET FET
Non-current JE 7 &
Bank and financial R1T R B 7S
institution borrowings HWEBEE PRV 17,349,948 — —
Senior notes BEERE 2,290,102 2,697,576 2,290,102 2,697,576
PAWAL R 20,047,524 2,290,102 2,697,576
Current Vi)
Bank and financial RITR B
institution borrowings BELEE Pty 3,671,919 — —
Senior notes EBhEERE 2,707,119 — 2,707,119 —
13,629,307 3,671,919 2,707,119 —
Total borrowings aEE CRcly R 23,719,443 4,997,221 2,697,576
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24 Borrowings (Continued) 24 58 &)

In November 2005, the Company issued 8.125% senior notes with
an aggregate nominal value of US$350,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,730,000,000), for a total consideration of
approximately HK$2,733,182,000. The senior notes mature in
seven years (November 2012) and are repayable at their nominal
value of US$350,000,000. The Company will be entitled at its
option to redeem all or a portion of the senior notes on and after
9th November 2009 at the redemption prices specified in the
offering circular, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the
redemption date.

In January 2011, the Company issued 11.75% senior notes with an
aggregate nominal value of US$300,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,340,000,000), for a total consideration of
approximately HK$2,340,000,000. The senior notes mature in five
years (January 2016) and are repayable at their nominal value of
US$300,000,000. The Company will be entitled at its option to
redeem all or a portion of the senior notes on or after 21st January
2014 at the redemption prices specified in the offering circular, plus
accrued and unpaid interests to the redemption date.

The senior notes recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

At 1st January mn—H—H
Addition # 1%
Amortisation of premium BiHRE
Amortisation of issue costs BIHEITAR
Exchange difference M ER

RZZTERF+— A ARARET
#2 T & %% 350,000,000 st (K H & ®
2,730,000,0007% 7T ) 2 8.125[F (& & =
B BREHA2733,182,000% 7T °
BAZEBERtLtFRB(ZE—ZF+—
A)EIE] - 3 78 ¥ A [ {8 350,000,000 3
TEE ARBKERERER_ZZ
NE+—ANBKABIZREERRA
A ZERE(NLELEEZERA AE
REFRMGZFB)EE 256k H5E
FREE -

RZTE——F— R ARAIFETHEE
{8 #300,000,000 T 2 11.75F & %
= (% 7 42,340,000,0005 70 ) -
42 K (E 49 /52,340,000,0007 JT ° B %
ZERAFBR(ZE—AF—A) 5
53+ 30 78 ¥% H [ {8.300,000,000 % T (8
B-ARAKEREERR_-_T—NF
— A=+ B BIREE BRG]
BrEDE(NEEEZED A SR
RARMZFBE)ERZEPRIHEL

REEARRERZELEREOT

Group and Company

At 31st December R+=—A=+—H

£ERAT

2011 2010

—E——F | ZF—-F
HK$000 HK$'000
FBT FAET
2,697,576 2,676,697
2,288,733 —
(547) (526)
21,506 13,085
(10,047) 8,320
4,997,221 2,697,576
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24 Borrowings (Continued)

The senior notes are jointly and severally guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries and are secured by the capital stock of the subsidiaries.
The net assets of these subsidiaries were approximately
HK$6,394,511,000 (2010: HK$4,717,647,000) as at 31st December

2011,

The maturity analysis of the borrowings is as follows:

Within one year

Between one and
two years

Between two and
five years

Over five years

—fR"
—F=E
MER
MEE
EFER
HEE T F

Bank and financial
institution borrowings

RITRUBEREEE

2011
—E——F
HK$'000
FHET
10,922,188

10,886,234

5,383,169
3,159,076

30,350,667

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the
following currencies with the respective weighted average effective

interest rates:

Renminbi

— Bank and financial

institution borrowings

US dollar

— Senior notes

AR
— RIT R
BEER

eV
—BERE

2010
—E—TF
HK$'000
FHET

3,671,919

5,626,010

8,862,973
2,860,965

21,021,867

24 BE )

BEZERETHWERARLR R E
PIRREER WIANB AR 2 RAE
ER-R_F—-——F+_A=+—
B ZEMBRRAZEEFEAOR

6,394,511,0008 T ( —E—F £ :
4,717,647,0003 1) ©

BEZEHIFMT

Senior notes
BEEE
2011

—E——F

2010
—E—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

2,707,119 =

2,697,576

2,290,102

4,997,221 2,697,576

HK$'000
FERT

2011
—e——=

Effective
interest rate

PR

30,350,667

4,997,221

Total

et
2011 2010
—g——f|-=-=%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
13,629,307 3,671,919
10,886,234 8,323,586
7,673,271 8,862,973
3,159,076 2,860,965
ERpcl.ymt M 23,719,443

EERMENTIEERELRES
BZERMEFHF XM

2010
—E-FF
Effective
HK$’000 interest rate
F& T B R =
21,021,867 5.8%
2,697,576 8.6%
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24 Borrowings (Continued) 24 58 &)

The carrying amounts and the fair values of the borrowings are as
follows:

fEEZHREERAFENT

Carrying amount

SREE

2011
—_E——F
HK$'000
FER

Bank and financial institution 877 & BF 76 ik 1% {2 &
borrowings 30,350,667
Senior notes BREEE 4,997,221

35,347,888

The fair values of the bank and financial institution borrowings are
based on cash flows discounted using rates based on the Group's
average borrowings rate of 6.6% to 11.1% per annum as at the
year end (2010: 5.4% to 5.9% per annum), depending on the
currency denomination of the borrowings. The fair values of the
senior notes are based on the market price as at the year end.

As at 31st December 2011, the Group’s bank and financial
institution borrowings were secured by:

(i) the Group's land cost of approximately HK$76,490,000 (2010:
HK$90,069,000);

(i) the Group's hotel properties of approximately
HK$1,979,463,000 (2010: HK$1,946,733,000);

(i) the Group's properties under development for sale of
approximately HK$6,054,370,000 (2010: HK$4,055,569,000);

(iv)  the Group’s completed properties for sale of approximately
HK$2,569,851,000 (2010: HK$1,623,111,000);

(v) the Group’s investment properties of approximately
HK$5,906,934,000 (2010: HK$4,137,958,000);

Fair values
AT
2010 2011 2010
—T-TF | ZB——F | ZZ2-FF
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THERT FHET
21,021,867 | vAfePllplll 21,092,979

2,697,576 STEEEFENDE 2,621,289

23,719,443

REE ROTORVBERBEENRT

=Wk
EES

REBEAEEFHEEFNE66
MAB(ZZE—ZFF  FFHE54

EESIRE)BAZHMR(BFRHERER
BRIGEZNERSRER -BAR
B RFENAFREMSEBRRE

£ o

RZF——%+ZA=+t—R0 &&
B2 RITRABHREZEETIUTI
R R

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

7R £2 B 49 76,490,0005 7T (=T —
T 4F 1 90,069,000 7T) 2 + A
N s

7N &£ B #91,979,463,0005 7T ( =
T —F 4 1,946,733,0005 7T) 2
EIEYE

7K £2 B 496,054,370,0007% 7T ( =
T —FT 4 4,055,569,00078 7T) 2
AHPEZERPYE

7K & E #92,569,851,0007 T ( =
T —F4F :1,623,111,0007T) 2
AHEEZEERYE &

7N & F %95,906,934,0005 T ( =
T — T4 4,137,958,0005 7T) 2
WEYE -

SEFEPPICELS 23,714,268
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24 Borrowings (Continued) 24 B8 )
(vi)  the Group's available-for-sale financial assets of approximately (viiy NEBZAHRLEEWKEEL A
HK$5,203,335,000 (2010: nil); 5,203,335,0008 L (ZZF —Z4F -
L)
(vii) the Group’s equity interests in a subsidiary of approximately (i) ANEBEZ KB RR 2R ARE
HK$245,896,000 (2010: nil); and % #9 /5245,896,0007 7T (= F —

TEIER) R

(viii) the Group's bank deposit of approximately HK$271,370,000 i) N £ B 2 R T F R Y A
(2010: nil). 271,370,000 T (= F — T F:
ZTIr) e
25 Deferred Income Tax 25 EIEFTBH
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there BERBEENABGEELEABRMRESLR
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against ENBEEAENBEIRITERNERE
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to M RELEREHRER —FHEKEAR
the same tax authority. The offset amounts are as follows: M- SR BB HESEEHT W
T~
Group
-
2011 2010
—E——F | ZF—ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT
Deferred tax assets: FELEFRBEE
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — ¥R +t=—@EA%&IE 2
after more than twelve months EETRIBE E 200,485 165,205
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — ¥R+ @ ARKE
within twelve months EEFR I E = 19,755 2,336
220,240 167,541
Deferred tax liabilities: FEERIBAEE
— Deferred tax liabilities to be realised — Rt EBBER
after more than twelve months FEEFRIBAE (4,837,485) (4,963,673)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be realised —EBRt+t-_@EARNER 2
within twelve months EEFHIBAE (979,316) (587,455)

(5.816,801) (5,551,128)

(5,383,587)
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25 Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

The net movements in deferred taxation are as follows:

Assets/(liabilities)

At 1st January

Disposal of subsidiaries

Recognised in the consolidated income
statement (Note 33)

Credited directly to equity (Note 28)

Exchange difference

At 31st December

AHBREEARAT - —T——EER
25 EEFIBH @)
BEERIBFEEMT ¢
Group
&5
2011 2010
—E2——F | ZE—-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F& T
BE/(8%&)

®n—A—H (5,383,587) (4,311,456)
HEK B R A — (521)
R (HE33) 43,805 (926,041)
HEEE MR (M iE28) 2,156 24,880
VEH =% (258,935) (170,449)
IRPE = =8 (5,596,561) (5,383,587)

The movements in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities,

without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred Tax Liabilities

At 1st January

Recognised in the consolidated income
statement (Note 33)

Credited directly to equity (Note 28)

Exchange difference

n—A—AH
REREEBREE

TR (M iE33)
BB (A7 i728)
PEH =%

EREREBEEERBELERRAAEZE

(Y EEZEEBBARBEERA ZEHRE

BT

EERIERE

Revaluation surplus

B R
2011 2010
—g——% | —2-%%
HK$’'000 HK$'000
T Fit
(5,551,128) (4,502,743)
495 (895,668)
2,156 24,880
(268,324) (177,597)

At 31st December

R+=—A=+—H

(5.816,801)

(5,551,128)
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25 Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

Deferred Tax Assets

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ak o B 25 A BT RE (A

25 EEFIBH @)

ELERBEE

Tax losses
BREER
2011 2010
—E-—F | 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAET
At 1st January w—A—H 167,541 191,287
Recognised in the consolidated income NEE BB R K ER
statement (Note 33) (Kt7E33) 43,310 (30,373)

Disposal of subsidiaries & B8 2~ A — (521)
Exchange difference & H Z5E 9,389 7,148
At 31st December R+—_A=+—H m:zi:l 167,541

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried forward to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits is probable. As at 31st December 2011, the
Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$270,054,000 (2010: HK$227,280,000) in respect of tax losses
amounting to approximately HK$1,269,862,000 (2010:
HK$1,078,801,000).

Tax losses amounting to approximately HK$712,072,000 (2010:
HK$579,732,000) are expiring from 2012 through 2016. The
remaining tax losses do not have expiry dates.

As at 31st December 2011, deferred tax liabilities of
HK$1,436,985,000 (2010: HK$1,369,210,000) have not been
recognised for withholding tax on the unremitted earnings of
certain subsidiaries, as these earnings are expected to be reinvested.

EEFBEEAEDEEMRBEH G AT
i 38 R R FE AR B e M) B2 3R i B P A
ZHEBBEER RZZE——F+
ZRA=+—HB AEBUERREL
i 18 & EE #9270,054,0008 Tt (=T —
T 1227,280,0008 7T) - S R IEE
18 491,269,862,000/8 L (ZE —FF .
1,078,801,0007% 7T °

A 2 49712,072,000%8 (=& — &
£ ¢ 579,732,000 7T.) 2 Fi TH E 18 1%
—E-—ZFET - FHEER-
HfpMIEEELBE MR -

RZZE-——F+=A=+—8"
REBEARE THERQGKEDR
BINOENBREAELEHEG G
1,436,985,000% (= T — & F:
1,369,210,0007% 7T) * R & & It & & 7
TEHGRAEBRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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26 Current Tax Liabilities 26 AHABIEE &
Group Company
&8 AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——£F —E——F |2 —-ZF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET TER FHET
Hong Kong profits tax payable & 1 3 i )15 5,949 3,425 —
Mainland China corporate JE A< A B K e 1 EE
income tax payable FTis 93,764 692,742 19,525 17,783
Mainland China land JFE A AR B K B 3
appreciation tax payable 1% (E i CRONEREEE 3,946,836 —
4,117,827 4,643,003 19,525 17,783
27 Share Capital 27 B
Number of
ordinary
shares Par value
ZEREE HE
‘000 HK$'000
T i F7& T
At 1st January 2010 R-ZZE—ZFF—F—H 1,592,368 159,237
Issue of shares BT
— Placements — & 185,461 18,546
Repurchase of own shares BEAS KRG (25,462) (2,546)
At 31st December 2010 R-ZE—ZFTF+-_A=+—H 1,752,367 175,237
At 1st January 2011 RZZE——F—H—H 1,752,367 175,237
Repurchase of own shares BEA KRG (16,364) (1,637)
At 31st December 2011 R—_EBE——F+-_HA=+—H 1,736,003 173,600

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 3,000,000,000
shares (2010: 2,000,000,000 shares) with a par value of HK$0.1
per share (2010: HK$0.1 per share). All issued shares are fully paid.

In September and October 2011, the Company repurchased
16,364,000 shares for approximately HK$70,379,000. These shares
were subsequently cancelled.

VA TE T3 IR 42 205 3,000,000,000 % (=
T —Z 4 : 2,000,000,000 %) &F A% E &
0NBT(ZE—ZFF: HR01BT)
2B -FABERETRNHEZRER

RZZE—FNLAKTAH  ARQGFED
16,364,000 % B 15 + X {& 970,379,000
TCo ZERMEZTEH -
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27 Share Capital (continued)

Share Options

The Company has an employee share options scheme, under which
it may grant options to employees (including executive directors of
the Company) to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to a
limit that the total number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the share options schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time. The exercise price will
be determined by the Company’s board of directors and shall at
least be the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of offer of the options, (i) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the options, (iii) the net asset value
per share as determined in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and with reference to the latest
published audited financial statements in the annual report or the
latest published unaudited interim financial information in the
interim report (whichever is more recent) of the Group on the date
of offer of the relevant options; and (iv) the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares of HK$0.1 each. This employee share options
scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years from 2002 up
t0 2012.

There was no share option granted and exercised during the years

ended 31st December 2011 and 31st December 2010.

As at 31st December 2011 and 31st December 2010, there were
no outstanding share options.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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27 B A (s)

BhE

ApalB—HEEBREE B
gt AR A A A EEB (BEARRFNIT
EE)RLBEREARBRARRSD
HERALGERESS - FFEERY
BRITE CERETUITERETZ
Rm@s NERBARAAT TR
TR 230% - 1TEEHBARAE
EEET U TLRTIMNE 2 &
BEOAATRODAIRBRHRERER
ZWHE: (VN EEREERESB
AR S EARARG 2 FHWRS
B (i) NIEHEREREER KR
BEANBRERNAELL2ZELREH
BITETIR 2 FRAKERZTBRE
ST ARE R HREANREEZ
FPHMBER(ABEHERE)E
TEREEZE: RMWAARKROE
B(ERONETT) - KNME BHERESZ
RZBEEZFE_FT—ZF21T5H
MERFB R -

WBE-F-——F+-A=+—8R
—2-FF+-A=t-ALEE
A AR AR TR o T AT -

RZE——F+_A=+—HBERZZE
—ZEF+-_A=+—H BMEXRTE
2 W o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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28 Reserves 28 #1&
Group
-
Capital Assets Currency
Share redemption Statutory revaluation translation Retained
premium reserve reserve (i) reserve (iiij) differences earnings Total
BEAXEE EE EBEEfM EBEX
45 % 8 wHE  EEG ik 48 (iii) ZH REEBA @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
TER TER FERT FERT FERT FERT FERT
At 1st January 2011 R-ZTE——F
—H—H 10,793,525 161,117 2,988,251 3,582,279 20,484,200 38,011,918
Currency translation EHSIE N 2
differences 1,903,349 — 1,903,349
Profit for the year FE% A — 1,430,031 1,430,031
Repurchase of own B8 B A & R (D
shares (100,793) 30,414 (68,742)
Dividends paid BB’ E = (300,531) (300,531)
Fair value loss on AP ETBEEZ
available-for-sale NEEEE
financial assets (Hiat16)
(Note 16) (40,645)
Realised upon disposal & # & 1 & 1) ¥ 85
of properties held for I8 (i)
sale (i) (26,684)
Deferred tax (Note 25) 3 % i 38 (/{5 25) 2,156
At 31st December 2011 R =F——4F
SR B = =[] 10,692,732 3,078 5,485,628 21,644,114 40,910,852
Group
3
Capital Assets Currency
Share redemption  Statutory revaluation  Convertible translation Retained
premium reserve  reserve (i) reserve (i) bonds reserve differences earnings Total
BN EE BEER HKRESF EEEX
& £ B 1 CACTON - 110 i =8 REBEA FE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET THET THET THET FHET THET FHET
At 1st January 2010 R-_ZE—ZTF—H—H 8232259 = 161,117 2,507,043 227,734 2,366,633 14,539,720 28,034,506
Currency translation EHERZE
differences — — — — — 1,215,646 — 1,215,646
Profit for the year FEwE — = = — — — 5889412 5,889,412
Issue of shares BT
— Placements -iRE 2,692,900 — — — — — — 2,692,900
Repurchase of own shares B8 [0 % & IR 5 (131,634) 2,546 - — - — (138,664 (267,752
Acquisition of additional E—SRE—H
equity interest of oy NI A e
a subsidiary — — — — — — (34,002) (34,002)
Redemption of B [ A R %
convertible bonds — — — — (227,734) — 227,734 —
Fair value gain on AHEENBEEL
available-for-sale NFE W= (K 16)
financial assets (Note 16) — — — 542,775 — — — 542,775
Realised upon disposal of HEHELEDER
properties held for sale (if) B35 (i) — — — (86,447) — — — (86,447)
Deferred tax (Note 25) ERERIA (ff a2 25) — — — 24,880 — — — 24,880
At 31st December 2010 RITE—ZF
+=-RA=+—8H 10,793,525 2,546 161,117 2,988,251 — 3,582,279 20,484,200 38,011,918
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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28 Reserves (Continued)

28 #E @)

Company
AF
Capital Convertible  Currency
Share redemption bonds translation Retained
premium reserve reserve differences earnings Total
EXRER TRBRES EWER
BRRE #E #E B2 REEF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FHET FHET
At 1st January 2011 RZZE——4F
—H—H 10,793,525 1,216,660 525,776 12,538,507
Currency translation HHEE X =2
differences — 617,070 — 617,070
Profit for the year F &% F — 368,402 368,402
Repurchase of own shares BEE A 5% D (100,793) 30,414 (68,742)
Dividends paid B S — (300,531)  (300,531)
At 31st December 2011 R-_ZT——&
pes I = 10,692,732 1,833,730 624,061 13,154,706
At 1st January 2010 R-TE—ZTF
—H—H 8,232,259 — 227,734 789,760 596,215 9,845,968
Currency translation EER =58
differences — — — 426,900 — 426,900
Loss for the year EEEE - = — — (159,509)  (159,509)
Redemption of convertible [0 A 2 R B 5
bonds — — (227,734) — 227,734 —
Issue of shares BT D
— Placements — e 2,692,900 — — — — 2,692,900
Repurchase of own shares B B A & i1 (131,634) 2,546 — —  (138,664)  (267,752)
At 31st December 2010 R-_E—ZTF
+=ZA=+—8H 10,793,525 2,546 — 1,216,660 525,776 12,538,507
Notes: Bt -
(i) As stipulated by requlations in Mainland China, the Company’s subsidiaries 1) IR RE P B A XA ATAT 8 - AR R AR

REERK I RAZE 2 18 2 AR 6 2 B B 1%
8 T (RE #3381 F R R 1E) At — B
DELZEFEBERLEFERES  LLETIH
EEFRET  ATHEAAEAHBEL
FRERLAERTAR MEEERE
AT AIERRES - BT HEZE
ERARAINE R A7 EAK50%2 % 57
Bf - #G DA — 2 E LR

established and operated in Mainland China are required to appropriate a
portion of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year losses) to the statutory
reserves and enterprise expansion fund, at rates determined by their respective
boards of directors. The statutory reserves can be utilised to offset prior year
losses or be utilised for the issuance of bonus shares, whilst the enterprise
expansion fund can be utilised for the development of business operations.
When the statutory reserves reach an amount equal to 50% of the registered
capital of the Company's subsidiaries, further appropriation needs not be made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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28 Reserves (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Upon completion of the acquisition of Guangzhou Nonggongshang
Construction and Development Company Limited in 2007, Guangzhou Zhujiang
Qiaodao Real Estate Limited (“GZQREL") became a subsidiary of the Group and
the fair value gain in respect of the 69.5% interest in GZQREL previously held
by the Group (as a jointly controlled entity) of approximately HK$2,180,096,000
net of tax has been accounted for as an asset revaluation reserve directly in
equity on acquisition. Upon subsequent delivery of the properties developed by
GZQREL, which represents partial disposal of the business of GZQREL, the
related portion of the asset revaluation reserve is released to the consolidated
income statement.

Assets revaluation reserve represents revaluation reserve of available-for-sale
financial assets, and fair value gain in respect of 69.5% interest in GZQREL
previously held by the Group (see (ij) above).

—E——FFRH

28 #Ew@

29 Other Income/Gains, Net 29
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBARZKE
Dividend income B B U A
Government grants I I #7 BY)

Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets EAFEERBERIEY
at fair value through profit or loss MBEELATE
(E518), Wz

wi -

(i)

(i)

Hig g AW -

(&)

RZFEZF+LFETHKNEENTEIHE
EZRHFELARIFRA)E  BEM
RIBEHEMERRZL (B ERB
REBZHE LA KEBFLFHBEE
(tER —[E A1 H & 5E)£769.5% # 2 &
2 F (B 4 2% #92,180,096,000% it (2 #1 /%
HE)ERWBIFEELEERSEEE G
B - EFREXNT B EEHHES WEF
(EHEBHBD XY BEERREES
BRI Ay & 1B & o

BEERHEETRLENFEERERH

7K 52 8] 5E 5 AT 75 15 #069.5% # 75 22 F B K
BB FHE (B LX)

peag -t

2011 2010
—e——« | —2-27
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THR

= 958,217

68,843 15,292
31,161 149,943
(272) 601

1,124,053
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30 Expenses by Nature

Advertising costs
Amortisation of land costs
Auditor’s remuneration
Cost of completed properties sold
Depreciation of properties and equipment
Direct operating expenses arising
from investment properties that
— generate rental income
— did not generate rental income
Employees’ benefits costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) (Note 317)
Loss on disposal of properties and
equipment
Net exchange gain (included in
general and administrative expenses)
Operating lease rental in respect
of premises

- Annual Report 2011

30

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing costs and
general and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

EERX
3 AR AN B 5
ZBED I £
HEBRBRKMEZKAR
MERZBITE
UTERREMEELEZ
HEEREZERAX
—ELXHESEA
- UTEESHESHA
B B & M KA
(BRESWNS) (MaE31)
HEMERRBEER

PEE 3, Ui 2 )% B
GTA—REITRER)
MEZKEHRERS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ak S s Ak M ()

BMHEE T 2HX

FAXBEHEXNN HERTHER
BA - AR—REITHER /0
T

2011 2010
—g—-f | —=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THR
314,768 242,174
6,522 5,845
5,500 5,280
3,751,401 8,210,779
146,559 118,922
25,688 5,489
144 2,381
620,413 445,466
492 1,836
(262,032) (82,612)
40,586 30,975

31 Employees’ Benefits Costs (Including
Directors’ Emoluments)

Salaries and allowances
Sales commission and bonus
Pension costs
— Defined contribution plans
— Provision/(write-back of provision)
for long-service payment

e MOFR
HEME RIEA
BIRE KA
— R EHREE
—RERBE

R (B EEE)

N EERAKA(BEES

2011 2010
-5 | =227
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THR
479,500 343,394
LERLX] 31,607
96,960 70,547

100 (82)

-E:IIEI 445,466




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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31 Employees’ Benefits Costs (Including
Directors’ Emoluments) (continued)

(a) Pensions — Defined Contribution Plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”),
a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF scheme, each of the Group (the
employer) and its employees make monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. The monthly
contributions of each of the employer and employees are
subject to a cap of HK$1,000 and thereafter contributions are
voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China, the
Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in Mainland China. The Group’s employees make
monthly contributions to the plans at approximately 8% of
the relevant income (comprising salaries, allowances and
bonus), while the Group contributes 12% to 22% of such
income and has no further obligations for the actual payment
of pensions beyond the contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees.

BHEREEERAR - —T——FFR

M EERARNA(BREES
<€) 2

(a)

?g_]ﬁiﬁ—é‘?ﬁéﬁi\%ﬁ
2

AEECEERERELHZ2HE
—HB-UBYERAEEZE
BMEREE - RBIERERS
gl((REEstE)) RERES
AEAEE(RE)LERESR
BAREH ML RTEE AR E
EBEZER WA Z5%M T
EEBAHR - BEREBERMIE
ZE8AHERZ ERE B1,000/8
7T % 71,0007 T 2 f#t KB
BERLEE -

12 08 o B K B 2 4R B BOE AR AT AR
EAKERERTBEAEZ R
BEEE—HAABEREDZENK
itEl - ANEEEES ARENER
WA(BREH S ZRERIELL) L
8RHETEIMEH H R AEEA
BZZEWA12%ZE22%1F H #
R BRBELEHRIN AEEYL &
HitHEBRRARSNREME - &
RE B ZBRRFE AR ENK
BEZE2MENKRSE -

219



220 Hopson Development Holdings Limited - Annual Report 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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31 Employees’ Benefits Costs (Including 31 EERARAR(BIEESE
Directors’ Emoluments) (continued) <) 2
(b) Directors’ Emoluments (b) EXBN €
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st Bz _Z2——F+=-_A=1+—
December 2011 is set out below: BIEFE SE22WaH7
W
Employer’s

contribution
Salaries and Share-based  to pension

Name of director Fees allowances payments scheme Total
EBxY
UEHmh BAKSFE
EFEHE e HekEH EHEREAS Z mat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FTERT FTET
Executive directors BITESE
Mr. Au Wai Kin BUEREEE
Ms. Chu Kut Yung (iii) KA ¥R 22 = (i)
Mr. Chu Mang Yee RAMKEE
Mr. Liao Ruo Qing BEBLE
Mr. Xiang Bin A 5 &
Mr. Xue Hu (iv) BE TR ()
Ms. Zhao Ming Feng (i) AL ()
Mr. Zhang Yi (i) 5 B 9t A (i)
Independent non- BYFHTES

executive directors
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David ~ Z 82 % 4
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver & 7 % % 4
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron [ 887& % 4
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31 Employees’ Benefits Costs (Including

Directors’ Emoluments) (continued)

(b) Directors’ Emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st

December 2010 is set out below:

IR EFH

M EERARNA(BREES
<€) 2

(b)

EEMWE @)

HE-_ZT—ZF+_A=+—
BILEEE S5 87
LUl

Employer’s
contribution
Salaries and  Share-based to pension
Name of director Fees allowances payments scheme Total
fE & &
Hek IRHmR RKEEE
EEnH ik R ERER Z K B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHE T FAT FHETT FHE T
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Au Wai Kin BERITE — 240 — 12 252
Mr. Chen Chang Ying BREBEE — 385 — — 385
Mr. Chu Mang Yee RAMKESE — = = = ==
Mr. Liao Ruo Qing BEBLE — 2,951 — 22 2,973
Mr. Xiang Bin TER 5t £ — 2,000 — 12 2,012
Mr. Xue Hu (iv) BE IR S 4 (v) — 2,951 — 22 2,973
Ms. Zhao Ming Feng (i) AL A+ () — 3,000 — 12 3,012
e 15507 L 80 11,607
Independent BIYFHTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David ~ ZFMEZ= &4 240 — — — 240
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver & & % % 4 240 — — — 240
Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Phillip Bt i 5 4 240 — — — 240
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron [ 885 4t & 120 — — — 120
840 — — — 840
Notes: HiE -
(i) Ms. Zhao Ming Feng resigned on 7th November 20171. 0] HHEL TR -_F——F+—AEHH
/F o
(ii) Mr. Zhang Yi was appointed on 7th November 2011. (ii) KRB ERF——F+—HA+HEZ
F
(i)~ Ms. Chu Kut Yung was appointed on 7th November 2011. (i)  KEBXLITR=-F——F+—HA+tHEZ
/F o
(i) Mr. Xue Hu resigned on 1st March 2012. () BREALR-_F——F=HHEF-
During the year, Mr. Chu Mang Yee waived emoluments of F N R K 5 A UE Bl € 240,000 7

HK$240,000 (2010: HK$240,000).

T (=ZF—Z 4 : 240,000/ 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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31 Employees’ Benefits Costs (Including 31 EERAREA(BRES

Directors’ Emoluments) (Continued)

(c) Five Highest Paid Individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include four (2010: four) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments paid and payable to the remaining
one (2010: one) individual are as follows:

Salaries and allowances o MOER
Employer’s contribution to BEHERSE ZH#EK
pension scheme

<) 2
0 EEBRSHF AL

AEEAEBREZSFALT
BENER(ZTE—TF :-MOE)E
T REEZHMEE RN EXHZEY
2R - B R T H
— &% (ZE—ZF: —RK)ARA
TZBEnT

The emoluments fell within the following band:

2011 2010
— 25 | =2 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
2,272
12 7
m:. 2,274
e N FLATR4ER -

2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

8 Bl A & B A =

2R # R

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% 7T Z 2,500,000 % JT

1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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32 Finance Income and Costs

Interest expense:
— on loans from banks and financial
institutions wholly repayable
within five years
— on loans from banks not wholly

32 MW AR RKAX

2011
o
HK$'000
FiE
GRS
—ﬁ#ﬂi@%%ﬁﬁz
1T ERIER

1,808,043

TEARDFRABHREEREZ

repayable within five years RITER 69,376
— on senior notes wholly repayable —HRAFREBHEE L
within five years BEZE 496,992
— on convertible bonds wholly —EBARAFTFANTBHEEZ
repayable within five years AR ES
Total borrowing costs incurred Frg K2 BIEE A 2,374,411
Less: Amount capitalised as part of B BAERERDMEZ
the cost of properties 4D P AN 2 FRIB
under development (2,135,872)
238,539
Interest income from banks AT B HA (29,098)
Net finance costs BB A R R 209,441

The average interest rate of borrowing costs capitalised for the year
ended 31st December 2011 was approximately 8.2% (2010: 5.9%)

per annum.

BHE—

SEERAT - —B——FER

223

HK$'000
THET

989,928

38,685

234,864

4,852
1,268,329

(1,015,022)

253,307
(17,039)

236,268

B——FtT_HA=T—BHLF
B BAEEARNEEKAFHEMNEX

K EB2E(ZE—FF :59F) o
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33 Taxation

33 %A

2011 2010
—g——f | —z=—zx
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T

Taxation consists of: MBI
Current tax N EAFL IR
Hong Kong profits tax (Note (a)) BAERSEE (K@) 2,341 (1,599)
Mainland China corporate B KEEEMEM
income tax (Note (b)) (B3t b)) 526,845 1,034,209
Mainland China land appreciation tax R OER K BE b R (E R
(Note (c)) (FtaE(c) 303,392 591,446
832,578 1,624,056
Deferred tax iR JE T 18
Mainland China corporate PR RBER TSR
income tax (Note (b)) (KtaE®b)) (29,525) 957,124
Mainland China land appreciation tax B OK BE + s (B R
(Note (c)) (Bt &t () (14,280) (31,083)
926,041
Taxation (Note (d)) I (M3t d)) 788,773 2,550,097

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until March
2016. Subsidiaries in the British Virgin Islands are incorporated
under the International Business Companies Act (now the BVI
Business Companies Act, 2004) of the British Virgin Islands, or the
BVI Business Companies Act, 2004 of the British Virgin Islands, and
are not liable to pay any form of taxation in the British Virgin
Islands.

There was no share of the jointly controlled entity’s taxation for the
year ended 31st December 2011 and 2010.

(a) Hong Kong Profits Tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year.

(b) Mainland China Corporate Income Tax

Subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are
subject to Mainland China corporate income tax at the rate of
25% (2010: 25%) for the year ended 31st December 2011.

RAREREHMNERERE HEE
—E—RNFEZRAL -RBERESH
BRARNDBRERBEZHES BB EE
REERARBRUHESHENRNT
752004) AABRELBEEZHBREL
BHEMENTE2004 ML &K
BASNEAFRAZEBELESH
I o

Bz 22—k -_F—ZFTF+_-H
=t BIEFETESEZEREH

EBWHE-

(a) EABANEHR

FRAEBMNESH 2T ERM
%A R165% (= T — T F:
16.5% ) ) 7t KBS -

(b) B KBEDREFEH

RE-T——&+-A=+—
B L4 18 B B KRR ST R 48
%2 I B A R T 25% (=B —
T 25%) 2 B E AP BIA
RS TR
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33 Taxation (Continued)

(d)

aralRERE

BEERAF - —E——FFR

33 HE )

(c) Mainland China Land Appreciation Tax () HEARFELHIEE
Mainland China land appreciation tax is levied at progressive e N N i - W 7 e i L
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land B BHEERHMEMNRESREN
value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible BRAMREE(BETHEEERE
expenditures including costs of land and development and B MEBEEKK) IREEHRXK
construction expenditures. 30% E 60% B
The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the (d) AREBBRBRANEAN EIZBERNR
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted TNMEEHER RN HERAE
average tax rate applicable to profits of the group companies BHESTEAEME=E B0 T
as follows:

2011 2010
—B2-——-F | %
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THER FET
Profit before taxation 53 %}fﬁ Bl & %IJ 2,197,184 8,843,109
Less: Share of profit less loss W G EEE R Fla
of associates & TE' (351) (1,071)
Less: Share of loss of jointly W o R R
controlled entities &5 18 3,284 666
2,200,117 8,842,704
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates 3R & Bl 2 3% A1) B & A
applicable to profits in the HEFTEZHE
respective countries 550,572 2,125,355
Income not subject to tax THRRBKRA (23,794) (164,899)
Expenses not deductible for tax R 2,387 125,968
Land appreciation tax deductible for ~ RIFIRE AT EATSH AR Z
calculation of income tax purposes + b 3% (F 5 (72,278) (140,091)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised &) F i@ 1 K # 52
tax losses TIEE B (5.149) (3,049)
Deferred tax asset not recognised AERELEFHIBEEE 47,923 46,450
499,661 1,989,734
Land appreciation tax + b 3% (E T 289,112 560,363
Taxation Fi 18 788,773 2,550,097

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 25% (2010:

24%).

PnHE R A B R B25% (ZF
—ZF : 24%) °
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34

35

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of
the Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of a
profit of HK$368,402,000 (2010: loss of HK$159,509,000).

Earnings Per Share

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company (HK$'000)
Weighted average number of

(F#7T)

(TR

ordinary shares in issue ("000)
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share)

34

35

Rn ) BHER B ARG5S T

ERTEARZNEFHE

BREABN (BBETT)

%Qﬂﬁ%%ﬁk@ﬁ%
|

RARRERE ARG EfiE
#1368,402,0008 L (ZE—ZF : 518
159,509,000/ 7T ) B R 24N A 7] Bf % ¥
RARME -

BRER

SN

BREABNDREBERARBBERSE
ABERAMBEAFACBTERRZ
MEFHHEFH -

2011 2010

—E——F | =%
1,430,031 5,889,412
1,748,096 1,717,330
0.82 3.43

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. There was no
dilutive potential ordinary shares for the year ended 31st December
2011. For the year ended 31st December 2010, the convertible
bonds were assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares,
and the net profit was adjusted to eliminate the interest expense
less the related tax effect. The number of shares calculated as above
was compared with the number of shares that would have been
issued assuming the conversion of convertible bonds.

s

HEBREERTE BEHEBTY
AR MEFHEEL AR UEHK
FTEABSE Iz ERAREZHSE
B-RBEE——F+-_A=1+—
BEFE SMEf@ME#RESEN 2T
BR -REBEE_ZT—ZZF+=-_A=+
—BLFE RAURRESFMS R
BB ARRESD HLBRKERR -
A1) A 8 8 A B S R B R A RS
BMAFAE A LR FAFEZRS
FEBNBRALBATRRESME &
TZRME B EITELL -



BHEAREBARAR - —T——FFH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A o s ok M ()

35 Earnings Per Share (continued) 35 EREFN e
Diluted (continued) }gﬁ 5\% (%)

2011 2010
—g-—-% | —z-=7%

Profit attributable to equity holders of RATRERZB AN EF

the Company (HK$'000) (F#&mT) 1,430,031 5,889,412
Interest expense on convertible bonds AMRES 2 ER X
(net of tax) (HK$'000) (3B FE) (FAT) 3,760
Profit for calculation of diluted earnings =+ & & B #4558 2 7 > % &
per share (HK$'000) (FET) 1,430,031 5,893,172
Weighted average number of EETEERZ MEFHH
ordinary shares in issue ('000) (F1%) 1,748,096 1,717,330
Adjustments for shares to be issued on 8 B35 & JA B2 44 1] #2 A% (5 % B
conversion of convertible bonds ('000) % F 217 2 I (FA%) 5,357
Weighted average number of ordinary st B &R EERF 2 L iBAR
shares for diluted earnings miEFEHE(FR)
per share ('000) 1,748,096 1,722,687
Diluted earnings per share FREERT
(HK$ per share) (8RR T) SiZ2
36 Dividends 36 R E
2011 2010
—E——F | = —-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT T T
Interim dividend paid of nil (2010: nil) ENFAREERETERTET
per ordinary share (ZE—ZF:THT) —
Proposed final dividend of nil BREREREEREBERZET
(2010: HK$0.1715) per ordinary share —E—FF :01715%E7T) 300,531

300,531
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37 Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow

o B 2 R PR (A

Statement

(a) Cash used in operations

Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
— Interest income
— Finance costs
— Dividend income
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
— Share of loss of jointly
controlled entities

— Share of profit less loss of
associates

— Depreciation of properties
and equipment

— Loss on disposal of properties
and equipment

— Amortisation of land costs

— Fair value gains on
investment properties

— Fair value loss/(gain) on financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss

— Net exchange gain

Changes in working capital (excluding
the effects of acquisition, disposal of
subsidiaries and exchange differences

37 ZEBRETREBERWE

(a) EKEFTHZRE

2011
—E——f
HK$'000
FExT
B 75 A1 5 A 2,197,184
ég K-
— B A (29,098)
— B RAR 238,539
— B WA (68,843)
— HEN B QRS —
DIEHEEHER 2
B8 3,284
— DG & R R A
/méﬂa (351)
—MERRERTE
146,559
—HEMERZRHEHSE
492
— & b B AR 8 6,522
—KREWEQATFERZE
(107,397)
—BRATEFBEZD
IR MBEEZ
ANFEEE () 272
— & 5 s (262,032)
EEEEH(TEE

Wi hEMBRRK
EXEZBEHFAKREZ

on consolidation): Ta):
— Properties under development for —AfHEEZERS
sale and completed properties MERAEEEZ
for sale Ep-3 %7 ES (6,011,102)
— Accounts receivable — FE U BR 5K (51,184)
— Prepayments for acquisition of land — U BE £+t 2 TR FOB (640,809)
— Prepayments, deposits and —BNRIE EZER
other current assets HhmE & E (100,457)
— Accounts payable —ERTER K (786,254)
— Land cost payable — B LB A 147,452
— Deferred revenue —IEEWA 3,765,850
— Accruals and other payables — R RIE R EAD
J& 1~ 518 624,667
Cash used in operations REMAZAS (926,706)

2010

—E-FF

HK$'000
TAET
8,843,109
(17,039)
253,307

(15,292)
(958,217)

666

(1,071)

118,922

1,836
5,845

(3,795,624)

(601)
(82,612)

(3,075,071)
(19,633)
(7,661,085)

(707,630)
2,558,072
24,939

(1,934,476)

267,854

(6,193,801)
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37 Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow 37 e BHERERKMT &

Statement (continued)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (b)

During the year ended 31st December 2011, the Group
completed the acquisition of the equity interests in Tianjin
Zeye Modern Agriculture Development Limited, Tianjin
Ruiwan Investment and Development Company Limited and
Beijing Ruiyu Investment Management Limited, at a total
consideration of RMB993,181,000 (approximately
HK$1,183,360,000). The major assets of the subsidiaries are
land lots for property development in Mainland China, and
accordingly, the transactions have been accounted for as the
acquisition of assets.

I &5 B B 1 B

BE-_ZT——F+-_A=1+—
BLEFE AEBEDERKEX
EMEXERAREREHREARA
Bl RRmEREZERBERAT
RIERBFREEEBR A A
ZBAED  REABER/RARE
993,181,000t (%71,183,360,000
BL) ZEMBRARZEIER
ERRTEAEAENERRZ
SRR WERRXZIUEER
BARK-

HK$'000
FET
Net assets acquired: Fris b 2 B & E -
Properties and equipment LE IS E L] 4,815
Properties under development for sale AEEZERPYE 1,337,138
Prepayments, deposits and AR me REM
other current assets mBEE 56,488
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 401
Land cost payable - Hb AR AR JE S FRIE (135,540)
Accruals and other payables FE 5T 5K IR K H b fE 5 3B (23,432)
Non-controlling interests AR M R = (56,510)
1,183,360
Satisfied by: LATR B 5 BT -
Cash consideration ReRE 684,854
Prepaid consideration (included in BRRRE(BRE
prepayments, deposits and FERNRIE e REM
other current assets) MEEE) 498,506
1,183,360
Net cash (outflow)/inflow arising on ExglkE FiRe
acquisition: (RED)/RA
Cash consideration paid ENRERE (684,854)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EWEZ2RERBEEEY 401

(684,453)
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38 M&ER

38 Financial Guarantees

Group Company
£ AL
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F| ZEZF| =ZB——F| ZE-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FHT FBx FHIT
Financial guarantees not KRB HREF
provided for in the financial ~ {E i B~
statements are as follows: BIISIERMT ¢
Guarantees given to HEEAEH
banks for mortgage MEZETER
facilities granted to RIEEBERM
certain buyers of MIRITIEE 2
the Group's ER
properties 10,315,065 10,501,787 —
Guarantees given to B AR ZRIT
banks for bank BEMmMARTT
borrowings of B 2 1R
subsidiaries 17,131,925 13,565,035
Guarantees given to ot — ) 2k [R] 2 il
bank for bank ERRTEER
borrowings of a jointly B 2 R
controlled entity 878,734 k1 755165 878,734 1,175,185
11,193,799 11,676,972 18,010,659 14,740,220

Guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities granted to certain
buyers of the Group’s properties represented the guarantees in
respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks relating to
the mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible
to repay the outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued
interest and penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks
and the Group is entitled to take over the legal title and possession
of the related properties. Such guarantees were to be discharged
upon earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate ownership certificate
which are generally be available within three months after the
purchasers take possession of the relevant properties; or (i) the
satisfaction of mortgaged loan by the purchasers of properties.

ZERRRETRORLZZBRE
ZER DERAAKEMEZET
BERXRFZRIBER - REZERFRD
B Mz EEFRIEREBAR K
SEHEAABREEERNENBRRITZ
el R 8 3R 1R 18 A & 18 R 8 &t A B K &
R MAREERRSHEBYE A
EFMERIARERE - 2OFHFE
EMAEER(—RRERIERERYD
EM=—EREL)  KMEFVENE
REEBRRBERUAREERE)
HERG SRR -
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38

39

Financial Guarantees (continued)

The Directors consider that in case of default in payments, the net
realisable value of the related properties can cover the repayment
of the outstanding mortgage principals together with the accrued
interest and penalty (see also note 3.1(b)) and therefore no
provision has been made in the financial statements.

Pending Litigation

Summary of litigation instituted by YTO Group Corporation
(PFE—#EBE AR /AR]) against Guangzhou Laureland Property
Co. Ltd. (BN & =EHE AR A7) and Guangzhou Ziyun Village
Real Estate Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, in relation
to a dispute over guarantee

In December 2004, YTO Group Corporation (“YTO Group”) and
Guangzhou Laureland Property Co., Ltd. (“Laureland Co"”), both
independent third parties entered into an agreement, whereby
Laureland Co agreed to provide a counter-guarantee by pledging its
seven villas as security for repayment in respect of the amount of
RMB127,138,320 under the guarantee provided by YTO Group in
respect of a bank loan obtained by Henan Jian Ye Company. A
balance of RMB93,138,320 was due and payable by Laureland Co
to YTO Group.

In June 2007, YTO Group, as plaintiff, instituted a proceeding
against Laureland Co, as defendant, in the Intermediate People’s
Court of Luoyang City (“Luoyang Court”), claiming for the payment
of the said balance of RMB93,138,320. In July 2007, YTO Group
issued “supplementary pleadings” adding Guangzhou Ziyun Village
Real Estate Company Limited (“Ziyun Co"”), a subsidiary of the
Group a co-defendant and pleading that certain transfer(s) of assets
at an undervalue be declared void and that the co-defendant be
ordered to repay the said balance.

38

39

BBERE

EERR MEBRBERMEROEBER
TERER Y S By R] B3R (E B DA A R
BEMNZBASER R E KER
(FEREF 2B M 53.1(b) R A bt - 7B
B PHEF LG -

/4 3 AE
FREFA

TE-HEEFRATRERUS A
ENEREFHEARARARAEH
BETHBARBEMEREILEFEMES
[RARREFLHE

R_TEENFE+_F FEH—EEE
BERAR(—#HEE]) BEMNBRE
EHWEERAR(EZBEARDHEA
BYE=F &FilMpE EHE
WEARRAZEERBERELERES
EHARRERERINEE —EEE®
AMEEEARRBRITERMRES
AR #127,138,320C 2 & 1R - BB
EARBHEMN —HEEELEHKARKE
93,138,320 7T °

RZZEZLFA —HEEERR
HENREE TR REARER(SB
mERD MEBEARHERESA)
RIEFDR EREELREHKRARE
93,138320L c R=ZZEZT+F+ A —
HEEZELMALERF] MAKXEE
ETHBAREMNEZE LERMESR
RARI(REQ A ARRAKEELE
KEMETEREEEEZERARY S
HERKEAEE L4 -
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39 Pending Litigation (continued)

In August 2007, the Luoyang Court made an injunction to freeze
the sum of RMB11,446,100 in the bank account of Ziyun Co and
the land use rights of certain land situated in Nanan Village,
Zengcheng Xintang Town, Guangzhou Province. In March 2008,
the court released the said land and made an order to freeze the
land use rights of certain other land situated in the same location.

On the basis of the damage arising from the injunction as
aforementioned, Ziyun Co instituted a proceeding in the Luoyang
Court against YTO Group and Laureland Co, pleading that the co-
defendants be injuncted from infringing the rights of Ziyun Co and
seeking compensation for its economic loss of RMB20,000,200.

In May 2008, the Luoyang Court heard the proceedings in relation
to YTO Group’s claims and ordered that (i) Laureland Co shall repay
the sum of RMB93,138,320 owed to YTO Group, (i) YTO Group
shall have priority in sums recovered by auction or sale of the
mortgaged properties and (iii) Ziyun Co shall be liable for sums
which Laureland Co may be unable to settle. Ziyun Co appealed
against the decision and applied to set aside the judgement.

In August 2010, the Higher People’s Court of Henan Province
upheld the decision of the Luoyang Court and ordered that Ziyun
Co shall pay the costs of the appeal.

In June 2011, the bank deposits of Ziyun Co amounting to RMB12
million was temporarily transferred to the Higher People’s Court of
Henan Province.

In July 2011, the Supreme People’s Court of the PRC accepted the
application for retrial and in February 2012, the court hearing in the
Higher People’s Court of Henan Province was conducted, but
judgment has not been handed down.

The Group, in consultation with its internal and external legal
counsels, considers that they have adequate grounds (based on
external legal opinion that Ziyun Co is not a party to the loan
agreement) to defend the case. Therefore, no provision has been
made at this stage.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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39 FREFFA®

R-ZZEZLFNA BEBTERES
REREARBITIRFBEARE
11,446,1007C K& AL 72 & M 77 38 3% [ 37
BEHELENZEFT L2 T ER
% RZZZENFE=ZR  ER#EKRE
M WL REMRE — B2
HETHM I L FARE-

BERW LR SHERZEBE
KREQRAREETERA—EEE R
BHELAIRLFR  BEREHFRE
ERREREFMKALRAKESE RE
kgt H 4% 7% 18 < A R % 20,000,200 7T
YEH B (E -

RZTZENFRA AT EREFE
Bl —mEBE2FR UHELOEBH
BRAAEEBER —HBEEZHREBEAR
593,138,320 7T - (i)— #E & B A {2 &
FRMEBEBIHEERMEMESRK
UDESINGIE-ER 3 K -VNCICI- 25 S
REEZREBLEF - REQAIR
FIREBE ERRABRE AR -

R=F-—25/\B ABRABEAR
RO R 1B TR IR 0 2R A S
EATLMRE

RZE——F A EERAIMELT
17 2 A K #12,000,000 7T, & 5 B 3 £
i/Tﬁ‘é ?&AE/%KJ‘B ©

R-Z——Ft A HFEESARE
REEMEFNHRF MR_F—=
F_A AHERRARERD R
B MERRA L FIR o

ERAANSBRIMEEREREK A&

BRREFTRMOEHR(ERINEE
FRERELEREQARALIFE R HHE
ﬂ%ﬁ?ﬁ%%ﬁ#ﬁﬁ%°l%'ﬁ
P& B I ZEHBHE -



AEplRERERLAR - —=——FF% 233

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A o s ok M ()

40 Commitments 40 #=iE
(a) Capital Commitments (a) B AN IE
Capital expenditures at the balance sheet date but not yet REEBRREEZEARNAZ A

N

_|

incurred are as follows:

Group
£H
2011 2010
—E——F | =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contracted but not provided for EEIHEREE
— Property construction costs — W ERERAR 2,752,993 1,785,112
— Acquisition of land and equity —WEETER

interest in certain entities (Note) 2 T R AR AR RE RS (MY aE) 11,335,438 6,245,172

— Capital contribution to — B B =N
an associate & 264,315 —

14,352,746 8,030,284

Authorised but not contracted for DEREBRITY

— Acquisition of land and equity —REETEB 2 LR
interests in certain entities IR AN = 101,546 7,858,919
— Property construction costs — MEFEERKAK 1,523,439 525,727
1,624,985 11,384,646
19,414,930
Note: Included in the balance is an amount of RMB4,291,279,000 (approximately Kiat: & A fr B 15 — E A K #4291,279,000
HK$5,293,300,000) (Note 41(g)) which is to be satisfied by the issuance T ( #95,293,300,000% 7T ) #9 3% B ( B it
of shares of the Company upon the completion of the acquisition. 41(9)) * R EE 5T K £ 38 B X Bl # AT

BRI -
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40 Commitments (Continued)

(b) Operating Lease Commitments

The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of
premises under various non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:

T IR R Z 3R

Amounts payable

— Within one year ——FR
— Within two to five years —WMEERAFNR
— After five years —hfFi&

40 FEIE 4w

(b) EHE AR

AEEBRZNABEENEZ T
AEEKEHEREMAKEH
EAE -RETAFHELEMAY
RARZEERNEEHESAE
e

Group
&5

2011 2010
—g——% | —2-2F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
34,798 29,959
67,846 74,285
40,641 40,099
143,285 144,343

The Company has no operating lease commitment as at 31st
December 2011 (2010: nil).

(c) Future Minimum Rental Receivable

The Group leased out certain properties under operating
leases. The future minimum rental receivable under non-
cancellable operating leases is as follows:

Within one year —&R
Within two to five years MEERFR
After five years AFE

(©)

RARARRZBE——F+ZHA=+
—ArEGERERE(ZT—
ZE |-

ARBREEWEE

AEEREELHELHETY
X KEBETARELEHEZR

KxEREASMT
Group
£H

2011 2010
—f—-% | —T-—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAET
111,214 81,602
325,667 237,929
139,373 170,792
490,323

The Company has no future rental receivable as at 31st
December 2011 (2010: nil).

ARAR_F——F+_H=1
—RYEEAMARRERES(Z
T—FF E)
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41 Related-party Transactions 41 BEALTRS
The Company is controlled by Mr. Chu Mang Yee, who owns KRB HABEEEZES EREE
approximately 62.83% to 63.42% (2010: 57.5% to 62.83%) of T —F+ - A=Z+—BHILEFER
the Company's shares during the year ended 31st December 2011. B #H6283%E63.02%( ZF —F
The remaining shares are widely held. F :57.5% £62.83%) AR ARG -

ThitBHEMALEZEE -

The ultimate holding company is Sounda Properties Limited. RERER NG ANMEEEXEARR AR -
(a) The Following Significant Transactions (@) TH HEEEE A L #
were Carried out with Related Parties: TZEELRS
Sales of Goods and Services (note) HEESREIRE (ML)
2011 2010
—E——F | 2 -ZF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Property management services RETFTHERARZMEETE
to related companies R 7% 5,967
Property design services REFEERNR ZYWERE
to related companies AR 7% 16,312

22,279
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41 Related-party Transactions (continued) 41 BEALIRZ %

(a) The Following Significant Transactions (@) T §|J A EAEgE A T E
were Carried out with Related Parties: T2 E X5
(Continued)

Purchase of Goods and Services (note) (Continued) BEE D REIRE(KHFE)
(&)
2011 2010
—E——F | ZE—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Property construction services BERNRRHE I MERERE
from related companies 571,916 2,275,708
Property design services MENr IRt 2 MERT R
from related companies 3,320 2,759
Decoration services from BENRRECEHRS
related companies 48,357 42,487
Office rental services from BEARREZHATHEHE
related companies R 7& 2,506 1,203
Property management services from BB A FIRE 2 WEE B IR
related companies 945 1,104
Property construction supervision —HEERAF R I ERE
services from a related company BB R 7S 6,418
Electrical power installation, BEANRREZE LT E -
intelligent building installation work, EHiEAEZE TR FEER
budgeting and cost control P 7S 122 1] 8 Rl Pl 755
consultation services
from related companies 144,552 109,403
778,423 2,439,082
Note: Wt
These related companies are owned by the brother and the brother-in-law of ZERE D A 73K AR (KR A
Mr. Chu Mang Yee (the controlling shareholder and Chairman of the Board of BRBRREEGEE) I ERIKKXEE

Directors of the Company). Z 2 a]
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41 Related-party Transactions (continued)

(b) Amounts due from/to Related Parties were

(@

41 BEALIRS

aralRERE

BERRR - —E——FFR

(%)

(b)J%H&/ﬁEQE’Aﬁ]Z

as Follows: HIBWT

2011 2010

—2——F | —F—FF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FiET

Due from associates JE B & 2 R RIR o 30,382

Due from related companies (Note) JE U2 B 3 A R 3R IE (A7) 6,188 13,644

Due to an associate JEN —MEE QA E 2K 6,808 6,486

Due to related companies (Note) FE B A R 2 5RIB (A7 5F) 81,704 344,057
Due to a jointly controlled entity EN—HAREHERZ

=75 1,709,345

As at 31st December 2011,
related companies, associates and jointly controlled entities

all outstanding balances with

were unsecured, non-interest bearing and without pre-
determined repayment terms.

As at 31st December 2011, the Group also had accounts payable
of approximately HK$2,516,006,000 (2010: HK$2,534,380,000)
due to certain related companies (Note) in respect of property
construction fees (Note 23).

Note:

These related companies are owned by the brother and the brother-in-law of
Mr. Chu Mang Yee (the controlling shareholder and Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Company).

Amount due to Minority Shareholders of
Subsidiaries

The amount due to minority shareholders represents
shareholders’ loans to subsidiaries from the minority
shareholders, which is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
without pre-determined repayment terms. The amount is

considered equity in nature.

(o)

%:%——¢+—ﬂ:+—av
REEAT BEANRKRAE
ﬂﬁﬁzium%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ~%
SRAFETERS -

RZE——F+=ZRAR=+—
H A"&EEBTEENET#A
ERAA(ME)MERRED
2,516,006,000% L ( = & — &
F :2,534,380,0007% T ) ( M 5F
23) °

BEMBRT LG E T KA (KA
REEREFOEE) ML RREE
ZRAe

EHWFQ
R oA

e A BB R FRIR I D BURR A
MBRAREHZIRRER BH
REARERN REREBRTEE
R - AHESBEZIMEREAE

.
Enlly

S ¢
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41 Related-party Transactions (continued)

(d) Key Management Compensation:

Fees we
Salaries and allowances e MoERL
Pension costs BIRER A

41 BEATRB »
d) TEEEEHN

2011 2010
—g--5 | -2-%

HK$’000 HK$'000

THT FHT

840

11,527

80

14,338 12,447

(e) Undertaking Provided by Mr. Chu Mang

Yee, the Chairman of the Company, to the
Group in Relation to the Acquisition of
Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Limited

In March 2010, the Group completed the acquisition of the
entire interest in Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Limited (“Panyu
Zhujiang”) from Guangdong Hanjiang Construction
Installation Project Limited (“Hangjiang”), a related company.

Panyu Zhujiang possesses the right to develop a piece of land
in Panyu District, Guangdong, China (the “Land”). Pursuant
to the Agreement, Hanjiang will perform and complete all
necessary demolition and preparation work to obtain the land
use right certificate of Land, at its own expense, within one
year from the date of the agreement.

In relation to the Group’s acquisition of Panyu Zhujiang, Mr.
Chu Mang Yee, has undertaken to the Group to guarantee
the due and punctual performance by Hanjiang of its
obligations in relation to the Land (subject to a maximum
amount of RMB3,600 million). As at 31st December 2011,
Hanjiang was in the process to apply the land use right of the
Land.

(e) ZIK’AEEJE'%%{I‘E

£l iEE B I
i EARA A B AR
[ i iz & A

RZE—ZEF=F AEEZEK
m—HAERRERBIERER
HIBRBRAF(EI))WEE
B®WIEHMEAR AR ([HFBIK
T2 2 EbER -

ERRIBETEERERR
N—RE ([ ) ERE -
RIBZ W% - BipEESN—F
AT A BRRIEYN K E AP
B iR B TIEAES
Hb ) 3 56 FR A o

REBAEBRERSERIM
CRERAEEBERAEBR
FRINHETEAER LM
WEB(EaREAEARK
3,600,000,0007T) ¢ A =& — —
F+-—A=+—H8 WIEHEHR
TR R

55 oif
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41 Related-party Transactions (continued)

(f) Undertaking Provided by Mr. Chu Mang

Yee, the Chairman of the Company, to the
Group in Relation to Acquisition of Believe
Best

In 2007, the Group completed the acquisition of 80% of the
issued share capital of Believe Best Investments Limited (" Believe
Best”) from Mr. Chu Mang Yee, Chairman of the Company.
Believe Best has, through its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
(the project company), acquired a piece of land for
development in Chaoyang District, Beijing, China (known as
the “Jing Run Project”).

In relation to the Group’s interest in the Jing Run Project
through its 80% interest in Believe Best, Mr. Chu Mang Yee,
has (i) fully guaranteed the bank loans which were used by
the project company for the demolition and relocation of the
extra public greenfield site peripheral to the Jing Run Project
at the request of the local government; and (ii) undertaken to
the Group to be responsible for the excess amount, if any,
being the difference in the unit cost per square metre (including
the demolition and relocation fees for the extra public
greenfield site and the land transfer fees as compared with
the original agreed valuation price of Jing Run Project) for the
gross floor area to be developed, payable by the project
company in respect of any increase in plot ratio as the
government may approve. The demolition and relocation on
the construction site have been completed, building
construction is in progress and pre-sale permit in respect of
one phase of the Jing Run Project has been obtained. The
demolition and relocation work on the extra public greenfield
is ongoing and related costs of approximately RMB1,460
million had been incurred by the Group up to 31st December
2011 (2010: RMB1,430 million). Such additional costs may be
compensated by an increase in plot ratio for the Jing Run
Project. However, government approval for increase in plot
ratio is pending.

41 BEATRZ @
(ﬂﬁ@ﬁiﬁﬁ%f

7
TRRBEEODAE

B 1R 5 2 A&
R-BBLF ARERRAX

NAEFERAEEREERBEER
BERAR(MEEDEBHTERA
Z80% M - EERIBEBEME
2EMBEARCER QR WE—
8 32 70 7 B 4E s B3R5 & Al 4 3
Rzt (ZRIRERERB]D -

FEAAEEBEBEMNEES%
umEBEREEBEBE Z2E&=M
FOAEREEDOEERERAE
SEZEBEEAREE BT
Tk - REEBREEEIILR
FlEtH2FEMAETE

ERRITE R - R (i) W\ A & B &
7 W & Hh AT kTR B BB AN R A
i T 2 HFEB ML ML E 2
AREE MBEFRZEA(E
ERABEEREMEARS Z
BIALGIL LM ZIREBER
RTtERE)SRERBZEZ
HE REREEAREINZBE
ERARAEEEBEBL &8 -
ERAFBREEENK  EF
FEREIF  WEESHRRE
BHE —HcBEHFIE -BIND
&b T3 2B TEFEEST
FmMAEERRBEE=-_ZE——F
+_A=1+—HEEAHARE
1,460,000,000 7T 2 18 B8 Ak A~ (=
= —ZF: AR%1,430,000,000
TT) ° FEANAK AN Bk = pA 8 N R B IE
BZRBEBUARBE - A K
FI AR E G N A R 2 # ok -

il
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41 Related-party Transactions (continued)

(g) Acquisition of Sun Excel Investments

Limited

On 3rd November 2010, the Group entered into an
agreement with Farrich Investments Limited (“Farrich”), a
related company, to acquire the entire interest in Sun Excel
Investments Limited (“Sun Excel”) for a consideration of
RMB6,605,066,000.

The sole asset of Sun Excel is its interests under the equity
transfer agreement for the acquisition of the entire interests
in Beijing Chuang He Feng Wei Technology Investment and
Management Co. Limited (“Project Co A"”) and Beijing Sheng
Chuang Heng Da Technology Investment and Management
Co. Limited (“Project Co B"). Project Co A and Project Co B
hold the land use rights of a piece of land in Tongzhou
District, Beijing.

The consideration will be satisfied by (i) cash of
RMB2,313,787,000 and (ii) the issuance of shares of the
Company for the remaining balance of RMB4,291,279,000.
The acquisition has not yet been completed as at the year end
and the deadline of completion of the acquisition was
extended for one year to 2nd November 2012.

41 BEATRZ @
() WEBEBHEREBRLF

RZZE—ZTF+—A=H X%
HHE-—HHAEARERERERR
RATEBDITLHZE  UAR
# 6,605,066,000 7T 1E & X B W B8
BEREERARTAEDZ2

A -

AER-—NEERENBEaEE
haE R NI Al 8 ER
REEBARLFI(EER RFA)
RIERBRABENMKKREETREA
RAF(EEB RRB) 2 &=
o HE AAARIEE RABY
AFFAILLBMNEAR —EN LT
Z A R

K E B UONE £ AR K
2,313,787,000 7T K ()L #2 T~ A R
#4,291,279,000 7T Hy 4 & % 17
RABHRDE TR - RE
& - W B 8 R TR AR - T To AR U R
WHREER—FE=_FT—=_F
+—HA=H-
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42 Details of Principal Subsidiaries 2 FERMBELATFE

AR _-_ZE——F+-A=+—~H

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December

2011:

Place of

incorproation and

Issued and fully

ZEEMBRRABE:

Percentage of equity

interest attributable

Name of company operations paid capital to the Group Principal activities
= AR R ERITR SEEMGRE
REER EE M HERA [Epidsa FTEER
Directly Indirectly
HiE SE:3
Hopson Development British Virgin Islands US$2,000 100% — Investment holding
International Limited KBRS 2,000% 7T REER
SHARBBRARAR
Addup International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 — 100% Investment holding
KEBRARAR] BB 177T BEER
Archibald Properties Limited British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100% Investment holding
EEEFXARRAA RERIHE Ve REER
Beijing Hopson Beifang Education Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 49%(ij) Provision of training
and Technology Limited® B K AR#1,000,0007T and consultancy
EREEFHERX services
BIRAF? REBMIFNREBE
Bk
Beijing Hopson Beifang Real Estate Mainland China US$220,580,000 — 100% Property development
Development Limited* B K RE 220,580,000 7T MR
b RE &I T EHER T
BRAR!
Beijing Hopson Lu Zhou Real Estate Mainland China RMB463,370,000 — 100% Property development
Development Limited* B K e AR #463,370,0007T MEER
IEREEEMNEER
BRAR"
Beijing Hopson Wang Jing Real Estate ~ Mainland China RMB364,990,000 — 100% Property development
Development Company Limited* eI N AR #364,990,0007T MEER
IEREEESRMERE
BRAF"
Beijing Hopson Xing Ye Real Estate Mainland China US$31,600,000 — 100% Property development

Development Limited”
EREEEEEERE
BRAF"

R BIARE

31,600,000% 7T

MEER
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Name of company

DNE BB

Beijing Hopson Yujing Real Estate
Development Limited®

IREEMRFERE
BRRA"

Beijing Long Jia Jincheng Property
Development Company Limited

I REERRIEE AR
BRAF

Beijing Long Jia Runhe Real Estate
Development Limited
ItRERHEEHEREARAT

Beijing Long Xiang Landmark
Property Development
Company Limited

I REE B EIEREER AR

Beijing Long Yuan Shun Jing
Real Estate Development Limited
I RERIEREHEREER AR

Beijing Xingjingrun Property Co., Ltd.”

R EE I ERR AR

Beijing Yishang Property
Development Limited®

b as EE AR B
BRAF"

Believe Best Investments Limited

EEREERAT

Chia Lung Group Company Limited
ERREBRBERAR

Dalian Hopson Hotel Investment
Management Company Limited”
RNESEEEREER
BRATF

Annual Report 2011

Place of
incorproation and
operations

& B L &%
0 it B

Mainland China
B K R

Mainland China
A B RRE

Mainland China
B KR

Mainland China
LaEIPN 75

Mainland China
A B RRE

Mainland China

B RE

Mainland China
A B ARE

British Virgin Islands
REBELRS

Samoa

B 55 B

Mainland China
s B KRE

42 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (continued) 42

Issued and fully
paid capital
BETR
BRRAE

US$165,760,000
165,760,000 7T

RMB10,000,000
AR #10,000,0007T

RMB 10,000,000
AR ¥10,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000
AR #10,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000
AR#20,000,0007T

US$147,030,000

147,030,000%& 7T

RMB10,000,000
AR ¥10,000,0007T

US$200
PIEST

US$6,500,000
6,500,000% 7T

RMB30,000,000
AR #30,000,0007T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Percentage of equity
interest attributable

to the Group
EEESERE
Bt
Directly Indirectly
Hi Sk

— 100%

. 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

= 80%

— 100%

= 80%

— 100%

= 100%

TENBRAFR @

Principal activities

Property development

MR

Property development

MR

Property development

E S

Property development

MR

Property development

ESIES

Property development

UE S

Property development

MR

Investment holding

AR

Investment holding

REZER

Hotel operation

BB
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42 FEMBLRAIFE®

42 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of

incorproation and

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Name of company operations paid capital to the Group Principal activities
=R S R ERITR EEEARE
REER O HMERA Bk FTEXK
Directly Indirectly
B SF:3

Dalian Hopson Xing Ye Real Estate Mainland China RMB50,000,000 — 100% Property development

Development Company Limited® B A Re AF#50,000,0005T MEERE
RNESEFEFMERE

BRARP
Dynawell Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100% Investment holding
BAREGRAR B 10,000/ 7T REER
Ever New Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary HK$3 — 100% Investment holding
BNEXBRAT B non-voting deferred and property

shares (i) investment
2B T E B REEBRRMERE
B TEIERE
RIERR AR ()

Funland Properties Limited British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100% Investment holding
REEXBRAF REREIHE 2ETT REER
Grand Avenue Limited Hong Kong HK$22,500,000 — 100% Investment holding
Lir AR AT BB 22,500,000/ 7T REER
Guangdong Esteem Property Mainland China HK$5,000,000 — 100% Property management

Services Limited* GilETPN 5,000,000/ 7T MEERE
BERRRYERBAR A"
Guangdong Hopson Dijing Mainland China US$37,500,000 — 100% Property development

Real Estate Co. Ltd.* GalETPN 37,500,000 7T R
BRAEETREHE

BRAF"
Guangdong Hopson Hong Jing Mainland China RMB200,280,000 — 100% Property development

Real Estate Company Limited”
BREEMREIE
BRAF

HhBIARE

AR%200,280,0007T

ESEY
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Name of company

DNE BB

Guangdong Hopson Lejing
Real Estate Co. Limited”

BREELEFEME
BRAR"

Guangdong Hopson Minghui
Real Estate Limited'

BREERABEREE
BRAA

Guangdong Hopson Yuehua
Real Estate Limited"

BREEBERE
BRAR

Guangdong Huajingxincheng
Real Estate Limited”

ERERFINE HE
BRRAR"

Guangdong Huanan New City
Real Estate Limited'

ERER TR HE
BRAA

Guangdong Huanan Real
Estate Limited’
BREMEMERR AR

Guangdong Jinan Real Estate Limited’

EREREMEGRAR

Guangdong New Tai An Real
Estate Limited”

ERFBLEMEBRRF

Annual Report 2011

42 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorproation and
operations

& B L &%
0 it B

Mainland China
B K R

Mainland China
EaEpN

Mainland China
B KR

Mainland China
B K R

Mainland China
A B RRE

Mainland China
HR B RRE

Mainland China

hBRRE

Mainland China
A B RRE

42

Issued and fully
paid capital
BETR
BRRAE

RMB44,500,000
AR ¥44,500,0007T

RMB41,532,852
ANER#41,532,8527T

RMB41,500,000
AR ¥41,500,0007T

RMB93,500,018
AR¥93,500,0187T

RMB464,750,000
AR #464,750,0007C

RMB48,046,856
AR ¥48,046,8567TC

RMB65,084,340
AR¥65,084,3407T

RMB19,100,000
AR#19,100,0007T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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TENBRAFR @

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Group
EEESERE
B
Directly

HE

— 100%

Indirectly
Sk

. 90%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

= 70%

= 90%

= 100%

Principal activities

Property development

MR

Property development

MR

Property development

E S

Property development

MR

Property development

E SIS

Property development

YE S

Property development

MR

Property development

LUE S
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42 FEMBLRAIFE®

42 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of

incorproation and

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Name of company operations paid capital to the Group Principal activities
=R S R ERITR SEELRE
REER O HMERA Aotk FTEER
Directly Indirectly
B SF:3
Guangzhou Hechuang Construction Mainland China RMB100,000,000 — 100% Provision of
Company Limited® A B K e A #100,000,0007T construction
BMEEI TREEBRERAR service
RHFRERYS
Guangzhou Hopson Cuijing Mainland China RMB53,550,000 — 97% Property development
Real Estate Limited' P K B AR#53,550,0007T MEER
BMNEEBERMESRAR
Guangzhou Hopson Dongyu Mainland China RMB42,500,000 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Limited' )i N 7 AR #42,500,0007T MEER
BME&ERFRHERRRF
Guangzhou Hopson Junjing Mainland China RMB221,670,000 — 95% Property development
Real Estate Limited’ A B KB AR#221,670,0007T PIEER
BMEEBSEMESRAR
Guangzhou Hopson Keji Garden Mainland China RMB 133,340,000 — 95% Property development
Real Estate Limited’ B KR AE#133,340,0007T MEERE
BMAERREREERRAF
Guangzhou Hopson Qinghui Mainland China RMB42,287,624 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Limited' B K e AR #542,287,6247C MEER
BM&EBEREERRAR
Guangzhou Hopson Qingyuan Mainland China RMB3,000,000 — 100% Water supply
Water Supply Limited® LN S AFR3,000,0007T #oK
BM& EBRFKRERRF
Guangzhou Hopson Xingjing Mainland China RMB500,000 — 100% Provision of
Business Services Limited B K BE AR #500,0007T clubhouse and
BMNEGEEREBARAR residential services
RESMREERS
Guangzhou Hopson Yihui Mainland China RMB131,420,019 — 100% Property development

Real Estate Limited'
BMEEIREEME
BRAR]

hEBIARE

AR#131,420,0197C

MEER
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Name of company

DNE BB

Guangzhou Hopson Yijing
Real Estate Limited'
BINGErsRiEBRAR

Guangzhou Hopson Yujing
Real Estate Limited'

BEMAERREHESRAR

Guangzhou Jian Nan Property
Development Limited”

BEMNEEEERRARAF

Guangzhou Nonggongshang
Construction and Development
Company Limited*

BT R IEEEERAERR

Guangzhou Sanlian Huagiao Estate
Company Limited”

BMN=MEREERRAR"

Guangzhou Wanxiangying
Real Estate Company Limited®

BMNTBAREMERRER AR

Guangzhou Xin Chang Jiang
Development Limited®
BN RITERAEER AR’

Guangzhou Yi Cheng Real Estate
Development Limited'

BMTEREEREERAR

Guangzhou Yi Hui Real Estate
Development Limited'

BEMNTEEFEEREER AR

Annual Report 2011

Place of
incorproation and
operations

& B L &%
0 it B

Mainland China
B K R

Mainland China
EaEpN

Mainland China
AR R

Mainland China
LaETPN =5

Mainland China
EaETpN

Mainland China
B K R

Mainland China
A B ARE

Mainland China
A B RRE

Mainland China
LB N 73

42 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (continued) 42

Issued and fully
paid capital
BETR
BRRAE

RMB82,073,720
AR¥82,073,7207T

RMB47,250,000
AR #47,250,0007T

US$12,000,000
12,000,000% 7T

RMB2,170,243
AR#2,170,2437¢C

RMB30,000,000
AR #30,000,0007T

RMB 1,000,000
AR #1,000,0007T

RMB60,000,000
AR ¥60,000,0007T

RMB42,000,000
AR #42,000,0007T

RMB37,000,000
AR ¥37,000,0007T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Percentage of equity
interest attributable

to the Group
EEESERE
Bt
Directly Indirectly
Hi Sk

= 99.5%

o 70%

. 100%

— 100%

=p 67%

= 100%

= 95.5%

= 75%

= 75%

TENBRAFR @

Principal activities

Property development

MR

Property development

MR

Property development

E S

Property development

MR

Property development

E SIS

Property development

YE S

Property development

MR

Property development

E SIS

Property development

UE S
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42 FEMBLRAIFE®

42 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of

incorproation and

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Name of company operations paid capital to the Group Principal activities
=R S R ERITR EEEARE
YNCIECE O HMERA Bk FTEXK
Directly Indirectly
B SF:3
Guangzhou Yijing Arts and Mainland China RMB500,000 — 100% Investment holding
Culture Company Limited® LN AR #500,0007T WEER
BMNES L BMERBR AT’
Guangzhou Yiming Real Estate Mainland China RMB43,800,000 — 100% Property development
Development Company Limited* )i N 7 AR 43,800,0007T MEER
BN EERA PR B A PR A )
Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodao Mainland China RMB535,500,000 — 99.5% Property development
Real Estate Limited' GilEiPN AR#535,500,0007C ESS
BMKIESBEEER AR
Guangzhou Ziyun Village Real Estate Mainland China US$2,000,000 — 100% Property development
Company Limited* LN 2,000,000% 7T MEER
BMNEKELHEEGRAR'
Hopson Development British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100% Provision of property
(Consultants) Limited HERZHS 2% design and
48R (BR) ARAR advisory services
YRR RER
BR%%
Hopson Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100% Property investment
(Properties) Limited BB 10,0003 7T YIEEE
BERIR(BRZ)AERAA
Hopson (Guangzhou) Mainland China US$4,830,000 — 100% Property development
Industries Limited® GalETPN 4,830,000% 7T R
AEEBMEBEXERA A
Hopeson Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary — 100% Investment holding
AEEBEBRAR B HK$10,000 non-voting EER
deferred shares (i)
2B T E B
10,000 7T
ISR

IEIERAD ()
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2 TENBARFB@®

42 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of

incorproation and

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Name of company operations paid capital to the Group Principal activities
= 8 B 3L R ERITR EEEGRE
NCIECE O i B HMERAK ERl4 FTEXK
Directly Indirectly
=3 3
Hopson Properties (China) Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 — 100% Investment holding
AHEPEEMEBRAR EEEES 17T BB
Huizhou Daya Bay New Coastal City Mainland China RMB72,500,000 — 60% Property development
Development and Investment B K R AR#72,500,0007T MEERE
Co., Ltd.?
BINKEEF BRI RER
REARAF
Huizhou Haolong Industrial Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 100% Property development
Development Company Limited® B K R AR #10,000,0007T MEER
BNTREERERERAR
Huizhou Hopson Xin Neng Mainland China HK$50,000,000 — 100% Property development
Properties Limited* R EIRRE 50,000,000/ 7T MEER
ENTEEEEEEARRR
Huizhou Yapai Real Estate Mainland China RMB250,000,000 — 100% Property development
Company Limited* B K R AR #250,000,0007T MEERE
BMMEREHESRAR!
Huizhou Yaxin Real Estate Mainland China RMB119,000,000 — 100% Property development
Company Limited* AP B KR AR #119,000,0007T MR
BMHDFEHMEFRA R
Ji Run Property Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 — 80% Investment holding
HHEBXEREARRAR B 1,000,0007 7T KRB
Karworld Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100% Investment holding
EMEEABRAR & 10,0007 7T BB
Kun Shan Hopson Property Mainland China RMB200,000,000 — 100% Property development
Development Company Limited A B RRE AR #200,000,0007T MR
BILEEREHERZEERAR]
Malaysian Teoghew Industrial Estate Mainland China HK$25,000,000 — 55% Property development

Development (Guang Zhou) Ltd.*
BMEHIENBRERAR"

FERRE

25,000,000 77T

S
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42 FEMBLRAIFE®

42 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of

incorproation and

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Name of company operations paid capital to the Group Principal activities
= AR L R BEBTR EEEARE
YNCIECE O HMERA Bk FTEXK
Directly Indirectly
B SF:3
Max Clear Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 — 100% Investment holding
EEREFRRA & 1T BB
Nambour Properties Limited British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100% Investment holding
ABEXARAA REBREARS 2% REER
Ningbo Hopson Ci City Leisure Sports ~ Mainland China US$10,000,000 — 100% Property development
Company Limited® i N 7 10,000,000 7 MEER
ERAEERNHBEEE
BRAF?
Ningbo Hopson Kam City Mainland China RMB 150,000,000 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Company Limited® Hh B A e AR#150,000,0007T MEERE
FERE ERWEHEGR AR
Ningbo Hopson Ming City Mainland China RMB 10,000,000 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Company Limited? B K RE AR 10,000,0007T MEER
BEREEBWEIERR AR’
Ningbo Hopson Real Estate Mainland China RMB220,000,000 — 100% Investment holding
Company Limited® B KR AE#220,000,0007T REER
BEREEEIRFEMERR AR
Outward Expanse Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100% Investment holding
BARIRERR AT REERHE 27T REERR
Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Mainland China RMB 100,000,000 — 100% Property development
Company Limited B K BE AE#100,000,0007T MEER
HEREWIEMERRAR
Plaza Royale Water Palace Convention  Mainland China RMB72,000,000 — 70% Hotel operation
Hotel Tianjin Co. Limited® B K BE AR#72,000,0007T B G R
KEFRARBEERAR
Pomeroy Properties Limited British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100% Investment holding
AREZARAT REERHE 23T REERR
Prestige Dragon Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100% Investment holding
ERBERBRAR BB 10,000/ 7T REERR
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Ak o B 25 A BT RE (A

2 TENBARFB@®

42 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of

incorproation and

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Name of company operations paid capital to the Group Principal activities
& AR 3L K% BBITR EEEGRE
NCIECE O i B HMERAK ERl4 FTEXK
Directly Indirectly
=3 3
Right Strong International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100% Investment holding
EREBRBRAR B 18T BB
Shanghai Dazhan Investment Mainland China RMB3,050,000 — 100% Property development
Management Company Limited® B K R AR #3,050,0007T MEER
PERREEERBERAR
Shanghai Hechuang Lin Hai Property Mainland China RMB600,000,000 — 100% Property development
Development Company Limited B RRE AE#600,000,0007T MEERE
PEAREREEHEREER AR
Shanghai Hopson Jin Ting Real Estate  Mainland China RMB50,000,000 — 100% Property development
Development Limited B K R AR#50,000,0007T MEERE
EEEEREREHEREERAR
Shanghai Hopson Property Mainland China US$59,900,000 — 100% Property development
Development Company Limited* EaElpN7 59,900,000 7T, MEER
PEEEREERBEERAR
Shanghai Hopson San Lin Real Estate Mainland China RMB50,000,000 — 100% Property development
Development Limited A BIARE AR#50,000,0007T MEERE
EEEE=BEMERTEERAR
Shanghai Long Jia Properties Limited® ~ Mainland China RMB20,000,000 — 100% Property development
BEREEXARAR H B R RE AR#20,000,0007T MEER
Shanghai Lung Meng Real Estate Mainland China US$44,370,000 — 100% Property development
Development Company Limited* LRlEipN 7S 44,370,000 7T MEER
DERBREMmERERRAR"
Shanghai Shangzhi Haiyun Properties Mainland China RMB800,000,000 — 100% Property development
Company Limited® LRlEpN 73 AR #800,000,0007T YR
B FEREEEARANA
Shanghai Son Xiang Real Estate Mainland China Us$8,000,000 — 100% Property development
Development Company Limited* A B RRE 8,000,000% 7T ey
PEEREERRARRA
Shanghai Yu Tai Real Estate Mainland China RMB400,000,000 — 100% Property development

Development Company Limited®
FEHREHEERERAR’

HhERRE

AR #400,000,0007T

MR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ak o B 2 AR BT RE (A

42 FEMBLRAIFE®

42 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of

incorproation and

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Name of company operations paid capital to the Group Principal activities
=R S R ERITR EEEARE
YNCIECE O HMERA Bk FTEXK
Directly Indirectly
B SF:3
Shanghai Ze Yu Properties Limited® Mainland China RMB50,000,000 — 100% Property development
FEEFEXARAR B KB AR #50,000,0005T MEERE
Shanghai Zhengze Real Estate Mainland China RMB50,000,000 — 100% Property development
Development Company Limited® PN =S AJRH50,000,0007T MEER
FBIEREMEGRAR
Shanxi Hopson Dijing Construction Mainland China RMB 185,000,000 — 100% Property development
Company Limited* B K BE AE#185,000,0007T MEER
WA EFRERARAR
Shine Wealth Consultants Limited British Virgin Islands UsS$1 — 100% Provision of
SEEMARAR BBRIES EH consultancy
TR AR R AR TS
Size Up Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 — 100% Investment holding
BE#HRERRAR] B 17T REZER
Solawide Properties Limited British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100% Investment holding
REEERRAT REERHE 2% REERR
Suizhong Haisheng Tourism Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 51% Property development
Development Corporation® R B KB AE#10,000,0007T MEER
RHSRIRE B X ERBR AR’
Sun Advance Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 — 100% Investment holding
HERERRAR] REBERHES 17T REERR
Sun Yick Properties Limited British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100% Investment holding
MR BXRBRAF REREIEE 23T REZR
Suzhou Ruiyin Properties Limited Mainland China RMB480,000,000 — 100% Property development
BMImREEFR AR GilEPN AR 480,000,0007T R
Tianjin Babo Real Estate Development ~ Mainland China RMB30,000,000 — 100% Property development
Company Limited” B KB AE#30,000,0007T MEER
KEMEEEERERRAR"
Tianjin Hopson Binhai Real Estate Mainland China RMB375,826,000 — 98.9% Property development

Development Company
KEAEBBEHERT
BRATA

hBIARE

AR#375,826,0007C

MR
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Ak o B 25 A BT RE (A

42 FEMBLRAIFE®

42 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of

incorproation and

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Name of company operations paid capital to the Group Principal activities
o B S R ERITR EEEARE
ARER B HMERAX Bt FTEXK
Directly Indirectly
HE S
Tianjin Hopson Environmental Mainland China US$500,000 — 75% Research and
Protection and Energy Saving EalEipN 500,0003 7T development of
Technology Development environmental
Company Limited" technology and
KAEEEIRIRE BRI EE product
BRAA" THIE K R R AR BT
K EE
Tianjin Hopson Zhujiang Real Estate Mainland China RMB280,000,000 — 92.3% Property development
Development Limited' PN AR #280,000,0007T YRR
REGEWRIEMERE
BRRA
Tianjin Jade Buddha Temple Museum Mainland China RMB200,000 — 100% Museum operation
Management Company Limited FR B K AR#200,0007T EYEL R ER
REMEIRE EHEEYE
REEBRRRT
Tianjin Meixin Architectural Design Mainland China RMB3,000,000 — 100% Architectural Design
Company Limited® eIy N AFR#3,000,0007T BERE
REEFRERHERAR
Tianjin Ruiwan Investment and Mainland China RMB115,000,000 — 90% Property development
Development Company Limited B K e AE#115,000,0007T MEEE R
REmEREERARDTF
Tumen Properties Limited British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100% Investment holding
HREEZEARAR HEBRLHS 27T REER
Trisum Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 — 100% Investment holding
BREERRAT i 5,000,000/ 7T REER
Value-Added Guangzhou Limited® Mainland China RMB8,000,000 — 70% Property development
BTz B R AR B A e AR#8,000,0007T WS E R
Zhejiang Ke Hua Digital Plaza Mainland China RMB 10,000,000 — 95% Property development
Company Limited® eIy N AFRH#10,000,0007T MEBRE
AIRIEESIE IS B R AR’
Zhongshan Hopson Hao Jing Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 100% Property development

Real Estate Company Limited®

RLTmAREREEMERRAT’

GilETPN

AR #10,000,0007T

MEER



Name of company

ACEE

Zhongshan Hopson Hong Jing
Real Estate Company Limited®
LT & ERREMEGR AR

Zhongshan Hopson Xi Jing Real Estate
Company Limited®

HILTRERSFEHERRAR’

Zhongxian International
Company Limited”

hEBRERAR AR’

42 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorproation and
operations

& AR L
8 ith 2

Mainland China
B KB

Mainland China
)i N 7

Mainland China
B K RE

42

Issued and fully
paid capital
BBITR
BRRA

RMB10,000,000
AR#10,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000
AR#10,000,0007T

RMB2,250,000
AR ¥2,250,0007T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ak o B 2 AR BT RE (A

FEHBARFE @

Percentage of equity

interest attributable

to the Group

Principal activities

EEEARE
Bk FTEXK
Directly Indirectly
B SF:3
— 100% Property development
MEER
— 100% Property development
MEER
— 100% Property development

ESS

Notes:

(0

(i)

These are wholly owned foreign enterprises established in Mainland China.

These are equity joint ventures established in Mainland China.
These are cooperative joint ventures established in Mainland China.
These are domestic enterprises established in Mainland China.

These are foreign enterprises established in Mainland China.

The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights and are not entitled to
any dividend or distributions upon winding up unless a sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary
shares and thereafter one-half of the assets are distributable to holders of the

non-voting deferred shares.

This is a subsidiary because the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of these companies through contractual arrangements,
notwithstanding that the Group’s equity interests in these companies are not
more than 50%.

(i)

(ii)

FZERBRPEAXNEL L2 2 EHFIE
b7aE

EZERRPEAAER L EEE

g

RERRPEAREX LA EEEDE -

FZERRPEAXEL T2 AERF -

EZERRPEAEK T Z I ERF -

HERZEELR (I ERFZE - AEERR
RS S AEERGERIFZF DK B IE
100,000,000,000,000,% 7T E 77 T & 8 iK
HEA AIEREEZ —FAZKRTER
ERELERDFENA °

EBEXEFRZER A RA I T
iB50% 3% 2 Al AT E 2 B TS K S B
BRBBENZHREZELRAZHBER
AMEBE -
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A 5 ' RHHE 22

Consolidated Balance Sheets mEEERER
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—TEAF ZTENF _FTENF _T-ZF|ZB-——-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET TET TET TET THERT
ASSETS g
Non-current assets ERBEE
Land costs =+ B AR 639,205 749,663 329,440 622,193 714,967
Prepayments for acquisition of land U % + # 78 15} Z I8 — 2,436,630 266,962 209,795 131,221
Properties and equipment E Y E = 2,063,811 2,405,623 3,175029 3,199,845 3,264,839
Investment properties HEWME 2,736,835 2,856,094 8,378,105 15,405,498 [ [SEIAVE]
Properties under development for BIEEHIREZBE
long-term investment g 135157 125856 _ _ =
Intangible assets mIEE 111,819 120,455 120,660 124,837 41,245
Investments in associates REERBZRE 39,206 42,201 40,925 43,433 151,685
Investments in jointly controlled RER S T
S ZIRE 676,460 801,240 1,188,692 1,512,923 1,753,004
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHERBEE 463,158 476,250 2,671,719 3,316,388 5,203,335
Deposit for proposed investment 2R EZES — — — 560,210 =
Deferred tax assets BEFBEE 107,878 173,378 191,287 167,541 220,240
6,973,529 10,187,390 16,362,819 25,162,663 | PLikENL]
Current assets AORE | e SR e
Prepayments for acquisition of land 1l 8% + 4 78 1 008 12,027,112 6,142,999 7,363,482 18,053,335 [NERERES
Properties under development AtHEZHES
for sale S 20281,103 30,544,173 30,556,607 31,967,756 WLNITEEL
Completed properties for sale AHHEZEERK
IS 3,234,664 7,336,763 7,835,600 10,487,033 [ERLNELY]
Financial assets at fair value through i /N T (& % 1B 18 %5
profit or loss TRz HEEE 20,280 11,655 11,083 11,693 11,456
Accounts receivables & AR 5K 138,743 72,577 146,895 171,953 232,940
Prepayments, deposits and other EANTE - -EER
T EESE Hitwe & E 2,956,191 1528568 1,620,126 2,565,026 3,634,376
Due from associates & Wi B & X B FRIE 22,344 26,538 29,365 30,382 31,890
Due from related companies FEULREE N B B 17,390 6,979 13,664 13,644 6,188
Pledged/charged bank deposits 2T
B&% 277,031 271,450 168,479 123,671 1,030,093
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEZEEY 1,985,055 2,142,696 6,546,144 2,573,604 2,618,161

40,959,913 48,084,398 54,291,445 65,998,097 81,778,716




Summary of Financial Information (continued)

S 5 R 22 (%)

Consolidated Balance Sheets (continued)

BHEREEER AT

nEEEREBR®

L ZE—FFR

2011

o i
HK$°000
F# 7

5,120,006
602,612
13,629,307
9,679,048

2,962,465

6,808
81,704

1,574,135
4,117,827

37,773,912

44,004,804

81,481
21,718,581
5,816,801

439,841

44,066,109

173,600
40,910,852

41,084,452
2,981,657

2007 2008 2009 2010
ZET+E ZZEEN\E ZZTTHhE —ZT-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FET
LIABILITIES =K
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payables B ERR 953,128 2,933,721 2,941,424 5,645,612
Land cost payable JE 5 £ 3 AR AR 605,289 323,696 302,418 264,271
Borrowings [ERss 2,898,895 4,262,798 6,232,260 3,671,919
Deferred revenue FEEWA 4,981,769 4,458,379 7,260,538 5,544,615
Accruals and other payables JE ST RE R A A
JE 3R IA 1,763,446 2,249,864 1,728,752 2,196,200
Due to an associate e —fEBERA) 2
B 5,624 6,258 6,269 6,486
Due to related companies EN@EARZZE 137,836 174,920 173,721 344,057
Due to a jointly controlled entity & A< — R K (R 42
EREZAA 231,253 759,380 1,842,289 1,709,345
Current tax liabilities KEFBEBEE 2,515,248 4,162,230 4,357,337 4,643,003
14,092,488 19,331,246 24,845,008 24,025,508
Net current assets REEEFE 26,867,425 28,753,152 29,446,437 41,972,589
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDEE 33,840,954 38,940,542 45,809,256 67,135,252
Non-current liabilities EFBERE
Land cost payable JE A 1 3 B AR 175,959 106,173 271,028 111,178
Borrowings BTE 9,718,998 12,330,211 10,116,598 20,047,524
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEEE 3,867,687 3,890,102 4,502,743 5,551,128
Due to minority shareholders FETFY B X ) 4 8K
of subsidiaries % 52 0E — 49,983 419,411 432,323
13,762,644 16,376,469 15,309,780 26,142,153
Net assets BEFE 20,078,310 22,564,073 30,499,476 40,993,099
EQUITY EE
Capital and reserves attributable ARRBEREA
to the Company's equity holders JE AL AR AN R R
Share capital g 147,237 147,237 159,237 175,237
Reserves 1 17,717,146 20,032,657 28,034,506 38,011,918
17,864,383 20,179,894 28,193,743 38,187,155
Non-controlling interests FE1 ) M 5 2,213,927 2,384,179 2,305,733 2,805,944
Total equity EmBs 20,078,310 22,564,073 30,499,476 40,993,099

44,066,109

255
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S 25 R 22 (%)

Consolidated Income Statements

mERER

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—ETLF ZTRENF ZZTTNF —T-ZEF | ZB——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FET FET
Revenues Wz 11,130,643 10,774,624  11,225246 14,379,253 8,007,537
Cost of sales HE KA (6,669,998)  (5,915,976)  (6,557,985)  (8,692,021) (4,329,161)
Gross profit E ] 4,460,645 4,858,648 4,667,261 5,687,232 3,678,376
Fair value gains on investment WEYENEERZ
properties 386,732 34,076 4,700,097 3,795,624 107,397
Other income/gains, net Hag A Mz
ek} 1,106,985 265,395 734,033 1,124,053 99,732
Selling and marketing expenses HERTISEESER (281,082) (389,348) (378,757) (410,225) (466,549)
General and administrative expenses  — & T 77 B & F (510,672) (690,877) (995,041)  (1,117,712) B QHESEES))
Operating profit 1R T 5,162,608 4,077,894 8,727,593 9,078,972 2,409,558
Finance income B U A 50,394 12,376 13,551 17,039 29,098
Finance costs B 15 Ak AR (136,916) (226,765) (333,639) (253,307) (238,539)
Share of profit less loss of associates DAEEE N T
i AR B 18 (599) 33) (1,346) 1,071 351
Share of profit/(loss) of and SRR s T
other gains relating to jointly BHL (BB R
controlled entities . A
" Hip gz 101,964 (1,710) 385,759 (666) (3,284)
Profit before taxation B 8 BT 3 F 5,177,451 3,861,762 8,791,918 8,843,109 2,197,184
Taxation FiA (1,629,245)  (1,912,812)  (2,699,383)  (2,550,097) (788,773)
Profit for the year FEEHF 3,548,206 1,948,950 6,092,535 6,293,012 1,408,411
Attributable to: FE(L -
Equity holders of the Company KATREFEA 3,517,312 1,963,724 5,799,573 5,889,412 1,430,031
Non-conrolling interests FEI 5 M R 2 30,894 (14,774) 292,962 403,600 (21,620)
3,548,206 1,948,950 6,092,535 6,293,012 1,408,411
Dividends A% B 616,922 294,621 146,498 300,531 -
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Principal Office

Suites 3305-3309

33rd Floor, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place
Central

Hong Kong

Guangzhou Representative Office
16th Floor, South Tower

Zhujiang Investment Building

421 Zhujiang East Road

Zhujiang New City

Guangzhou

Beijing Representative Office
Zhujiang Development Centre
23 Dawang Road West
Chaoyang District

Beijing

Shanghai Representative Office
19th Floor, No. 695 Lingshi Road
Zhabei District

Shanghai

Tianjin Representative Office
No. 14 Dongcheng South Road
Baodi District

Tianjin
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